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Established in 1987 under the visionary leadership of  
Mr R V Bubna, Sharda Cropchem Limited (also referred to as ‘Sharda 
Cropchem,’ ‘The Company’ or ‘We’) is a leading, intellectual property-
driven company specialising in the marketing and distribution 
of agrochemical formulations and generic active ingredients.

We are among the fastest-growing 
global agrochemical companies and are 
recognised as a prominent player in the 
generic crop protection chemicals industry. 
Our steadily expanding portfolio of dossiers 
and intellectual property rights form a 
strong platform for long-term growth 
across regulated international markets, 
particularly in advanced economies such 
as Europe, NAFTA, and LATAM. This robust 
framework allows us to operate seamlessly 
across a diverse range of formulations and 
generic active ingredients on a global scale.

With deep domain expertise and a strong 
focus on innovation, we are well-positioned 

to meet the evolving needs of farmers and 
agricultural businesses worldwide. By 
delivering consistent quality and enhancing 
productivity, we aim to strengthen the 
agricultural value chain and contribute 
meaningfully to global food security.

At Sharda Cropchem, we are committed to 
sustainable growth driven by operational 
excellence and a customer-centric 
approach. Our agility, local market 
understanding, and strong partnerships 
enable us to extend our footprint while 
shaping the future of agriculture through 
efficient, responsive, and scalable solutions.

36+
Years of Expertise

80+
Countries 
Reached

525+
Distributors

500+
Global Resource Deployment

2,964
Registrations

About Sharda Cropchem: A Macro Perspective
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` 4,320 Cr
Revenue

` 682 Cr
EBITDA

` 304 Cr
Net Profit

Key Highlights of 2024-25

Crop Protection

Fungicides Herbicides

Insecticides Biocides

Our Core Strengths

IP-Driven Business Model 

A continually expanding repository of 
dossiers and registration form the backbone 
of our differentiated global offering.

Global Expertise 

Strong market intelligence and the capability to 
serve diverse agroclimatic zones with precision.

Customer-Centric Approach

Delivering adaptable, high-quality solutions 
aligned with specific crop and regional needs. 

Sustainability Commitment

Supporting responsible agriculture through efficient 
inputs and environmentally conscious practices.

Non-Agro Chemicals

Rubber and Industrial Belts

Industrial Chemicals

Dyes and Intermediates
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Mrs Sharda R Bubna
Whole-Time Director, Founder & Promoter

Mrs Bubna holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from 
Nagpur University. From 1987 to 2004, she managed 
M/s Sharda International, her sole proprietorship, which 
was engaged in chemicals and agrochemicals. She is 
one of the Founders and Promoters of the Company.

Mr Manish R Bubna 
Whole-Time Director, Founder & Promoter

Mr Bubna holds a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering 
from the University Department of Chemical Technology, 
Bombay University. With more than 32 years of experience, 
he has driven the Company’s expansion into conveyor 
belts and general chemicals, and currently oversees 
information technology, logistics, and documentation. He 
is one of the Founders and Promoters of the Company.

Mr Ashish R Bubna 
Whole-Time Director, Founder & Promoter

Mr Bubna holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce 
from the University of Mumbai. With over 34 years of 
experience, he has played a vital role in the sales and 
marketing, procurement, registrations, and logistics 
functions for agrochemical business. He has been 
instrumental in the Company’s early investments in 
product registrations and dossier development. He is 
one of the Founders and Promoters of the Company.

Mr Ramprakash V Bubna 
Chairman and Managing Director, Founder & Promoter

Mr Bubna is an alumnus of IIT Bombay with a bachelor’s 
degree in Chemical Engineering. He brings over 57 years 
of rich experience in the chemicals and agrochemicals 
sectors. He leads Sharda Cropchem’s overall strategy 
and operations. Before founding the Company, he 
held key roles at Tata Oil Mills Limited, Zenith Limited, 
Piramal Rasayan Limited, Coromandel Fertilisers 
Limited, and Zuari Agrochemicals Limited. He is one 
of the Founders & Promoters of the Company.
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Ms Sonal Desai
Independent Director

Ms Desai is a Chartered Accountant with an Executive 
Diploma in Hospital Administration from Tata Institute 
of Social Sciences (TISS). She was superannuated 
from Hindustan Petroleum Corporation as Executive 
Director, Refinery Finance, and Head, CSR. She has more 
than 36 years of experience in finance, commercial 
and embedded Functions. She currently serves as 
Executive Director at Sushrut Hospital and advises 
on various charitable healthcare initiatives. She has 
been on Sharda Cropchem’s Board since April 2019.

Mr H S Upendra Kamath
Independent Director 

Mr Kamath is a Certified Associate of Indian Institute 
of Bankers (CAIIB) with a B.Com degree and over 41 
years of experience in Indian banking. His expertise 
spans MSME, retail, priority sector lending, recovery, 
legal risk, treasury, and international banking. He has 
been on Sharda Cropchem’s Board since May 2024.

Mr Vinod Kathuria
Independent Director  

Mr. Kathuria holds a Master’s degree in Commerce and is 
CAIIB. With more than 41 years in banking, he has deep 
knowledge in corporate credit, retail lending, recovery, 
International Banking and Treasury Operations. He has 
been on Sharda Cropchem’s Board since May 2024.

Mr Shalin Divatia
Independent Director  

Mr Divatia is a Fellow Chartered Accountant, Associate 
Company Secretary, and holds degrees in Law and 
Commerce. He has over 31 years of experience in 
accounts, finance, audit, taxation, and corporate 
law. His areas of expertise include M&A, corporate 
matters, and exchange control regulations. He has 
been on Sharda Cropchem’s Board since May 2024.
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Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
L51909MH2004PLC145007

Registered Office
Prime Business Park,
Dashrathlal Joshi Road,
Vile Parle (West), 
Mumbai – 400 056

Telephone: 91 22 6678 2800 
Fax: 91 22 6678 2828 
Email Address: co.sec@shardaintl.com 
Website: www.shardacropchem.com

Auditors
B S R & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants

Registrar and Transfer Agent
KFin Technologies Limited
Selenium Tower B,
6th Floor, Plot No. 31 & 32, 
Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad – 500 032

Telephone: +91 040 6716 1606 
Fax: +91 40 2311 4087

Bankers
Union Bank of India
Citi Bank, N.A.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors 

Mr Ramprakash V Bubna  
Chairman & Managing Director,  
Founder & Promoter

Mrs Sharda R Bubna 
Whole-Time Director, 
Founder & Promoter

Mr Ashish R Bubna 
Whole-Time Director, 
Founder & Promoter

Mr Manish R Bubna 
Whole-Time Director, 
Founder & Promoter

Ms Sonal Desai 
Independent Director

Mr H S Upendra Kamath 
Independent Director

Mr Vinod Kathuria 
Independent Director

Mr Shalin Divatia
Independent Director

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr Shailesh A Mehendale 
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Jetkin N Gudhka 
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer
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Management 
Discussion & Analysis

Sharda Cropchem Limited 37

Corporate Overview



The global economy has entered 
2025 at a critical juncture, facing 
rising uncertainty and a noticeable 
slowdown compared to the previous 
year. In its April 2025 World Economic 
Outlook, the International Monetary 
Fund (IMF) gave a cautionary forecast, 
anticipating global GDP growth at 
2.8%, down from 3.6% projected 
in January. This revision is largely 
attributed to mounting trade tensions, 
particularly the imposition of sweeping 
tariffs by the US and retaliatory 
measures taken by its trading partners.

These shifts have intensified pressure 
on global markets through a threefold 
disruption: rising tariff barriers, volatile 
currency movements, and fragmented 
capital flows. The impact of this fallout 
has been felt worldwide. According to 
the IMF, global growth in 2025 could 
have hit 3.2% without the imposition 
of these new tariffs, shedding light on 
the economic weight of protectionism. 

Alongside the growth downgrade, 
inflation forecasts for 2025 have 
been revised slightly upward by 0.1 
percentage point. This increase is 
due to the pass-through effects 
of tariffs and continued supply-
side disruptions. Financial markets 
have responded through a sharp 
fall in the dollar index and equity 
sell-offs. Bond yields and crude oil 
prices also softened significantly.

Consequently, the IMF is calling 
for a coordinated policy effort to 
restore economic stability and revive 
investment. Key priorities include 
strengthening trade ties to ease 
uncertainty, advancing structural 
reforms to address demographic 
and labour market challenges, and 
fostering stronger international 
cooperation. Addressing these near 
and long-term issues is essential to 
building a more enduring, inclusive, 
and sustainable global economy. 

Global Economy
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Outlook
Despite current headwinds, the global economy 
offers a cautiously optimistic medium-term outlook. 
While 2025 is marked by trade-related disruptions 
and policy uncertainty, the foundations for a gradual 
recovery are beginning to take shape. As conditions 
improve, the global GDP is likely to reach 3.0% in 2026, 
signalling stabilisation if corrective policies persist.

Key indicators such as the easing of inflationary 
pressures, softening commodity prices, and the resilience 
of services and consumption in emerging markets 
point towards improving fundamentals. Structural 
reforms across major economies, along with efforts to 
normalise monetary and fiscal policies, are expected 
to create more stable investment environments.

Looking ahead, the global economy is poised to 
navigate this period of adjustment and emerge stronger, 
with new drivers of growth rooted in innovation, 
sustainability, and inclusive development.

India is projected to remain the world’s fastest-
growing major economy, reaffirming its rising 
influence in the global economic order. The Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI) expects the nation’s economy to 
expand by 6.5% in 2024-25. This contrasts sharply 
with global growth estimates of 2.8% and 3.0% 	
for the same period, highlighting India’s continued 
strength amid a weaker international environment.

Indian Economy

(Source: IMF World Economic Outlook – April 2025)

Global Economy
Real GDP Growth (in %)

2026P2025P2024E

3.3 2.8 3.0

E-Estimated P-Projected

Advanced Economies
Real GDP Growth (in %)

2026P

1.5

2025P

1.4

2024E

1.8

E-Estimated P-Projected

Emerging Markets and Developing Economies
Real GDP Growth (in %)

2026P

3.9

2025P

3.7

2024E

4.3

E-Estimated P-Projected
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https://rbidocs.rbi.org.in/rdocs/Bulletin/PDFs/0BULL22042025F03F83AE118C4B3B84E662D980C8DE33.PDF
https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleaseIframePage.aspx?PRID=2120509
https://www.business-standard.com/budget/news/economic-survey-agriculture-growth-budget-allocation-nirmala-sitharaman-125013100764_1.html
https://www.mospi.gov.in/sites/default/files/press_release/CPI_PR_15Apr25.pdf
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https://www.thebusinessresearchcompany.com/report/herbicides-global-market-report


https://www.transparencymarketresearch.com/insecticides-market.html#:~:text=How%20big%20was%20the%20global,are%20the%20key%20insecticides%20manufacturers?


https://www.marketsandmarkets.com/Market-Reports/fungicides-356.html
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https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf
https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Policy_on_Preservation_of_Documents_Archival_Policy.pdf






https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Policy-on-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf
https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf




https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/FY-24-25-Q4-Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
https://shardacropchem.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Policy-on-Prevention-of-Sexual-Harassment-at-Workplace.pdf
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTD.)

CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(E) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India  
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members
Sharda Cropchem Limited,
2nd Floor, Prime Business Park  
Dashrathlal Joshi Road,
Vile Parle (West),  
Mumbai – 400056.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sharda Cropchem Limited, having CIN 
L51909MH2004PLC145007 and registered office situated at 2nd Floor, Prime Business Park Dashrathlal Joshi Road, Vile 
Parle (West) Mumbai - 400056 (“the Company”), for the year ended on 31 March, 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management. This responsibility includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, and the representations made 
by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For JMJA & Associates LLP
Practising Company Secretaries

Peer Review Certificate No. 980/2020

Date: 14 May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Sd/- 
CS Mansi Damania
Founder Partner 

FCS: 7447 | COP: 8120 
UDIN: F007447G000341968
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To the Members of 

Sharda Cropchem Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the standalone financial statements of 
Sharda Cropchem Limited (the “Company”) which comprise 
the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the 
standalone statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes 
in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial 
statements, including material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its 
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
standalone financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

See Note 2.8, 20 and 33 to standalone financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from sale of 
products. The principal products of the Company comprise 
agro-chemicals. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
on transfer of control of the products to the customer. 
The Company uses a variety of shipment terms across its 
operating markets and this has an impact on the timing of 
revenue recognition. The performance obligations in the 
contracts may be fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery, 
formal customer acceptance or upon surrender of bill of 
lading in the favor of customer, depending on contract terms. 
There is a risk that revenue could be recognised at a time 
which is different from transfer of control especially for sales 
transactions occurring on and around the reporting period. In 
view of this and since revenue is a key performance indicator 
of the Company, we have identified timing of the revenue 
recognition as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following 
audit procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence:-

- 	� Assessed the appropriateness of Company’s accounting 
policies relating to revenue recognition as per the applicable 
Ind AS.

- 	� Obtained an understanding of the Company’s revenue 
recognition process and evaluated the design and 
implementation of key financial controls in relation to the 
timing of revenue recognition. We also tested the operating 
effectiveness of such controls for a sample of transactions 
with special reference to controls over revenue recognised 
on and around the year end.

- 	� For a sample of sale transactions selected using statistical 
sampling, performed detailed testing and in particular 
examined whether these are recognised in the period in 
which control is transferred. This included examination of 
the terms and conditions of the customer orders including 
the shipping terms and transporter documents and 
performing lead time assessment.
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
- 	� Selected revenue transactions on a sample basis recorded 

during specified period around the year end and checked 
whether revenue has been recognised in the correct 
reporting period by examining the underlying documents.

- 	� Tested journal entries for revenue recognised during the 
year, selected based on specified risk-based criteria to 
identify unusual transactions.

- 	� Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures and 
their compliance with Ind AS.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets and intangible assets under development.

See Note 2.12, 4A and 4B to standalone financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Impairment testing of other intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development

As disclosed in Note 2.12, 4A and 4B the Company’s intangible 
assets comprise product registrations and licenses.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development represents 23% of the Company’s 
total assets. The Company applies for product registrations 
in different countries to sell its products. As disclosed in Note 
2.12, 4A and 4B to the standalone financial statements, the 
Company capitalizes costs incurred to apply for product 
registrations.

The impairment assessment is performed, based on value 
in use of product registrations for the specific regions. 
The measurement of value of intangible assets involves 
significant judgments and estimates in the Company’s annual 
impairment assessment, the significance and magnitude 
of the costs capitalised and likelihood of obtaining product 
registration. We identified assessment of impairment of 
intangible assets and intangible assets under development 
as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following 
audit procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence:-

- 	� Obtained an understanding of the Company’s process 
for determining likelihood of product registration, future 
benefits expected from product registrations in the specific 
regions using discounted future cash flows.

-	� Evaluated the design and implementation and tested the 
operating effectiveness of key internal controls in relation 
to the impairment of intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development.

- 	� Assessed the assumptions around the key drivers of the 
cash flow forecasts including discount rate, expected 
growth rates and terminal growth rates used.

- 	� Assessed Company’s sensitivity analysis over the key 
assumptions to determine any possible change in these 
assumptions which would result in an impairment.

- 	� Involved our valuation expert to assess the assumptions 
and methodology used by the Company to determine the 
recoverable amount.

- 	� Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures and 
their compliance with Ind AS.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company’s 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements 
and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

MANAGEMENT’S AND BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the 
Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management and 
Board of Directors.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in preparation of standalone financial 
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
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report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2 	 A. 	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

		  a.	� We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

		  b.	� In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books except for 
the matters stated in the paragraph 2A(f) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

		  c.	� The standalone balance sheet, the 
standalone statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the 
standalone statement of changes in equity 
and the standalone statement of cash flows 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

		  d.	� In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

		  e.	� On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 1 April 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

		  f.	� the remark relating to the maintenance of 
accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 
2A(b) above on reporting under Section 
143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2B(f) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

		  g.	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 B.	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

		  a.	� The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its 
financial position in its standalone financial 
statements - Refer Note 31 to the standalone 
financial statements.

		  b.	� The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

		  c.	� There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

		  d 	 (i) 	� The management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Note 45 to 
the standalone financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (ii)	� The management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Note 45 to 
the standalone financial statements, 
no funds have been received by 
the Company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
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writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

			   (iii)	� Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances 
performed, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(i) and (ii) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

		  e.	� The final dividend paid by the Company 
during the year, in respect of the same 
declared for the previous year and interim 
dividend declared and paid by the Company 
during the year and until the date of this audit 
report is in compliance accordance with 
Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies 
to the payment of dividend.

			�   Further, as stated in Note 14 to the standalone 
financial statements, the Board of Directors 
of the Company has proposed final dividend 
for the year which is subject to the approval 
of the members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The dividend declared is in 
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the 
extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

		  f.	� Based on our examination which included 
test checks, except for the instances 
mentioned below, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which has a feature of audit 
trail (edit log) facility . For the accounting 
software for which audit trail feature is 
enabled, the audit trail facility has been 

operating throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software and we 
did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tampered with during the 
course of our audit. Additionally, the audit 
trail has been preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention.

			   •	� Audit trail was not enabled at the 
database level for accounting software 
to log any direct data changes.

			   •	� The Company has also used an 
accounting software for maintaining 
its books of account related to payroll 
process which does not have the 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility. Consequently, we are unable to 
comment on audit trail feature of the 
said software.

	 C.	� With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

		�  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the company to its directors during the 
current year is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to any director is not in excess of the limit laid 
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are 
required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25103595BMJEVS8648
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) 	 (a) 	 (A)	� The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

		  (B)	� The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) 	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has 
a regular programme of physical verification of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use 
assets by which all property, plant and equipment 
and right of use assets are verified every year.  In 
accordance with this programme, all property, 
plant and equipment and right of use assets 
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets.  No discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	� The Company does not have any immovable 
property (other than properties where the Company 
is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, 
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (d)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no 
proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under 
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) 	 (a)	� The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks 
lying with third parties, has been physically verified 
by the management during the year.For stocks 
lying with third parties at the year-end, written 
confirmations have been obtained and for goods-
in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has 
been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable 
and procedures and coverage as followed by 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SHARDA CROPCHEM LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

management were appropriate.  No discrepancies 
were noticed on verification between the physical 
stocks and the book records that were more than 
10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has 
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns 
or statements filed by the Company with such 
banks or financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company.

(iii)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not given 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The 
Company has during the year made investments in 
companies and other parties in respect of which the 
requisite information is as below. The Company has 
not made any investments in firms and limited liability 
partnerships.

	 (a)	� During the year the Company has not provided 
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, 
or stood guarantee, or provided security to any 
other entity.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments 
made during the year are prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, 
the Company has not provided guarantee, given 
security, loans and advances in the nature of loans 
to any entity.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company,

		  -	� the loan given to wholly owned subsidiary 
(Axis Crop Science Private Limited) in earlier 
years, in respect of which the outstanding 
balance as at 31 March 2025 is INR 160 
lakhs, is repayable on demand. As informed 
to us, there has been no default by the wholly 
owned subsidiary in repayment of principal 
amount demanded during the year by the 
Company. As informed to us, the Company 
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has demanded principal and interest on the 
loan which has been duly paid by the wholly 
owned subsidiary during the year.

		  -	� Further, the Company has not given any 
advance in the nature of loan to any party 
during the year.

	 (d)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the loan granted as 
referred to in paragraph (c) above is repayable on 
demand and there is no overdue amount.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no loan 
or advance in the nature of loan granted falling 
due during the year, which has been renewed 
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

	 (f)�	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not granted during the year any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans either repayable on demand 
or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment.

	 (iv)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, in respect of investments 
made and loans given by the Company, in our 
opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been 
complied with. Further, the Company has not 
given any guarantee or provided any security 
under Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

	 (v)	� The Company has not accepted any deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is 
not applicable.

	 (vi)	� We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules prescribed by the Central Government 
for maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured 
goods and are of the opinion that prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made 
and maintained. However, we have not carried 
out a detailed examination of the records with a 
view to determine whether these are accurate or 
complete.

	 (vii) 	 (a)	� The Company does not have liability in 
respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales 
tax and Value added tax during the year since 
effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues 
has been subsumed into GST.

			�   According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, 
in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, 
Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities.

			�   According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the 
Company, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and 
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 
31 March 2025 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

		  (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, 
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
the dues

Amount 
Demanded  

(INR in lakhs)

Amount not 
deposited 

under dispute 
(INR in lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where  
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income-tax 10,131.44 10,131.44 AY 2021-22 Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals)

	 (viii)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the 
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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	 (ix) 	 (a)	� According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans and borrowing or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

		  (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not been declared a wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or government or government authority.

		  (c)	� In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us 
by the management, the Company has not 
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

		  (d)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on an overall examination of 
the standalone financial statements of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on 
short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

		  (e)	� According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company, we report that 
the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet 
the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined 
under the Act.

		  (f)	� According to the information and 
explanations given to us and procedures 
performed by us, we report that the Company 
has not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries 
(as defined under the Act).

	 (x) 	 (a)	� The Company has not raised any moneys by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

		  (b)	� According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (xi) 	 (a)	� During the course of our examination of 
the books and records of the Company 

and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company or on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year.

		  (b)	� According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no report under 
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the 
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government.

		  (c)	� As represented to us by the management, 
there are no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year.

	 (xii)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (xiii)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
with related parties are in compliance with Section 
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the 
details of the related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

	 (xiv) 	(a)	� Based on information and explanations 
provided to us and our audit procedures, in 
our opinion, the Company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business.

		  (b)	� We have considered the internal audit reports 
of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit.

	 (xv)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are 
not applicable to the Company.

	 (xvi) 	(a)	� The Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable.

		  (b)	� The Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) 
of the Order is not applicable.

		  (c)	� The Company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
SHARDA CROPCHEM LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 151

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25150

Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable.

		  (d)	� The Company is not part of any group (as 
per the provisions of the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 
as amended).  Accordingly, the requirements 
of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

	 (xvii)	�The Company has not incurred cash losses in the 
current and in the immediately preceding financial 
year.

	 (xviii)	�There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (xix)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation 
of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the 
standalone financial statements, our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report that the Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up 
to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due.

	 (xx)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is no unspent 
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 
of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, 
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25103595BMJEVS8648
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference 
to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date)

OPINION

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of Sharda Cropchem Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls 
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

MANAGEMENT’S AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
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extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH 
REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements include those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25103595BMJEVS8648
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2025

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note 

No.
As at  

31 March, 2025
As at  

31 March, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A  273.34  369.98 
Right of use assets 3B  718.01  1,436.03 
Other intangible assets 4A  74,024.25  68,968.86 
Intangible assets under development 4B  29,060.69  28,286.31 
Financial assets
	 Investments 5  109.72  111.68 
	 Loans 6  160.00  210.00 
	 Other financial assets 7  512.38  507.70 
Other non- current assets 7A  1,638.46  1,471.46 
Income tax assets (net) 8A  6,019.36  7,028.92 
Total non-current assets  1,12,516.21  1,08,390.94 
Current assets
Inventories 10  88,850.38  89,422.68 
Financial assets
	 Investments 5  29,432.73  15,889.87 
	 Trade receivables 11  1,79,341.83  1,46,264.91 
	 Cash and cash equivalents 12  6,447.24  3,282.17 
	 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 13  9,313.58  57.53 
	 Other financial assets 7  4,150.81  12,249.61 
Other current assets 7A  8,675.36  6,962.65 
Total current assets  3,26,211.93  2,74,129.42 
Total Assets  4,38,728.14  3,82,520.36 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14  9,022.05  9,022.05 
Other equity 15  2,24,127.70  2,02,160.39 
Total equity  2,33,149.75  2,11,182.44 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
	 Lease liabilities 44  -    775.97 
	 Other financial liabilities 17  6,301.38  5,838.00 
Provisions 18  -    114.46 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9  17,380.51  15,278.51 
Total non-current liabilities  23,681.89  22,006.94 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
	 Lease liabilities 44  775.97  716.50 
	 Trade payables 16
		�  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
 509.23  694.66 

		�  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

 1,20,332.98  86,280.97 

	 Other financial liabilities 17  50,076.25  50,175.43 
Other current liabilities 19  4,727.65  4,147.71 
Provisions 18  5,474.42  7,315.71 
Total current liabilities  1,81,896.50  1,49,330.98 
Total Equity and Liabilities  4,38,728.14  3,82,520.36 
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka   
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes 

No.
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20  3,66,109.98  2,60,266.68 
Other income 21  17,476.41  27,078.59 
Total Income  3,83,586.39  2,87,345.27 
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22  1,77,633.29  1,48,373.50 
Purchase of stock in trade 22  88,601.36  39,667.93 
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 23  (7,261.88)  7,236.73 
Employee benefits expenses 24  4,177.74  3,364.52 
Finance costs 25  93.63  169.58 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  27,461.19  26,707.83 
Other expenses 27  58,597.23  44,320.29 
Total expenses  3,49,302.56  2,69,840.38 
Profit before tax  34,283.83  17,504.89 
Tax expense
Current tax 8B  4,665.24  2,525.05 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 8B  145.27  364.23 
Deferred tax charge 8B  2,099.68  939.32 
Total tax expense  6,910.19  3,828.60 
Profit for the year  27,373.64  13,676.29 
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 29  9.22  (15.05)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 8B  (2.32)  3.79 
Total other comprehensive income / (loss)  6.90  (11.26)
Total comprehensive income for the year  27,380.54 13,665.03
Earnings per share (` per share)
Basic and diluted (Face value per share of ` 10 each) 28  30.34  15.16 
The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax  34,283.83  17,504.89 
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expense  27,461.19  26,707.83 
Investments in subsidiaries written off   1.96  -   
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) (net)  (579.25)  1,839.34 
Discard / Write-off of intangible assets and intangible assets under development  6,808.27  3,486.36 
Profit on sale of mutual funds  (660.46)  (15.53)
Profit on redemption of bonds  (12.59)  -   
Fair valuation loss / (gain) on current investments  (805.37)  (384.04)
Reversal of doubtful debts   (83.82)  (1,254.28)
Bad debts (net)  303.89  24.69 
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back  (526.29)  (2,123.82)
Liabilities of capital creditors no longer required written back  (268.61)  (475.59)
Finance costs  93.63  169.58 
Interest income  (2,743.85)  (1,346.37)
Dividend income  (12,374.21)  (21,478.96)
Operating profit before working capital changes  50,898.32  22,654.10 
Movements in working capital: 
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  (32,746.93)  20,462.91 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  572.30  16,579.46 
Decrease / (increase) in other assets  (1,387.11)  607.71 
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets  (411.33)  14.80 
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables  34,501.23  (40,060.32)
(Decrease) / increase in provisions  (1,946.53)  1,316.11 
(Decrease) / increase in other financial liabilities and other liabilities  1,129.56  (932.60)
Cash generated from operations  50,609.51  20,642.17 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  (3,138.99)  (4,390.73)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)  47,470.52  16,251.44 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (10.57)  (43.14)
Purchase of intangible assets (including intangible assets under development 
and capital   advances) 

 (39,238.54)  (27,134.95)

Purchase of current investments (Mutual Funds)  (7,848.40)  (12,800.00)
Proceeds from sale of current investments (Mutual Funds)  9,134.77  500.00 
Purchase of current investment (Bonds)  (18,350.81)  -   
Proceeds from redemption of Bonds  5,000.00  -   
Interest received on bonds  611.21  -   
Bank deposits placed  (7,171.66)  (835.92)
Redemption of bank deposits / other bank balances  6,421.06  7.72 
Interest from fixed deposit  946.91  995.68 
Loans to subsidiary - principal received  50.00  10.00 
Loans to subsidiary - interest received  7.95  9.59 
Dividend received from subsidiaries  12,374.21  21,478.96 
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B)  (38,073.87)  (17,812.06)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Cash flows from financing activities 
Repayment of principal towards lease liability  (716.50)  (661.58)
Interest paid on lease liability  (93.50)  (148.41)
Finance costs paid  (0.13)  (12.95)
Dividend paid on equity shares  (5,413.56)  (2,672.96)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (C)  (6,223.69)  (3,495.90)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)  3,172.96  (5,056.52)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,282.17  8,393.03 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash 
equivalents  

 (7.88)  (54.33)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  6,447.24  3,282.17 
Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand  0.24  0.51 
Balance with banks  6,447.00  3,281.66 
Total cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flows statement (refer note 12)  6,447.24  3,282.17 

Note: 

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS 7) 
Statement of Cash Flows, specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
A. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (NOTE 14)

(` Lakhs)
As at 01 April, 2023  9,022.05 
Changes in equity share capital  -   
As at 31 March, 2024  9,022.05 
Changes in equity share capital  -   
As at 31 March, 2025  9,022.05 

Note: There is no change in equity share capital due to prior period errors.(31 March, 2024: Nil)

B. 	 OTHER EQUITY

(` Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive 

income
Total

Security 
premium 
(Note 15)

Retained 
earnings  
(Note 15)

Capital 
reserve 

(Note 15)

General 
reserve 

(Note 15)

Re-measurement 
of the net defined 

benefit plan
As at 01 April, 2023  2,148.55  1,86,892.90  1,491.29  664.93  4.30  1,91,201.97 
Profit for the year  -   13,676.29  -    -    -    13,676.29 
Other comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -    (11.26)  (11.26)
Total comprehensive Income  -    13,676.29  -    -    (11.26)  13,665.03 
Payments of dividends  -    (2,706.61)  -    -    -    (2,706.61)
As at 31 March, 2024  2,148.55  1,97,862.58  1,491.29  664.93  (6.96)  2,02,160.39 

(` Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive 

income
Total 

Security 
premium 
(Note 15)

Retained 
earnings 
(Note 15)

Capital 
reserve 

(Note 15)

General 
reserve 

(Note 15)

Re-measurement 
of the net defined 

benefit plan
As at 01 April, 2024  2,148.55  1,97,862.58  1,491.29  664.93  (6.96)  2,02,160.39 
Profit for the year  -    27,373.64  -    -    -    27,373.64 
Other comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -    6.90  6.90 
Total comprehensive Income  -    27,373.64  -    -    6.90  27,380.54 
Payments of dividends  -    (5,413.23)  -    -    -    (5,413.23)
As at 31 March, 2025  2,148.55  2,19,822.99  1,491.29  664.93  (0.06)  2,24,127.70 

The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

	� Sharda Cropchem Limited (the “Company”) is a public 
limited company incorporated in India under the 
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. 
The Company’s shares are listed on National Stock 
Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange.

	� The Company is principally engaged in export of agro-
chemicals (technical grade and formulations) and 
non-agro products such as conveyor belts, rubber 
belts/sheets, dyes & dye intermediates and general 
chemicals to various countries across the world.

	� The registered office of the Company is located at 2nd 
Floor, Prime Business Park, Dashrathlal Joshi Road, 
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400 056.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1	 Statement of Compliance

	� These standalone financial statements (hereinafter 
referred to as “financial statements”) are prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, 
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act’’), amendments thereto and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

	� The standalone financial statements were authorised 
for issue in accordance with a resolution passed at the 
meeting of the Board of Directors held on 14 May, 2025.

2.2	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	� The standalone financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities -

	 (i)	� Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair 
value.

	 (ii)	� Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments).

	� Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique.

	� The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

	� A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	� The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

	� All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

	� Level 1 —	Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

	� Level 2 —	Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

	� Level 3 —	Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

2.3	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	� The standalone financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the 
Company and the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. All the 
figures have been rounded off to the nearest INR in 
Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 	 Current and non-current classification

	� Based on the time involved between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, the Company has identified 12 
months as its operating cycle for determining current 
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities 
in the Balance Sheet.

2.5	 Trade Receivable

	� Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for 
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course 
of business and reflect Company’s unconditional right to 
consideration (that is payment is due only on the passage 
of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at 
the transaction price as they do not contain significant 
financing components. The Company holds the trade 
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual 
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less loss allowance. On account of adoption of Ind AS 
109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to 
assess the impairment loss or gain.
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2.6	 Foreign currency translation

	 Transactions and balances

	� Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the 
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining 
unsettled at the end of the year are translated at the 
closing rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. Non-
monetary items which are carried in terms of historical 
cost denominated in foreign currency are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange 
differences arising as a result of the above are recognised 
as income or expenses in the statement of profit and 
loss. Exchange difference arising on the settlement of 
monetary items at rates different from those at which 
they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
previous standalone financial statements, are recognised 
as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

2.7	 Derivative financial instruments

	 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

	� The Company uses derivative financial instruments, 
such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign 
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are 
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Fair 
value changes are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss and are included in Foreign exchange (gain) / 
loss.

2.8	 Revenue Recognition

	� Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of 
promised goods to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects 
to receive in exchange for those goods. To recognise 
revenues, the Company applies the following five step 
approach:

	 - 	 identify the contract with a customer,

	 - 	� identify the performance obligations in the 
contract,

	 - 	 determine the transaction price,

	 - 	� allocate the transaction price to the performance 
obligations in the contract, and

	 - 	� recognise revenues when a performance 
obligation is satisfied.

	 Sale of goods

	� The Company recognised revenue from sale of goods 
measured upon satisfaction of performance obligation 
which is at a point in time when control is transferred to 
the customer which is usually on shipment / dispatch / 
delivery. Depending on the terms of the contract, which 
differs from contract to contract, the goods are sold 
on a reasonable credit term. As per the terms of the 
contract, consideration that is variable, according to Ind 
AS 115, is estimated at contract inception and updated 
thereafter at each reporting date or until crystallisation 
of the amount.

	� Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, 
which is the consideration, adjusted for trade discount, 
cash discount, volume discounts, rebates, scheme 
allowances, incentives and returns, if any, as specified 
in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes 
taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and 
returns are estimated (using the most likely method) 
based on accumulated experience with customers. Due 
to the short nature of credit period given to customers, 
there is no financing component in the contract.

	 Interest income

	� Interest income from financial assets is recognised 
when it is probable that economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time 
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial assets to that 
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Dividends

	� Dividend income from investments is recognised 
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has 
been established (provided that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably).

	 Insurance claims

	� Insurance claims are accounted for based on claims 
admitted and to the extent that there is no uncertainty 
in receiving the claims.

	 Export incentives

	� An export incentive (i.e. Duty Drawback, Merchandise 
Export Incentive Scheme and other schemes as per the 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
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Export Import Policy) is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per 
the terms of the scheme is established in respect of 
export made, and there is no uncertainty to its receipt.

2.9	 Taxation

	 Current tax

	� Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities in accordance with the 
Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The 
Company has adopted the new Income-tax Regime 
with effect from 01 April, 2022.

	� Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

	 Deferred tax

	� Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised 
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax 
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at 
the time of the transaction.

	� Deferred tax is not recognised for- temporary 
differences on the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction that:

	 1.	 Is not a business combination.

	 2.	� At the time of the transaction (i) affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or (loss) and (ii) 
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary difference.

		�  Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that either future taxable 
profits or reversal of deferred tax liabilities will be 
available, against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

		�  The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall 
be reviewed at the end of each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 

allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset 
to be utilised.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period and are expected

		�  to apply when the related deferred tax asset is 
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.10	�Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) and 
Depreciation

	 Recognition and measurement

	� The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. On adoption of 
Ind AS, the Company retained the carrying value for 
all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised 
in the standalone financial statements as at the date 
of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous 
GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as permitted 
by Ind AS 101 ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards’.

	� PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost 
of PPE comprises its purchase price, including non-
refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts 
and rebates. The cost of PPE includes taxes, duties, 
freight, interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets and other incidental expenses 
which are required to bring the asset in the condition 
for its intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, if any.

	� Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred.

	� The residual values, useful life and depreciation method 
are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that 
the amount, method and period of depreciation are 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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consistent with previous estimates and the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

	� An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the 
Standalone financial statements.

	 Depreciation and amortisation

	� Depreciation is provided after impairment, if any, using 
the straight-line method as per the useful lives of the 
assets estimated by the management, or at rates 
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013. The Company has used the following estimated 
useful life to provide depreciation on its property, plant 
and equipment.

Asset class Estimated useful life
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor cars 8 years
Leasehold improvements 6 years
Electrical installations 6 years

	� An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.11	Intangible assets and amortisation

	� Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any.

	� Intangible assets are amortised over the useful 
economic life. Amortisation is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of respective intangible 
assets.

Asset Class Years
Computer software 4 Years
Product Registration and Licences 5 Years

	� An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition are determined 
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the statement of profit and loss within other 
expenses.

	 Subsequent expenditure-

	� Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates, and the cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably.

	� Research and Development costs, Product 
Registration and Licences

	� Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development 
expenditures on an individual project are recognised 
as an intangible asset when the Company can 
demonstrate:

	 -	� The technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that the asset will be available 
for use or sale

	 -	� Its intention to complete and its ability and 
intention to use or sell the asset

	 -	� It is probable that future economic benefits 
will flow to the Company and the Company has 
control over the asset

	� Cost of Product Registration generally comprise of 
costs incurred towards creating product dossiers, fees 
paid to registration consultants, application fees to the 
government authorities, data compensation costs, data 
call-in costs and fees for task-force membership.

	� In situations where consideration for data compensation 
is under negotiation and is pending finalisation of 
contractual agreements, cost is determined on a best 
estimate basis by the management and revised to 
actual amounts on conclusion of agreements.

	� Following initial recognition of the development 
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

	� Amortisation of the asset begins when development 
is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is 
amortised over the period of expected future benefit. 
Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of 
carrying value of another asset.

2.12	Impairment of non-financial assets

	� The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal, and its 
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
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other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

	� In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs 
of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. 
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share 
prices for publicly traded companies or other available 
fair value indicators.

	� The Company bases its impairment calculation on 
detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs 
to which the individual assets are allocated. These 
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a 
period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future 
cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow 
projections beyond periods covered by the most 
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates 
cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or 
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an 
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth 
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth 
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries 
in which the entity operates, or for the market in which 
the asset is used.

	� An assessment is made at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only 
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	� Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually 
as at the balance sheet date at the CGU level, as 
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may be impaired.

2.13	Leases

	� At inception of a contract, the Company assesses 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration.

	 Company as a lessee:

	� At commencement or on modification of a contract that 
contains a lease component, the Company allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component 
on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.

	� The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and 
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received.

	� The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the 
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of 
the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will 
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-
of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life 
of the underlying asset, which is determined on the 
same basis as those of property and equipment. In 
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced 
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability.

	� The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not 
meet the definition of investment property in ‘property 
and equipment’ and lease liabilities in the statement of 
financial position.

	� The Company has elected not to apply the requirements 
of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases 
for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease 
payments associated with these leases are recognised 
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. Such operating lease payments are recognised 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

	� The Company’s leases mainly comprise office 
buildings. The Company leases buildings for office 
purpose. 
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2.14	Inventories

	� Inventories include raw materials, traded goods and 
finished goods. Inventory is valued at lower of cost or 
net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net 
realisable value is made on an item to item basis.

	� Cost comprises the purchase price, costs of conversion 
and other related costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis 
as per individual location which is done on specific 
identification of batches.

	� Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale.

�	� The Company reviews the condition of its inventories 
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving 
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable 
for sale or use. Obsolete and slow-moving items 
are valued at cost or estimated net realisable value, 
whichever is lower. Any write‑down of inventories is 
recognised as an expense during the year.

2.15	Provisions

	� Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation.

	� The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	� These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	� Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to 
claims litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc. are 
recognised when it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

2.16	Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	� A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in 
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

	� The Company does not recognise a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the standalone financial 
statements.

	� A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will 

arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, 
contingent assets are disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements.

	� Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

2.17	Employee benefit expenses

	� Employee benefits consist of contribution to provident 
fund, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

	 Post-employment benefit plans

	 Defined Contribution plans

	� Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 
scheme for eligible employees in the form of provident 
fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such 
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes 
as the Company does not carry any further obligations, 
apart from the contributions made.

	 Defined benefit plans

	� The Company operates defined benefit plans - gratuity 
fund.

	� The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect 
of its defined benefit plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method.

	� The present value of the said obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, 
using market yields of government bonds that have 
tenure approximating the tenures of the related liability.

	� The interest income / (expense) are calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit 
liability or asset. The net interest income / (expense) on 
the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognised in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss.

	� Remeasurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the Standalone Statement 
of Changes in Equity and in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

	� Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or 
loss as past service cost.

	 Short-term employee benefit

	� All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Short term employee benefits 
are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted 
amount in the statement of profit and loss of the year in 
which the related service is rendered.
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	� Provision for compensation absence is determined on 
the basis of leave credit balance of individual employee 
as at year end and last drawn salary and is charged to 
statement of profit and loss for the year. 

2.18	Financial instruments

	� A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 Financial assets

	 Initial recognition and initial measurement

	� Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, 
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and 
fair value through profit or loss. The classification of 
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the 
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics 
and the Company’s business model for managing 
them. The Company initially measures a financial asset 
at its fair value plus transaction cost, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Classification and subsequent measurement

	� For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified in four categories:

	 -	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

	 -	� Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

	 -	� Debt instruments, derivatives and equity 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

	 -	 Equity instruments

	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

	� A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if 
both the following conditions are met:

	 a)	� The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

	 b)	� Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding.

	� After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

	� A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both 
of the following criteria are met:

	 a)	� The objective of the business model is achieved 
both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and

	 b)	� The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely 
payments of principle & interest ( SPPI ).

	� Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category 
are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in 
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
Company recognises interest income, impairment 
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in 
the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the 
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit 
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR 
method.

	 Debt instrument at FVTPL

	� FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any 
debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL.

	� In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt 
instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election 
is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred 
to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not 
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

	� Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Equity investments

	� Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried 
at cost. All other equity investments in scope of Ind 
AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading and contingent consideration 
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For 
all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

	� If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument 
as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the 
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OCI. There is no recycling of amounts from OCI to the 
statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative 
gain or loss within equity.

	� Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. 

	 Derecognition

	� A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the 
Company’s balance sheet) when:

	 -	� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
have expired, or

	 -	� The Company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

		  (a)	� the Company has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

		  (b)	� the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset but has transferred 
control of the asset.

	� When the Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to 
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Company also recognises an associated liability.

	� The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained.

	� Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 
and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
Company could be required to repay.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	� In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies 
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

	 a)	� Financial assets that are debt instruments, and 
are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank 
balance

	 b)	� Financial assets that are debt instruments and are 
measured as at FVTOCI

	 c)	� Trade receivables or any contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset that 
result from transactions that are within the 
scope of Ind AS 115 (referred to as ‘contractual 
revenue receivables’ in these standalone financial 
statements)

		�  The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

		  - 	 Trade receivables and

		  - 	 Other receivables

		�  The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, 
right from its initial recognition.

		�  For recognition of impairment loss on other 
financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then 
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

		�  Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses 
resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 
12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL 
which results from default events that are possible 
within 12 months after the reporting date.

		�  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), 
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating 
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

		  - 	� All contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (including prepayment, extension, 
call and similar options) over the expected life 
of the financial instrument. However, in rare 
cases when the expected life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then 
the entity is required to use the remaining 
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contractual term of the financial instrument.

		  - 	� Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral 
to the contractual terms.

		  - 	� Financial assets measured as at amortised 
cost and contractual revenue receivables: 
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an 
integral part of the measurement of those 
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance 
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the 
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from 
the gross carrying amount.

	 Financial liabilities

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	� Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, 
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate.

	� All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value 
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

	� The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

	 Subsequent measurement

	� The measurement of financial liabilities depends on 
their classification, as described below:

	� Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	� Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 
category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined 
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective hedging instruments.

	� Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Loans and borrowings

	� After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.

	� Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 Derecognition

	� A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	� Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the standalone balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.19	Cash and cash equivalents

	� The Company considers all highly liquid financial 
instruments, which are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value and having original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be 
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of balances with banks which are unrestricted for 
withdrawal and usage.

	� For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company’s cash management.

2.20	 Dividend to Equity shareholders

	� The Company recognises a liability to make cash 
distributions to equity holders when the distribution 
is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the 
discretion of the Company.

2.21	Earnings per share

	� Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per 
share are the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders.
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	� For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except 
where the results would be anti-dilutive.

2.22	Segment reporting

	� Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 
108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and 
allocates the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments. Inter 
segment sales and transfers are reflected at market 
prices.

	� Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets 
and segment liabilities have been identified to segments 
based on their relationship to the operating activities of 
the segment. Inter segment revenue is accounted based 
on transactions which are primarily determined based 
on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets 
and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole 
and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable 
basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / 
expenses / assets / liabilities”.

2A.	� Critical accounting judgements and key sources of 
estimation uncertainty

	� The preparation of the standalone financial statements 
in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date 
of the standalone financial statements and the reported 
amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years 
presented. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors 
that are relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

	� The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	 (i)	 Critical Judgements

		�  In the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies, management has made 
the following judgements, which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the standalone financial statements:

		  Contingences and commitments

		�  In the normal course of business, contingent 
liabilities may arise from litigations and other 
claims against the Company. Where the potential 
liabilities have a low probability of crystallising 
or are very difficult to quantify reliably, these are 
considered as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities 
are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for 
in the standalone financial statements. Although 
there can be no assurance regarding the final 
outcome of the legal proceedings, these are not 
expected to have a materially adverse impact on 
our financial position or profitability.

	 (ii)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

		�  The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below.

		  Taxes

		�  There are many transactions and calculations 
undertaken during the ordinary course of business 
for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these 
matters is different from the amounts initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the current 
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which 
the tax determination is made. The assessment of 
probability involves estimation of several factors 
including future taxable income.

		  Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

		�  A liability in respect of defined benefit plans is 
recognised in the balance sheet and is measured 
as the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value 
of the plan’s assets. The present value of the 
defined benefit obligation is based on expected 
future payments at the reporting date, calculated 
annually by independent actuaries. Consideration 
is given to expected future salary levels, experience 
of employee departures and periods of service.

		  Impairment of financial assets

		�  The Company assesses impairment based on 
expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade 
receivables. The Company uses a provision matrix 
to determine impairment loss allowance on the 
portfolio of trade and other receivables. The 
provision matrix is based on its historically observed 
default rates over the expected life of the trade and 
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other receivable and is adjusted for forward looking 
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes in 
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

		  Impairment of non- financial assets	

		�  The Company assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessment of the time value of money and the risk 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 
cost of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

		�  Provision against obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories

		�  The Company reviews the condition of its inventories 
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no 
longer suitable for sale or use. Company estimates 
the net realisable value for such inventories based 
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current 
market conditions. The Company carries out an 
inventory review at each balance sheet date and 
makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving 
items. The Company reassesses the estimation on 
each balance sheet date.

		  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

		�  The Company reviews the useful life of property, 
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting 
period. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expense in future periods.

		  Liability for sales return	

		�  In making judgment for liability for sales return, 
the management considered the detailed criteria 
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of 

goods set out in Ind AS 115 and in particular, 
whether the Company had transferred to the buyer 
the significant risk and rewards of ownership of 
the goods. Following the detailed quantification 
of the Company’s liability towards sales return, 
the management is satisfied that significant 
risk and rewards have been transferred and that 
recognition of the revenue in the current year is 
appropriate, in conjunction with the recognition of 
an appropriate liability for sales return.

		�  Accruals for estimated product returns, which 
are based on historical experience of actual sales 
returns and adjustment on account of current 
market scenario is considered by Company to be 
reliable estimate of future sales returns.

	 (iii)	 Recent accounting pronouncement

		  ·	 Standards issued but not yet effective

			�   The Company has applied all Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and 
amendments effective for the financial year 
ended 31 March, 2025, as notified by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The 
following amendments, effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 01 
April, 2024, were assessed and determined 
to have no material impact on the Company’s 
financial statements due to the nature of its 
operations:

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 116 (Leases) related 
to sale and leaseback transactions.

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 107 (Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures) related to supplier 
finance arrangements.

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 1 (Presentation of 
Financial Statements) related to classification 
of liabilities as current or non-current.

			�   As of the date of authorisation of these 
financial statements, no new standards or 
amendments have been issued by the MCA 
that are not yet effective for the financial year 
ended 31 March, 2025. The Company will 
continue to monitor developments in Ind AS 
and assess their impact on future financial 
statements.

			�   There are no  specific MCA notifications or 
ICAI announcements that  indicate new Ind 
AS standards or amendments issued with 
an effective date beyond 01 April, 2025, that 
would apply to 2025-26 or later.
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3A. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(` Lakhs)
Office 

equipments
Furniture 

and 
fixtures

Motor cars Computers Leasehold 
improvements

Electrical 
installation

Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2023  220.38  597.71  75.49  33.87  497.16  199.27  1,623.88 

Additions  2.86  0.31  35.25  4.72  -    -    43.14 

Disposals  -    -    -    (6.57)  -    -    (6.57)

At 31 March, 2024  223.24  598.02  110.74  32.02  497.16  199.27  1,660.45 

Accumulated depreciation

At 01 April, 2023  213.43  291.19  5.78  8.28  442.48  176.02  1,137.18 

Depreciation charge during 
the year  6.71  65.16  11.23  14.04  44.20  18.52  159.86 

Disposals  -    -    -    (6.57)  -    -    (6.57)

At 31 March, 2024  220.14  356.35  17.01  15.75  486.68  194.54  1,290.47 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2023  6.95  306.52  69.71  25.59  54.68  23.25  486.70 

At 31 March, 2024  3.10  241.67  93.73  16.27  10.48  4.73  369.98 

(` Lakhs)

Office 
equipments

Furniture 
and fixtures

Motor cars Computers Leasehold 
improvements

Electrical 
installation

Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2024  223.24  598.02  110.74  32.02  497.16  199.27  1,660.45 

Additions  -    -    -    10.57  -    -    10.57 

Disposals  (3.89)  -    -    (9.72)  -    -    (13.61)

At 31 March, 2025  219.35  598.02  110.74  32.87  497.16  199.27  1,657.41 

Accumulated depreciation

At 01 April, 2024  220.14  356.35  17.01  15.75  486.68  194.54  1,290.47 

Depreciation charge during 
the year

 0.81  65.18  15.42  10.60  10.48  4.73  107.21 

Disposals  (3.89)  -    -    (9.72)  -    -    (13.61)

At 31 March, 2025  217.06  421.53  32.43  16.63  497.16  199.27  1,384.07 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2024  3.10  241.67  93.73  16.27  10.48  4.73  369.98 

At 31 March, 2025  2.29  176.49  78.31  16.24  -    -    273.34 

3B. RIGHT OF USE ASSET

(` Lakhs)
Leasehold premises

Cost
At 01 April, 2023  -   
Additions  2,154.05 
Disposals  -   
At 31 March, 2024  2,154.05 
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(` Lakhs)
Leasehold premises

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April, 2023  -   
Depreciation charge during the year  718.02 
Disposals  -   
At 31 March, 2024  718.02 
Net carrying value 
At 31 March, 2023  -   
At 31 March, 2024  1,436.03 

(` Lakhs)

Leasehold premises

Cost

At 01 April, 2024  2,154.05 

Additions  -   

Disposals  -   

At 31 March, 2025  2,154.05 

Accumulated depreciation

At 01 April, 2024  718.02 

Depreciation charge during the year  718.02 

Disposals  -   

At 31 March, 2025  1,436.04 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2024  1,436.03 

At 31 March, 2025  718.01 

The Company’s leases comprise of leasehold premises and does not have any other assets, either on short-term leases having 
a lease term of 12 months or less, or leases of low-value assets.

4A. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(` Lakhs)

Computer 
software

Product 
registration and 

licences

Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2023  112.48  1,63,478.38  1,63,590.86 

Additions  -    30,600.20  30,600.20 

Disposals*  -    (4,865.22)  (4,865.22)

At 31 March, 2024  112.48  1,89,213.36  1,89,325.84 

Accumulated amortisation

At 01 April, 2023  93.47  97,197.64  97,291.11 

Amortisation during the year  13.66  25,816.29  25,829.95 

Disposals*  -    (2,764.08)  (2,764.08)

At 31 March, 2024  107.13  1,20,249.85  1,20,356.98 

Net carrying value 
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(` Lakhs)

Computer 
software

Product 
registration and 

licences

Total

At 31 March, 2023  19.01  66,280.74  66,299.75 

At 31 March, 2024  5.35  68,963.51  68,968.86 

(` Lakhs)

Computer 
software

Product 
registration and 

licences

Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2024  112.48  1,89,213.36  1,89,325.84 

Additions  -    34,393.80  34,393.80 

Disposals*  -    (3,309.70)  (3,309.70)

At 31 March, 2025  112.48  2,20,297.46  2,20,409.94 

Accumulated amortisation

At 01 April, 2024  107.13  1,20,249.85  1,20,356.98 

Amortisation during the year  2.76  26,633.20  26,635.96 

Disposals*  -    (607.25)  (607.25)

At 31 March, 2025  109.89  1,46,275.80  1,46,385.69 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2024  5.35  68,963.51  68,968.86 

At 31 March, 2025  2.59  74,021.66  74,024.25 

*The data compensation elements of product registration was initially capitalised based on management assessment of 
the amounts payable. The gross block of product registration and licenses have been reduced consequent to negotiations / 
arbitration between contracting parties by ` 2,623.32 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,821.99 Lakhs)

*The Company has written off certain assets during the current year having net written down value of ` 79.13 Lakhs (31 March, 
2024: ` 279.15 Lakhs)  based on internal assessment.

4B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(` Lakhs)

Intangible assets 
under development

At 01 April, 2023  20,386.94 

Additions  42,127.82 

Disposals  (3,628.25)

Capitalised  (30,600.20)

At 31 March, 2024  28,286.31 

(` Lakhs)

Intangible assets 
under development

At 01 April, 2024  28,286.31 

Additions  41,985.26 

Disposals  (6,817.08)

Capitalised  (34,393.80)
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(` Lakhs)

Intangible assets 
under development

At 31 March, 2025  29,060.69 

Intangible assets under development comprise of costs incurred towards creating product dossiers, fees paid to registration 
consultants, application fees to the ministries, data compensation costs, data call-in costs and fees for task-force membership.

4C. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(i)	 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
Projects Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years

Total

Product Registration  9,408.52  6,625.83  5,323.90  6,928.06  28,286.31 
Total  9,408.52  6,625.83  5,323.90  6,928.06  28,286.31 

(ii)	 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)
Projects Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than  
3 years

Total

Product Registration  12,327.26  8,042.22  4,581.23  4,109.98  29,060.69 
Total  12,327.26  8,042.22  4,581.23  4,109.98  29,060.69 

a)	 For Intangible assets under development, there are no such projects where activity has been temporarily suspended

b)	� For Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original 
plan :

	� The major business of the Company (80% approximately) is sale of Agrochemical products in more than 70 countries 
around the world. These products are not freely tradable or saleable. These products need to be approved by the 
competent authorities and ministries independently in every country where the product is intended to be marketed. 
The process of approval is known as ‘Registration’ of the product and its form as an intangible asset of the Company. 
The process of registration involves identification of the product, basic and applied research, field trials, data generation, 
evaluation and approval by the authorities at each step. The nature of these processes makes it highly unpredictable in 
terms of cost as well as timeline. The timeline can vary for 6 months to 8 years approx. The varying demand from the 
authorities during the process of registration also adds to the uncertainty of cost and timeline. As of 31 March, 2025, there 
are 1,014 (31 March, 2024: 1,095) product registrations (numbers) in pipeline across geographies.

5. INVESTMENTS

Non-current investments

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Investment in equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries (Unquoted), carried at cost
-Axis Crop Science Private Limited 
50,00,000 (31 March, 2024: 50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up

 544.00  544.00 

-Provision for investment in Axis Crop Science Private Limited  (544.00)  (544.00)
 -    -   

-Nihon Agro Service Kabushiki Kaisha  
10 (31 March, 2024: 10) equity shares of JPY 10,000  each fully paid 

 0.59  0.59 
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(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
-Sharda Ukraine LLC  
62,500 (31 March, 2024: 62,500) equity shares of UAH 1 each fully paid-up

 4.25  4.25 

-Sharda Del Ecuador CIA. LTDA.  
398 (31 March, 2024: 398) equity shares of US$ 1 each fully paid-up

 0.20  0.20 

-Sharda Peru SAC  
1,999 (31 March, 2024: 1,999) equity share of PEN 1 each fully paid-up

 0.33  0.33 

-Sharda Swiss SARL  
20 (31 March, 2024: 20) equity shares of CHF 1,000 each fully paid-up 

 8.62  8.62 

-Sharda Do Brasil Comercio De Produtos Quimicos E Agroquimicos LTDA.  
30,690 (31 March, 2024: 30,690) equity shares of BRL 1 each fully paid-up

 8.20  8.20 

-Sharda Balkan Agrochemicals Limited  
150 (31 March, 2024: 150) equity shares of EURO 30 each fully paid-up

 2.82  2.82 

-Shardaserb DO.O.  
1 (31 March, 2024: 1) Partly paid-up equity share of EURO 500 each (50% of face 
value has been paid)

 0.17  0.17 

-Sharda Agrochem Dooel Skopje 
1 (31 March, 2024: 1) equity share of Euro 5,000 each fully paid-up

 3.67  3.67 

-Sharda Spain, S.L. (refer note 'c' below) 
Nil (31 March, 2024: 3,050) equity shares of EURO 1 each fully paid-up

 -    1.96 

-Sharda Costa Rica S.A. (refer note 'a' & 'c' below) 
Nil (31 March, 2024: 99) equity shares of COLON 20 each fully paid-up

 -    0.00 

-Sharda De Guatemala S.A.  
49 (31 March, 2024: 49) equity shares of GTQ 100 each fully paid-up

 0.34  0.34 

-Sharda International FZCO (refer note 'b' below) 
200 equity shares of  AED 1,000 each fully paid-up  (31 March, 2024: 2 shares of 
AED 1,00,000 each fully paid up)

 27.68  27.68 

-Sharda Italia SRL  
9,900 (31 March, 2024: 9,900) equity shares of EURO 1 each fully paid-up

 7.74  7.74 

-Sharda Hungary Kft  
1 (31 March, 2024: 1) equity share of HUF 30,00,000 each fully paid-up

 7.23  7.23 

-Sharda Cropchem Espana, S.L.  
61 (31 March, 2024: 61) equity shares of EURO 50 each fully paid

 2.59  2.59 

-Sharda Poland SP. ZO.O.  
588 (31 March, 2024: 588) equity shares of PLN 50 each fully paid

 3.97  3.97 

-Sharda Taiwan Limited  
10,000 (31 March, 2024: 10,000) equity shares of Taiwan $ 10 each fully paid

 2.04  2.04 

Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited 
8,300 (31 March, 2024: 8,300) equity shares of THB 100 each fully paid

 17.29  17.29 

Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited 
1,500 (31 March, 2024: 1,500) Preferential shares of THB 100 each fully paid

 3.13  3.13 

-Sharda Cropchem Tunisia SARL  
99 (31 March, 2024: 99) equity shares of EURO 10 each fully paid

 0.75  0.75 

-Sharda Maroc SARL 
998 (31 March, 2024: 998) equity shares of EURO 10 each fully paid

 8.11  8.11 

Total  109.72  111.68 

Notes:

a.	 Amount rounded off in Lakhs. The actual amount of investment is Nil (31 March, 2024: ` 206).

b.	� The Company name is changed from “Sharda International DMCC” to “Sharda International FZCO” w.e.f. 28 June, 2024 
and share capital is restricted to 200 shares of AED 1,000 per share (31 March, 2024: 2 shares of AED 1,00,000 per share).

c.	� The Company has written off investments of ̀  1.96 Lakhs and ̀  0.00 Lakhs in respect of Sharda Spain. S.L & Sharda Costa 
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Rica S.A. respectively on account of closure of these companies.

Current investments

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Investments carried at fair value through statement of  profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in mutual funds (Quoted)
-Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund  - Growth Regular Plan 
4,49,580 (31 March, 2024: 8,94,860) units of ` 10 each

 1,632.27  3,015.32 

Kotak Money Market Fund -Growth (Regular Plan) 
50,838 (31 March, 2024: 65,567) units of ` 1,000 each

 2,239.90  2,682.24 

Nippon India Money Market Fund (Growth Plan) 
29,227 (31 March, 2024: 29,227) units of ` 1000 each

 1,189.80  1,104.55 

-Union Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growth 
Nil (31 March, 2024:  24,72,526) units of ` 10 each

 -    341.01 

-Union Medium Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth  
Nil (31 March, 2024: 19,99,900) units of ` 10 each

 -    233.74 

-Union Hybrid Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 
9,99,940 (31 March, 2024: 9,99,940) units of ` 10 each

 167.59  158.89 

-Union Multi Asset Allocation Fund - Regular - Growth 
9,99,950 (31 March, 2024: Nil) units of ` 10 each

 99.89  -   

- Bandhan Ultra Short term Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 
2,41,79,737 (31 March, 2024: 1,63,78,391) units of ` 10 each

 3,612.65  2,278.32 

- ICICI Prudential - Equity Arbitrage - Growth 
69,81,535 (31 March, 2024: 96,61,346) units of ` 10 each

 2,356.80  3,038.01 

- DSP Arbitrage Fund  - Regular Growth 
2,13,02,727 (31 March, 2024: Nil) units of ` 10 each

 3,134.70  -   

- SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund GR 
48,60,465 (31 March, 2024: 98,02,932) units of ` 10 each

 1,616.40  3,037.79 

(A)  16,050.00  15,889.87 
Investment In Bonds carried at fair value (Quoted)
- HDB Financial Services Limited SR 7.7% NCD 11AG25 
 200 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 1,997.91  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 6.24% Bonds 21/09/30 
 250 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,479.43  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 7.74% Bonds Perpetual 
 100 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 929.53  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 7.73% Bonds Perpetual 
 240 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,452.59  -   

- Cholamandalam Investment & Finanace Co. Ltd. 8.30% DB 12DC25 
 250 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,505.78  -   

- Shriram Finance Limited SR PDD 9.25% NCD 19DC25 
 3000 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 1,00,000 each

 3,017.49  -   

(B)  13,382.73  -   
Total  29,432.73  15,889.87 

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  109.72  111.68 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments  29,432.73  15,889.87 
Investments carried at cost  109.72  111.68 
Investments carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)  29,432.73  15,889.87 
Investments impaired  544.00  544.00 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 177

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25176

6. LOANS

Non-current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good

Loans to related party (Refer note 34 and 39)  160.00  210.00 
Total  160.00  210.00 

7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good 
Security deposit  504.10  507.70 
Balance in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of more than twelve 
months*

 8.28  -   

 512.38  507.70 

* Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 0.11 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` Nil)

* There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 8.28 Lakhs 
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) against credit facilities availed by the Company.

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
In fixed deposit accounts

with balance maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months*  3,721.68  12,235.41 
Unsecured, considered good 
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contracts (refer note 35)  -    14.20 
Interest accrued on Bonds  429.13  -   

Total  4,150.81  12,249.61 

* Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 103.48 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 688.63 Lakhs)

* There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 3,721.68 Lakhs 
(31 March, 2024: ` 12,021.44 Lakhs) against credit facilities availed by the Company.

7A. OTHER ASSETS

Non-current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good 
Goods and service tax receivable  826.21  826.21 
Statutory dues receivable from government authorities  539.23  384.35 
Export incentive receivable  273.02  260.91 

 1,638.46  1,471.46 
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Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to vendors for supply of goods and services  135.35  61.95 
Right of recoveries against expected sales return  4,028.19  5,087.15 
Goods and service tax receivable  3,189.99  1,141.63 
Statutory dues receivable from government authorities  980.13  483.01 
Prepaid expenses  341.70  188.91 

Total  8,675.36  6,962.65 

8A. INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Advance tax [Net of provision for income tax of ̀  25,538.01 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: 
` 46,230.93 Lakhs)]

 6,019.36  7,028.92 

 6,019.36  7,028.92 

8B. TAX EXPENSE

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024 are:

Income tax expenses in the statement of profit and loss comprises of

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge  4,665.24  2,525.05 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of earlier years  145.27  364.23 
Deferred taxes:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  2,099.68  939.32 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit & Loss  6,910.19  3,828.60 

Income tax (expense) / benefit recognised in OCI

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in OCI during the year:

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Net (gain) / loss on remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans  (2.32)  3.79 

Total  (2.32)  3.79 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate (ETR)

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Profit from operations before income taxes  34,283.83  17,504.89 
Tax @ 25.168% (31 March, 2024: 25.168%) (Indian statutory income tax rate)  8,628.55  4,405.63 
Tax effect on income not taxable/taxable at different rates for tax purposes:

Adjustment of tax of earlier years  (145.27)  (364.23)
Effect of deduction with respect to dividend income  1,362.40  681.20 
Others  687.08  465.64 

 1,904.21  782.61 
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure  183.68  204.65 
Others  2.17  0.93 

 185.85  205.58 
Income tax expense  6,910.19  3,828.60 

9. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Deferred tax assets on:
Provision for gratuity  10.27  38.96 
Provision for investment in subsidiary  124.47  124.47 
Lease liability  195.29  375.62 
Provision for doubtful debts  549.04  570.13 
Provision for inventories  101.16  471.04 
Provision for Sales Return and Purchase Return (Net)  333.72  532.30 
Provision for Deferred Sales  203.63  255.74 
Others  73.35  24.65 
Gross deferred tax assets  1,590.93  2,392.91 
Deferred tax liabilities on:
Tangible and intangible assets  18,458.09  17,180.06 
Lease assets  180.71  361.42 
Unrealised gain / (loss) on investment carried at fair value through statement of 
profit and loss

 332.64  129.94 

Gross deferred tax liabilities  18,971.44  17,671.42 
Net deferred tax (liabilities)  (17,380.51)  (15,278.51)

In respect of Deferred taxes, all items are attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax benefits 
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which, those deductible temporary differences can be realised.

The net movement in the deferred tax for the year ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Net deferred tax (liabilities) at the beginning of the year  (15,278.51)  (14,342.98)
(Charge) relating to temporary differences  (2,099.68)  (939.32)
Temporary differences on other comprehensive Income  (2.32)  3.79 
Net deferred tax (liabilities) at the end of the year  (17,380.51)  (15,278.51)

10. INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE)

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Raw materials including packing materials [Stock in transit ` 4361.45 Lakhs  
(31 March, 2024: ` 2,243.95 Lakhs)]

 19,943.36  27,777.53 

Finished Goods [Stock in transit ` 15,645.85 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 9,914.15 
Lakhs)]

 68,602.25  58,766.55 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 179

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25178

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Traded goods [Stock in transit ` 49.97 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 159.28 Lakhs)]  304.77  2,878.59 

Total  88,850.38  89,422.68 

Notes:

i)	� Amount of write down of inventories to net realisable value and other provisions / losses recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss as an expense is ` 12,096.54 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 12,220.54 Lakhs).

ii)	� Fund and non-fund based credit facilities availed by the Company from bank is secured by first paripassu charge on 
inventories (including stock-in-trade, and stock-in-transit) and trade receivables.

11. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
- considered good - Unsecured  1,79,341.83  1,46,264.91 
- significant increase in credit risk  2,495.11  2,559.16 

 1,81,836.94  1,48,824.07 
Less: Allowances for credit losses  (2,495.11)  (2,559.16)

Total  1,79,341.83  1,46,264.91 
Trade receivables includes:
Dues from related parties (refer note 34)  74,186.13  51,443.83 
Others  1,05,155.70  94,821.08 

Total  1,79,341.83  1,46,264.91 

For the Company’s credit risk management process, refer note 37.

Fund and non-fund based credit facilities availed by the Company from bank is secured by first paripassu charge on inventories 
(including stock-in-trade, and stock-in-transit) and trade receivables.

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Balances with banks

in current accounts  6,447.00  3,281.66 
Cash on hand  0.24  0.51 

Total  6,447.24  3,282.17 

13. BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
In fixed deposit accounts

with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 
months*

 9,256.38  -   

In earmarked accounts
Unpaid dividend accounts  57.20  57.53 

Total  9,313.58  57.53 

*Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 308.14 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` Nil)

*There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 9,028.14 Lakhs  
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) against credit facilities availed by the Company.
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14.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Authorised share capital 
10,50,00,000 (31 March, 2024: 10,50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  10,500.00  10,500.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
9,02,20,495 (31 March, 2024: 9,02,20,495) equity shares of ` 10/- each  9,022.05  9,022.05 

(a) 	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

	 Equity shares

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
No. of Shares  ` Lakhs  No. of Shares  ` Lakhs 

At the beginning of the year  9,02,20,495  9,022.05  9,02,20,495  9,022.05 
Outstanding at the end of the year  9,02,20,495  9,022.05  9,02,20,495  9,022.05 

(b)	 Terms / rights attached to equity shares

	� The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards to dividends and 
share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. 
The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up 
equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums 
presently payable have not been paid.

	 Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

	� In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
No. of Shares  % holding  

in the class 
No. of Shares  % holding  

in the class 
Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna  1,40,52,686 15.58%  1,40,52,686 15.58%
Mrs Sharda R. Bubna  1,40,91,147 15.62%  1,40,91,147 15.62%
Mr Ashish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%
Mr Manish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%
HDFC Mutual Fund  65,52,672 7.26%  73,84,480 8.18%
Total  6,50,56,505 72.12%  6,58,88,313 73.04%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership 
of shares.

(d) 	 Shareholding of Promoters:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024 % Change
Promoter's Name No. of 

Shares
 % of total 

shares 
No. of 

Shares
 % of total 

shares 
Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna  1,40,52,686 15.58%  1,40,52,686 15.58%  -   
Mrs Sharda R. Bubna  1,40,91,147 15.62%  1,40,91,147 15.62%  -   
Mr Ashish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%  -   
Mr Manish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%  -   
Mrs Seema A Bubna  45,00,000 4.99%  45,00,000 4.99%  -   
Mrs Anisha M Bubna  45,00,000 4.99%  45,00,000 4.99%  -   
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(e) 	 In the period of five years, immediately preceding March, 2025

	� The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without payment being received in cash or bonus shares 
or bought back any equity shares.

(f) 	 Distribution made and proposed

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Cash dividend on equity shares declared:
Interim dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 3.00 
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) per share

 2,706.61  -   

Proposed dividend on equity shares:
Final cash dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 6 (31 March, 2024: 
` 3.00) per share

 5,413.23  2,706.61 

Cash dividends on equity shares distributed and paid:
Interim dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 3.00 
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) per share

 2,706.61  -   

Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2024: ` 3.00 (31 
March, 2023: ` 3.00) per share

 2,706.61  2,706.61 

15. OTHER EQUITY

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Capital reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,491.29  1,491.29 
Balance at the end of the year  1,491.29  1,491.29 
Securities premium 
Balance at the beginning of the year  2,148.55  2,148.55 
Balance at the end of the year  2,148.55  2,148.55 
General Reserve  
Balance at the beginning of the year  664.93  664.93 
Balance at the end of the year  664.93  664.93 
Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,97,855.62  1,86,897.20 
Add: Profit for the year  27,373.64  13,676.29 
Add: Other comprehensive income / (loss)  6.90  (11.26)
Less: Payment of dividends  5,413.23  2,706.61 
Balance at the end of the year  2,19,822.93  1,97,855.62 

 Total  2,24,127.70  2,02,160.39 

Capital Reserve - 

The Company recognises profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to 
capital reserve.

Securities Premium - 

Where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the 
premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus 
shares to its members out of the securities premium and the Company can use this for buy-back of shares.

General Reserve - 

General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit 
and loss. The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of fully paid-up and not paid-up bonus shares.

Retained earnings -

The amount represent profits that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders.
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16. TRADE PAYABLES

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  
(refer note 41)*

 509.23  694.66 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises*

Related parties (refer note 34)  -    23.98 
Others  1,20,332.98  86,256.99 

Total  1,20,842.21  86,975.63 

*The Company has received intimation from suppliers regarding their status under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” based on which disclosure as required under the Act has been made.

Trade payable ageing schedule as per amendment in revised schedule III for 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)
Not Yet Due Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 

years
Total

Trade payables
MSME  230.75  272.69  5.79  -    -    509.23 
Other  86,290.20  32,764.13  800.40  478.25  -    1,20,332.98 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total of Trade Payables  1,20,842.21 
Accruals  -   
Total  1,20,842.21 

Trade payable ageing schedule as per amendment in schedule III for 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
Not Yet Due Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 

years
Total

Trade payables
MSME  114.30  575.74  4.62  -    -    694.66 
Other  59,238.88  26,490.14  548.33  3.61  -    86,280.96 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total of Trade Payables  86,975.63 
Accruals  -   
Total  86,975.63 

17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Non-current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Creditors for capital purchases  6,301.38  5,838.00 

 Total  6,301.38  5,838.00 
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Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unclaimed dividend*  57.20  57.53 
Creditors for capital purchases#  48,565.05  49,193.24 
Forward Contract  44.96  -   
Directors commission  937.53  493.76 
Salaries and bonus  471.50  430.90 

 Total  50,076.24  50,175.43 

*An amount of ` 0.51 Lakhs & 0.37 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1.13 Lakhs & 0.46 Lakhs) has been transferred on 15 April, 2024 & 
10 December, 2024 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013.
#Includes principal amount ` 212.04 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,122.83 Lakhs) and interest due thereon ` Nil (31 March, 2024: 
` Nil) remaining unpaid to micro enterprises and small enterprises.

18. PROVISIONS

Non-current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Employee benefits obligation
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)  -    114.46 

 Total  -    114.46 

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)  40.80  40.32 
Provision for compensated absences  66.28  65.70 
Expected return from customers  5,367.34  7,209.69 

 Total  5,474.42  7,315.71 

19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Advance from customers (refer note 33)  372.67  541.50 
Reward scheme liability  1,386.76  1,813.84 
Book overdraft  401.37  371.55 
Statutory liabilities (including provident fund, tax deducted at source and others)  2,566.85  1,420.82 

 Total  4,727.65  4,147.71 

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers (refer note 33)  3,65,661.90  2,60,001.09 
Other operating revenue

Export incentives  313.72  227.54 
Miscellaneous receipts  134.36  38.05 

Total  3,66,109.98  2,60,266.68 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 185

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25184

21. OTHER INCOME

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Interest income on

Bank deposits carried at amortised cost  946.91  883.58 
Loan to subsidiary  7.95  9.59 
Income tax refund  1,159.08  -   
Delay payment from customer  18.71  453.20 
Bonds  611.21  -   

Reversal of provision on doubtful debts  83.82  1,254.28 
Dividend received on investments

On investment in subsidiary  12,374.21  21,478.96 
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back  526.29  2,123.82 
Liabilities no longer required written back on creditors for capital purchases  268.61  475.59 
Profit on sale of mutual funds  660.46  15.53 
Profit on redemption of Bonds  12.59  -   
Rental Income  1.20  -   
Gain on financial instruments at fair value  805.37  384.04 

Total  17,476.41  27,078.59 

22. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year  27,777.53  37,120.27 
Add: Purchases  1,69,799.12  1,39,030.76 

 1,97,576.65  1,76,151.03 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  (19,943.36)  (27,777.53)

Total  1,77,633.29  1,48,373.50 

Purchase of stock-in-trade

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Agrochemicals  88,591.25  39,648.81 
Non-agrochemicals  10.11  19.12 

Total  88,601.36  39,667.93 

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK IN TRADE

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Inventories at the end of the year

Stock in trade  304.77  2,878.59 
Finished goods  68,602.25  58,766.55 

Total  68,907.02  61,645.14 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in trade  2,878.59  3,626.85 
Finished goods  58,766.55  65,255.02 

Total  61,645.14  68,881.87 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade  (7,261.88)  7,236.73 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 185

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25184

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus  4,115.14  3,298.76 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)  3.49  4.48 
Gratuity expenses (refer note 29)  50.01  53.38 
Staff welfare expenses  9.10  7.90 

Total  4,177.74  3,364.52 

25. FINANCE COSTS

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Interest expenses on

Borrowing from bank  -    9.25 
Lease liabilities  93.50  148.41 
Delayed payment of statutory dues  0.13  3.70 
Others*  -    8.22 

Total  93.63  169.58 

*Finance cost - others is relating to interest to MSME vendors.

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3A)  107.21  159.86 
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (refer note 3B)  718.02  718.02 
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)  26,635.96  25,829.95 

Total  27,461.19  26,707.83 

27. OTHER EXPENSES

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Freight and forwarding expenses  8,608.91  6,486.76 

Rates and taxes  382.41  726.30 

Insurance charges  1,017.86  1,436.50 

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings  1.40  1.65 

Others  33.07  34.62 

Advertising and sales promotion  2,218.27  1,210.13 

Sales commission  1,409.38  453.40 

Travelling and conveyance  784.89  754.58 

Communication expenses  93.00  51.81 

Office expenses  868.42  951.97 

Legal and professional fees  31,531.72  25,485.29 

Directors sitting fees  18.00  22.05 

Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 42)  729.80  810.72 
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Donation  8.60  2.41 

Payment to auditor (refer note 'a' below)  74.97  87.73 

Bad debts (net)  303.89  24.69 

Investments in subsidiaries written off  1.96  -   

Bank charges  1,819.89  1,912.85 

Discard / write-off of intangible assets and intangible assets under development  6,808.27  3,486.36 

Miscellaneous expenses  60.25  144.05 

Foreign exchange loss (net)  1,822.26  236.42 

Total  58,597.23  44,320.29 

Note a:

Details of payment to auditor :

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
As auditors

Audit fees (31 March, 2024: includes ` 11.00 Lakhs relating to previous year)  60.00  71.87 

Reimbursement of expense & admin charges  8.83  8.20 

In other capacities

Other services - certification  6.14  7.66 

Total  74.97  87.73 

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (` Lakhs)  27,373.64  13,676.29 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  9,02,20,495  9,02,20,495 

Earnings per Share

Face value per equity share (`)  10.00  10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (`)  30.34  15.16 

29. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

a) 	 Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying 
employees towards Provident Fund and ESI which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other 
than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 24 under “Contribution to 
provident and other funds”:

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Contribution to employees provident fund  2.81  3.03 
Contribution to ESI  0.68  1.45 

 3.49  4.48 
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b)	 Defined benefit plans

The Company operates one post-employment defined benefit plan  that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an 
employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year 
of completed service at the time of retirement. In case of employees completing longer service periods, the Company’s 
scheme is more favourable as compared to the obligation under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Changes in benefit obligations
Benefit obligations at the beginning of the year  436.47  370.27 
Current service cost  40.32  33.43 
Interest cost  28.14  24.49 
Actuarial (gains) / losses  7.41  21.08 
Benefits paid  (13.53)  (12.78)
Benefit obligations at the end of the year  498.82  436.47 
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  281.69  83.91 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  35.07  10.56 
Contributions  154.78  200.00 
Benefits paid  (13.53)  (12.78)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  458.02  281.69 
Net benefit obligation at the end of the year  40.80  154.78 

	 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Current service cost  40.32  33.43 
Net interest cost  9.69  19.95 
Net gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss  50.01  53.38 

	 Amounts recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Actuarial (gains) / losses  7.41  21.08 
(Return) / loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in the net interest  (16.63)  (6.03)
Total  (9.22)  15.05 

	 Plan assets comprise of the following

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Policy of Insurance 100% 100%

Actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Discount rate 6.75% 7.20%
Expected rate of salary increase (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate
Mortality table Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2006-08)

Indian Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08)
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Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Ultimate Ultimate
Proportion of employees opting for early retirement 2% to 15% 2% to 15%
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable 
to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

	 Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Year 1  96.26  91.24 
Year 2  30.04  23.15 
Year 3  46.34  26.62 
Year 4  62.24  43.44 
Year 5  26.96  57.63 
Year 6 to 10  168.11  148.29 

	 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions 
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

(` Lakhs)
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate varied by 0.5%  479.79  519.34  420.07  454.17 
Future salary growth rate varied by 0.5%  505.32  491.55  442.86  430.37 
Withdrawal rate varied by 10%  503.24  493.93  441.01  431.54 

30. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not 
provided for (Net of capital advances, if any)

 18,105.40  22,924.16 

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024
Income tax matters (refer note (i) below)  10,131.45  14,560.00 

Total  10,131.45  14,560.00 
Note:

i)	 With respect to the income tax liability mentioned above, the demands have arisen due to the disallowance of a claim 
consistently made by the Company across all years. This claim has already been settled in the Company’s favor by the 
Hon’ble ITAT, Mumbai, for earlier years. Accordingly, management believes that these contingent liabilities are unlikely to 
have an adverse impact on the Company, given the favorable rulings by higher authorities in the Company’s own case. 

ii) 	 In respect of service tax matter, CESTAT has passed order in favour of the Company in the month of July 2023, against 
said order the department has preferred an appeal before the High Court, Mumbai. The Company does not expect the 
outcome of the matter stated above to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, result of 
operations or cash flows.
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iii)	 In February 2019, the Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be 
considered to measure obligations under Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Company is opined that there are 
interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any 
probable obligations for past periods. The Company has complied with the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952 from the 
date of the Supreme Court order.

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company contains segment information as per IND AS 108 - Operating Segments 
accordingly separate information is not included in the Standalone financial statement.

33. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER (IND AS 115)

The Company is primarily in the business of export of agrochemicals (technical grade and formulations) and non-agro products 
such as conveyor belts, rubber belts / sheets, dyes and dye intermediates to various countries across the world. The revenue 
is recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon dispatch / delivery. The Company has a 
credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established, the Company does not give 
significant credit period resulting in no significant financing component. The Company, however, has a policy for replacement 
of the damaged goods.

A)	 Reconciliation of revenue recognised from contract liability (Advance from customers)

(` Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Opening contract liability  541.50  283.90 

Add: Addition to contract liability during the year  4,879.78  4,273.60 

Less: Recognised as revenue during the year  (4,585.76)  (3,890.71)

Less: Other adjustments  (462.85)  (125.29)

Closing contract liability  372.67  541.50 

B)	 Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and loss

(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from contract with customer as per contract price  3,82,756.28  2,88,710.19 

Less: Discounts and incentives  (9,211.33)  (9,014.71)

Less: Sales returns / credits / reversals  (7,864.66)  (19,691.29)

Less: Other adjustments  (18.40)  (3.10)

Total  3,65,661.90  2,60,001.09 

C)	 Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers

(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Agrochemicals

Europe  2,11,652.79  1,47,070.36 

Latin America  19,276.14  15,481.79 

North America  1,19,508.85  81,894.57 

Rest of the world  15,208.96  15,525.39 

Total (A)  3,65,646.74  2,59,972.11 
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(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Non-agrochemicals

North America  15.16  29.58 

Rest of the world  -    (0.60)

Total (B)  15.16  28.98 

Total (A)+(B)  3,65,661.90  2,60,001.09 

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A)	 Names of related parties and their relationship

(a) 	 Name of subsidiaries

Company Name Place of 
business/ 
country of 

incorporation

Ownership interest held by the Company
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2024
% %

Axis Crop Science Private Limited India  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Peru SAC Peru  99.95  99.95 
Sharda Del Ecuador CIA. Ltda. Ecuador  99.50  99.50 
Sharda Ukraine LLC Ukraine  100.00  100.00 
Shardaserb D.O.O. Serbia  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Hungary Kft Hungary  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Spain, S.L. (upto 14 February, 2025) Spain  -    100.00 
Sharda Swiss SARL Switzerland  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Do Brasil Comercio De Productos Quimicos E 
Agroquimicos LTDA

Brazil  99.00  99.00 

Sharda Balkan Agrochemicals Limited Greece  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Costa Rica SA (upto 05 September, 2024) Costa Rica  -    99.00 
Sharda De Guatemala, S.A. Guatemala  98.00  98.00 
Sharda Italia SRL Italy  99.00  99.00 
Sharda Cropchem Espana, S.L. Spain  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Poland SP. Z.O.O. Poland  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Taiwan Limited Taiwan  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Cropchem Tunisia SARL Tunisia  99.00  99.00 
Sharda Agrochem Dooel Skopje Macedonia  100.00  100.00 
Nihon Agro Service Kabushiki Kaisha Japan  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited (refer note 'a' below) Thailand  49.00  49.00 
Shardacan Limited Canada  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Dominicana, S.R.L. Dominican 

Republic
 99.00  99.00 

Sharda EL Salvador S.A. DE CV El Salvador  99.00  99.00 
Sharda Cropchem Israel Limited Israel  100.00  100.00 
Sharda USA LLC USA  100.00  100.00 
Sharzam Limited Zambia  99.99  99.99 
Sharda Maroc SARL Morocco  99.80  99.80 
Sharda Agrochem Limited UK  100.00  100.00 
Sharda International FZCO (formerly Sharda International 
DMCC)

UAE  100.00  100.00 

Sharda Benelux BVBA Belgium  100.00  100.00 
Euroazijski Pesticidi D.O.O. Croatia  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Impex Trading LLC (refer note 'b' below) UAE  49.00  49.00 
Siddhivinayak International Limited UAE  100.00  100.00 
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Company Name Place of 
business/ 
country of 

incorporation

Ownership interest held by the Company
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2024
% %

Sharda International Africa (Pty) Ltd South Africa  100.00  100.00 
Sharda Bolivia SRL Bolivia  99.00  99.00 
Sharda Colombia S.A.S. Colombia  99.48  99.48 
Sharda Europe BVBA Belgium  100.00  100.00 
Sharda De Mexico S. De RL DE CV Mexico  99.99  99.99 
Sharpar S.A. Paraguay  90.00  90.00 

Note:

	 a. 	 During the year ended 31 March, 2018, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU’) with 
other shareholders of Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited (an Associate Company). In terms of the said MOU dated 
10 November, 2017, the Company has gained 100% control over Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited as the other 
shareholders shall not be entitled to participate in the profits / losses of the said Company and do not have any 
decision making powers as well. Thus, the said Company has been treated as a subsidiary Company w.e.f. 10 
November, 2017 in the consolidated financial results of the Company for and from the year ended 31 March, 2019 
and has been consolidated in the Financial Statements applying Indian Accounting Standard – 110.

	 b. 	 During the year ended 31 March, 2021, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU’) with 
other shareholders of Sharda Impex Trading LLC (an Associate Company). In terms of the said MOU dated March 
17, 2021, the Company has gained 100% control over Sharda Impex Trading LLC as the other shareholders shall not 
be entitled to participate in the profits / losses of the said Company and do not have any decision making powers as 
well. Thus, the said Company has been treated as a subsidiary Company w.e.f. March 17, 2021 in the consolidated 
financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2021 and has been consolidated in the Financial 
Statements applying Indian Accounting Standard – 110.

(b)	 Key Managerial personnel and their relatives

Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna Chairman & Managing Director

Mrs. Sharda R. Bubna Whole-time Director

Mr Ashish R. Bubna Whole-time Director

Mr Manish R. Bubna Whole-time Director

Mrs. Seema A. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director

Mrs. Anisha M. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director

Ms Kevika A. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director

Mr Purav M. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director

Mr M.S. Sundara Rajan (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director

Mr Shitin Desai (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director

Mr Shobhan M. Thakore (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director

Ms Sonal Desai Independent Director        

Mr HS Upendra Kamath (with effect from 10 May, 2024) Independent Director        

Mr Shalin Divatia (with effect from 10 May, 2024) Independent Director        

Mr Vinod Kumar Kathuria (with effect from 10th May 2024) Independent Director        

Mr Shailesh A. Mehendale Chief Financial Officer 

Mr Jetkin N. Gudhka Company Secretary	

(c)	 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel or their relatives

Jankidevi Bilasrai Bubna Trust		

Gujarat Cropchem Private Limited		

Sharda Exports Private Limited		

Sharphil, Inc.
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(B)	 Transactions during the year

(a)	 Key managerial personnel compensation:
(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Short- term employee benefits  1,307.39  1,280.55 

Post-employment benefits  3.88  2.67 

(b)	 With subsidiaries:

(` Lakhs)
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2024

Repayment of principal 

Axis Crop Science Private Limited*  50.00  10.00 

Interest received 

Axis Crop Science Private Limited*  7.95  9.59 

Interest income / accrual

Axis Crop Science Private Limited  7.95  9.59 

Rental Income

Axis Crop Science Private Limited  1.42  -   

Sale of finished goods

Sharda Cropchem Espana, S.L.  30,135.12  25,589.98 

Sharda Hungary Kft  9,688.67  6,924.09 

Sharda De Mexico S. De RL DE CV  6,676.84  9,406.64 

Sharda Poland SP.ZO.O  44,249.63  16,964.82 

Sharda International Africa (PTY) Ltd  3,495.96  3,495.17 

Sharda Colombia S.A.S  799.53  1,118.53 

Sharda Italia SRL  19,242.47  10,546.28 

Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited  278.67  539.59 

Sharda Do Brasil Comercio de Produtos  36.66  -   

Sharda Maroc Sarl  401.19  468.43 

Dividend received

Sharda International FZCO  12,374.21  21,098.48 

Sharda Cropchem Espana, S.L.  -    380.48 

Purchase of finished goods

Sharda De Mexico S. De RL DE CV  -    564.46 

Reimbursement of (income) / expenses (net)

Sharda International FZCO  -    86.36 

Sharda Del Ecuador Cia Ltda  18.89  -   

Sharda Peru SAC  5.77  -   

Custodian charges

Shardaserb D.O.O.  40.88  -   

Sharda Peru SAC  63.02  65.59 

Sharda Del Ecuador CIA. Ltda.  87.91  74.15 

Sharda Ukraine LLC  9.44  -   

Euroazijski Pesticidi D.O.O.  -    33.93 
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2024

Sharda Bolivia SRL  5.69  88.58 

Sharda Europe BVBA  -    3.98 

Sharda Benelux SRL  -    0.35 

Sharda Swiss Sarl  2.38  -   

Consultancy for registration

Shardaserb D.O.O.  -    16.64 

Office Expenses-Representative

Sharda Ukraine LLC  -    9.49 

*Loans (unsecured) were given in accordance with the terms and conditions of the loan agreement and carry an interest 
rate of 8% p.a. to Axis Crop Science Private Limited and is repayable on demand. W.e.f. 01 July, 2021 the rate of interest 
has changed to 4.5% p.a.	

(c)	 With Key managerial personnel and their Relatives
(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Rent paid  810.00  810.00 
Remuneration  813.63  678.32 
Director's Sitting Fees  18.00  22.05 
Directors' commission  493.76  602.23 
Dividend paid  4,050.24  2,025.11 
Post-employment benefits  3.88  2.67 

(d)	 With Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel or their relatives
(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Donations Paid to:
Jankidevi Bilasrai Bubna Trust  27.00  28.00 

(e)	 Outstanding balance as at Balance Sheet date
(` Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Loan given to subsidiaries
Axis Crop Science Private Limited  160.00  210.00 
Trade receivables
Sharda De Mexico S. De RL DE CV  5,449.67  7,843.34 
Sharda Cropchem Espana, S. L.  13,167.12  10,689.51 
Sharda Colombia S.A.S  496.36  961.59 
Sharda Poland SP.ZO.O  30,588.49  16,985.74 
Sharda Hungary KFT  5,283.38  2,802.20 
Sharda International Africa (PTY) Ltd  2,703.05  2,590.52 
Sharda Italia SRL  16,187.85  9,040.62 
Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited  -    73.66 
Sharda Maroc Sarl  273.32  456.65 
Sharda Do Brasil Comercio De Productus  36.91  -   
Trade payables
Sharda Peru SAC  -    2.39 
Sharda Europe BVBA  -    0.89 
Sharda Bolivia Srl  -    11.32 
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended

31 March 2025
Year ended

31 March 2024
Shardaserb D.O.O.  -    9.37 
Directors commission payable  937.53  493.76 
Salary Payable to KMP and their relatives  4.57  8.92 
Post-employment benefits Payable to KMP and their relatives  3.88  68.01 

	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

	 The sales to and purchases of goods and services from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that 
prevail in arm’s length transactions and are in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act and SEBI Regulations. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been 
no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is undertaken each 
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates.

35. HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign exchange 
forward contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods consistent with foreign currency 
exposure of the underlying transactions. 

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention to reduce the foreign exchange risk of expected 
sales and purchases, these contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit 
or loss.

Nature of instrument  Foreign 
currency

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

Amount       
 (FC Mn.) 

Amount                
(` Lakhs)

Amount       
 (FC Mn.) 

Amount                
(` Lakhs)

Forward contract- Sell USD to `  0.25  218.16  2.00  1,669.49 

EUR to USD  5.50  5,178.96  1.00  929.25 

EUR to `  2.75  2,550.22  -    -   

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
in the fair level hierarchy

As at 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)

Date of 
Valuation

Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Financial assets
Non current
Investments March 31, 2025  -    -    109.72  -    -    109.72  109.72 
Loans March 31, 2025  -    -    160.00  -    -    160.00  160.00 
Other financial assets March 31, 2025  -    -    512.38  -    -    512.38  512.38 
Current
Investment in mutual 
funds and bonds

March 31, 2025  29,432.73  -    -    29,432.73  -    -    29,432.73 

Trade receivables March 31, 2025  -    -    1,79,341.83  -    -    1,79,341.83  1,79,341.83 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

March 31, 2025  -    -    6,447.24  -    -    6,447.24  6,447.24 
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(` Lakhs)

Date of 
Valuation

Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Bank balance other 
than cash and cash 
equivalents

March 31, 2025  -    -    9,313.58  -    -    9,313.58  9,313.58 

Other financial assets 
other than derivative 
financial assets

March 31, 2025  -    -    4,150.81  4,150.81  4,150.81 

Total Financial Assets 29,432.73  -   2,00,035.56 29,432.73  -   2,00,035.56 2,29,468.29 
Financial liabilities
Non current
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

March 31, 2025  -    -    6,301.38  -    -    6,301.38  6,301.38 

Current
Trade payables March 31, 2025  -    -    1,20,842.21  -    -    1,20,842.21  1,20,842.21 
Derivative financial 
liabilities

March 31, 2025  44.96  -    -    -    44.96  -    44.96 

Lease liabilities March 31, 2025  -    -    775.97  -    -    775.97  775.97 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities and derivative 
financial liabilities

March 31, 2025  -    -    50,031.29  -    -    50,031.29  50,031.29 

Total Financial liabilities  44.96  -   1,77,950.85  -    44.96 1,77,950.85 1,77,995.80 

As at 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)

Date of 
Valuation

Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Financial assets
Non current
Investments March 31, 2024  -    -    111.68  -    -    111.68  111.68 
Loans March 31, 2024  -    -    210.00  -    -    210.00  210.00 
Other financial assets March 31, 2024  -    -    507.70  -    -    507.70  507.70 
Current
Investment in mutual 
funds

March 31, 2024  15,889.87  -    -    15,889.87  -    -    15,889.87 

Trade receivables March 31, 2024  -    -    1,46,264.91  -    -    1,46,264.91  1,46,264.91 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

March 31, 2024  -    -    3,282.17  -    -    3,282.17  3,282.17 

Bank balance other 
than cash and cash 
equivalents

March 31, 2024  -    -    57.53  -    -    57.53  57.53 

Derivative financial 
assets

March 31, 2024  14.20  -    -    -    14.20  -    14.20 
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(` Lakhs)

Date of 
Valuation

Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Other financial assets 
other than derivative 
financial assets

March 31, 2024  -    -    12,235.41  12,235.41  12,235.41 

Total Financial Assets 15,904.07  -   1,62,669.40 15,889.87  14.20 1,62,669.40 1,78,573.47 
Financial liabilities
Non current
Lease liabilities March 31, 2024  -    -    775.97  -    -    775.97  775.97 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

March 31, 2024  -    -    5,838.00  -    -    5,838.00  5,838.00 

Current
Borrowings March 31, 2024  -    -    86,975.63  -    -    86,975.63  86,975.63 
Trade payables March 31, 2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Lease liabilities March 31, 2024  -    -    716.50  -    -    716.50  716.50 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

March 31, 2024  -    -    50,175.43  -    -    50,175.43  50,175.43 

Total Financial liabilities  -    -   1,44,481.52  -    -   1,44,481.52 1,44,481.52 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial liabilities and 
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices and/ or NAV. This includes listed 
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price and/ or NAV declared by the funds. The fair value 
of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the 
reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as 
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Valuation Technique used to determine Fair Value:-
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values for financial instruments at fair value 
in the balance sheet:

Type Valuation Technique Significant 
unobservable 

inputs

Inter-relationship 
between significant 

unobservable 
inputs and fair 

value measurement

Foreign Currency 
Forward Contracts 
(Level 2)

The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange 
rates at the reporting date.				  

Not applicable Not applicable
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 		

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is 
to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to 
mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual 
characteristic of each customer.

Market risk

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of its business is transacted in United States Dollars and Euros and 
purchases from overseas suppliers mainly in US Dollars. The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign 
exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The exchange rate 
between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in 
the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are adversely affected as the rupee appreciates / depreciates 
against these currencies. 

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in 
foreign subsidiaries. 

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate 
fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange 
contracts (refer note 35).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows:

Nature of instrument  Foreign 
currency 

 As at 31 March, 2025  As at 31 March, 2024

 Amount        
 (FCY Mn.) 

 Amount                
(` Lakhs) 

 Amount        
 (FC Mn.) 

 Amount                
(` Lakhs) 

Unhedged currency exposure on:-

a)	 Receivables USD  53.50  45,710.27  47.12  39,300.90 

EUR  115.61  1,06,436.90  97.41  87,637.73 

HUF  2,062.12  4,743.91  1,108.20  2,529.47 

CZK  58.72  2,179.54  46.46  1,655.26 

PLN  36.27  8,027.92  12.74  2,664.39 

MXN  54.19  2,262.53  70.24  3,524.96 

GBP  0.79  876.05  1.59  1,670.39 

CAD  11.73  6,969.20  7.14  4,401.14 

COP  2,363.88  480.34  4,468.34  961.59 

ZAR  48.63  2,270.57  53.02  2,336.49 

b)	 Payables USD  151.37  1,29,325.14  129.57  1,08,049.02 

EUR  40.74  37,503.54  27.90  25,150.25 

HUF  673.35  1,549.03  554.98  1,266.74 

CZK  0.28  10.52  (0.08)  (2.78)

PLN  1.89  418.23  1.36  285.12 
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Nature of instrument  Foreign 
currency 

 As at 31 March, 2025  As at 31 March, 2024

 Amount        
 (FCY Mn.) 

 Amount                
(` Lakhs) 

 Amount        
 (FC Mn.) 

 Amount                
(` Lakhs) 

CHF  0.03  30.08  0.08  72.93 

GBP  0.45  500.59  0.43  453.88 

PHP  0.14  2.16  0.15  2.29 

CAD  0.30  177.06  0.68  409.01 

ZAR  0.33  15.35  0.86  38.08 

JPY  10.19  57.93  7.72  42.53 

AUD  -    -    0.00  0.66 

COP  0.57  0.12 

b)	 Balance in EEFC Accounts USD  3.97  3,394.94  1.31  1,096.58 

EUR  3.25  2,996.65  2.29  2,062.93 

CAD  0.04  20.95  0.16  98.70 

PLN  0.11  23.59  0.10  20.68 

GBP  0.01  9.85  0.00  2.49 

Further, the Company has not hedged its investments in subsidiaries outside India (For list of subsidiaries refer note 5).	

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other 
variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets 
and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

(` Lakhs)
 Change in USD 

Rate 
 Effect on profit 

and loss 
 Effect on equity 

March 31, 2025
1%  (836.15)  (667.62)

(1%)  836.15  667.62 

March 31, 2024
1%  (687.48)  (537.12)

(1%)  687.48  537.12 

(` Lakhs)
 Change in EUR 

Rate 
 Effect on profit 

and loss 
 Effect on equity 

March 31, 2025
1%  689.33  550.39 

(1%)  (689.33)  (550.39)

March 31, 2024
1%  624.87  488.58 

(1%)  (624.87)  (488.58)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure 
to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ` 1,79,341.83  Lakhs and ` 1,46,264.91 
Lakhs as of 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024 respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from 
revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing 
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the 
normal course of business.
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Trade Receivables 

The Company has established credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness 
before Company’s standard payment terms (credit period ranges from 30 to 180 days) and delivery terms and conditions are 
offered. The Company reviews external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry 
information and in some cases bank references.

The following table represents ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March, 2025:

(` Lakhs)
Particulars  Not Yet Due  Less than 

6 months 
 6 months-1 

year 
 1-2 years 2-3 

years
 More 

than 3 
years 

 Total 

i)       �Undisputed Trade Receivable - 
considered good

 1,67,134.88  12,197.75  9.20  -    -    -    1,79,341.83 

ii)      �Undisputed Trade Receivable - 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    1,231.18  344.18  -    919.75  2,495.11 

iii)     �Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv)     �Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

v)     � �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

vi)     ��Disputed Trade Receivables -  
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

The following table represents ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March, 2024:

(` Lakhs)
Particulars  Not Yet Due  Less than 

6 months 
 6 months-1 

year 
 1-2 years 2-3 

years
 More 

than 3 
years 

 Total 

i)       �Undisputed Trade Receivable - 
considered good

 1,33,330.08  12,859.14  75.68  -    -    -    1,46,264.91 

ii)      �Undisputed Trade Receivable -  
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    1,284.64  169.55  16.27  1,088.70  2,559.16 

iii)     �Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv)     �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

v)     � �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

vi)     �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Movement in allowances for credit losses

(` Lakhs)

 Opening  Addition  Reversal  Closing 

March 31, 2025  2,559.16  1,873.16  1,937.21  2,495.11 

March 31, 2024  3,643.31  1,773.95  2,858.10  2,559.16 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid 
mutual fund units and in quoted bonds. Loans represent loan given to related parties for which the Company does not foresee 
any impairment loss.
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Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach of managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Company’s reputation. The Company 
monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade 
payables & other financial liabilities.

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flows that are generated from 
operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no 
liquidity risk is perceived.	

As of 31 March, 2025, the Company had a working capital of ` 1,44,315.43 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of  
` 6,447.24 Lakhs and current investments of ` 29,432.73 Lakhs. As of 31 March, 2024, the Company had a working capital of 
` 1,24,798.44 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of ` 3,282.17 Lakhs and current investments of ` 15,889.87 Lakhs.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March, 2025:

(` Lakhs)

Carrying 
value 

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Lease liabilities  775.97  775.97  -    -    775.97 

Trade payables  1,20,842.21  1,20,842.21  -    -    1,20,842.21 

Other financial liabilities  56,377.63  50,076.25  6,301.38  56,377.63 

Total financial liabilities  1,77,995.81  1,71,694.42  6,301.38  -    1,77,995.81 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March, 2024:

(` Lakhs)

"Carrying 
value "

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total

Lease liabilities  1,492.46  716.50  775.97  -    1,492.46 

Trade payables  86,975.63  86,975.63  -    -    86,975.63 

Other financial liabilities  56,013.43  50,175.43  5,838.00  -    56,013.43 

Total financial liabilities  1,44,481.52  1,37,867.56  6,613.97  -    1,44,481.52 

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT	

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support 
the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term 
and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. 

The capital structure of the Company consists of net asset and total equity of the Company. 

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

(` Lakhs)
Particulars As at  

31 March, 2025
As at  

31 March, 2024
Total debt (bank and other borrowings)  -    -   
Lease Liabilities (non current and current)  775.97  1,492.46 

 775.97  1,492.46 
Equity  2,33,149.75  2,11,182.44 
Debt to equity (net)  0.00  0.01 
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39. DISCLOSURE OF LOANS AND ADVANCES GIVEN TO SUBSIDIARIES AS PER REGULATION 34(3) AND 53(F) OF THE 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

(` Lakhs)
Name of subsidiary 2024-25 2023-24

Outstanding 
amount

Maximum amount 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding 
amount

Maximum amount 
outstanding  

during the year
Axis Crop Science Private Limited (Interest @ 4.5% p.a. 
w.e.f. 01 July, 2021 (Previous year 4.5% p.a.))

 160.00  210.00  210.00  220.00 

Total  160.00  210.00 

Note: 

i)	 Loans given are unsecured and repayable on demand. Loans have been given to meet their working capital requirements.

40. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

(a)	 Details of investment made:

(` Lakhs)
Name of subsidiary Opening Purchase Provision Closing
Axis Crop Science Private Limited              
31 March, 2025  544.00  -    544.00  -   
31 March, 2024  544.00  -    544.00  -   

(b) 	 Details of Loan given:

(` Lakhs)
Name of subsidiary Opening Addition Repayment Closing
Axis Crop Science Private Limited              
31 March, 2025  210.00  7.95  57.95  160.00 
31 March, 2024  220.00  9.59  19.59  210.00 

(c)	� Loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMP and other related parties either severally 
or jointly:	

(` Lakhs)
Type of Borrower  Outstanding 

Amount as on 
31 March, 2025 

 % to Total 
Loans and 
advances 

 Outstanding 
Amount as on 

31 March, 2024 

 % to Total 
Loans and 
advances 

Promoters  -    -    -    -   
Directors  -    -    -    -   
KMPs  -    -    -    -   
Related Parties  160.00 100%  210.00 100%

41. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006:

(` Lakhs)
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding 
for more than the stipulated period are given below: #
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year  715.48  1,811.71 
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the 
accounting year

 5.79  5.78 

Total  721.27  1,817.49 
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
i)       �the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006, along with 

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond  the appointed 
day during the accounting year

 -    -   

ii)      �the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

 -    -   

iii)     �the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
accounting year

 5.79  5.78 

iv)     �the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006

 -    -   

Total  5.79  5.78 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management.

# Includes principal amount ` 212.04 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,122.83 Lakhs) and interest due thereon ` Nil (31 March, 2024: 
` Nil ) remaining unpaid to micro and small enterprises for capital purchases.

42. DETAILS OF CSR EXPENDITURE (AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013):

(` Lakhs)
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
1)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company  717.64  798.21 
2)	 Shortfall from previous year  -    -   

Total  717.64  798.21 
3)	 Amount spent
	 i)	 Construction / acquisition of any assets  -    -   
	 ii)	 On purpose other than (i) above (refer note 27)  729.80  810.72 

Total  729.80  810.72 
4)	 Amount (spent in excess) / unspent  (12.16)  (12.51)

Note:

1)	� CSR activities were mainly undertaken towards promoting education, healthcare assistance, eradicating hunger and 
malnutrition, promoting sports and animal welfare.

2)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company is ` 717.64 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 798.21 Lakhs) as per the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3) 	 The Company has spent ` 729.80 Lakhs during the current year. Excess amount spent of ` 12.16 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: 
` 810.72 Lakhs)

4) 	 For contribution made to related party refer note 34.

43. ACCOUNTING RATIOS: 

Name of the ratio Numerator Denominator Year ended  
31 March, 

2025

Year ended  
31 March, 

2024

% Variance Reason for variance

a)	� Current 
Ratio

Current assets Current liabilities 1.79 1.84 -2.72%

b)	� Debt Equity 
Ratio

Debt consists 
of 

borrowings 
and 

lease liabilities

Total equity 0.00 0.01 -52.91% Increase in revenue 
and profitability due to 
improvement market 
conditions and decrease 
in debts.

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025



Sharda Cropchem Limited 203

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25202

Name of the ratio Numerator Denominator Year ended  
31 March, 

2025

Year ended  
31 March, 

2024

% Variance Reason for variance

c)	� Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Profit before 
interest and 

tax

Debt consists of 
borrowings and 
lease liabilities

 44.30  24.67 79.60% Increase in Profitability 
and decrease in debts.

d)	� Net Profit 
Ratio

Revenue from 
operations 

7.48% 5.25% 42.29% Increase in revenue 
and profitability due to 
improvement market 
conditions.

e)      �Return on 
Equity

Profit after tax Average total equity 
= (Opening total 
equity + Closing 
total equity)/2

12.32% 6.65% 85.32% Increase in revenue 
and profitability due to 
improvement market 
conditions.

f)     �  �Return on 
Capital 
Employed

Profit before 
interest and 

tax

Average capital 
employed* 

= (Opening capital 
employed + Closing 
capital employed)/2

14.03% 7.89% 77.90% Increase in revenue 
and profitability due to 
improvement market 
conditions.

g)    � � �Return on 
Investment

Income 
generated 

from invested 
funds 

in market

Average invested 
funds in market 

= (Opening 
funds invested in 
market + Closing 
funds invested in 

market)/2

8.52% 5.99% 42.38% Increased due more 
diversification in current 
investment and better 
utilisation of surplus 
funds

h)    �  �Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue from 
operations 

Average working 
capital = (Opening 
current assets + 
Closing current 

assets)/2

2.72 2.25 20.89%

i)     �  �Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue from 
operations 

Average trade 
receivables = 

(Opening trade 
receivable + Closing 
trade receivable)/2

2.25 1.66 35.53% Increase in Revenue 
due to improved market 
conditions.

j)     �  �Trade 
Payable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Total 
purchases

Average trade 
payable = (Opening 

trade payable 
+ Closing trade 

payable)/2

2.49 1.65 51.12% Increase in COGS and 
Purchases due to increase 
in Revenue.

k)    �  �Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio

Cost of goods 
sold

Average inventory = 
(Opening inventory + 
Closing inventory)/2

2.91  2.00 45.38% Better inventory cycle 
movement due to 
improvement in revenue

44. LEASE LIABILITY

Following is carrying value of Lease Liability and the movements thereof :

(` Lakhs)
Description As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024
Leasehold 
Premises

Leasehold  
Premises

Opening Balance  1,492.46  -   
Addition  -    2,154.05 
Interest Cost accrued during the year (refer note 25)  93.50  148.41 
Lease liability payment  (810.00)  (810.00)
Deletion  -   
Closing Balance  775.97  1,492.46 
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(` Lakhs)
Description As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024
Leasehold 
Premises

Leasehold  
Premises

Current lease liability  775.97  716.50 
Non - Current lease liability  -    775.97 
Total lease liability  775.97  1,492.46 

45. DISCLOSURE FOR ULTIMATE BENEFICIARIES
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”) with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on 
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with 
the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by 
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

46. OTHER MATTERS
i) 	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the 

Company, for holding any Benami property.

ii) 	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

iii) 	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond 
the statutory period.

iv) 	 The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of The Companies Act 
read with the Companies ( Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

v) 	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the Books of Accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( such as 
Search or Survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

vi) 	 As on 31 March, 2025 there is no unutilised amounts of any issue of securities and long term borrowings from banks and 
financial institutions. The borrowed funds have been utilised for the specific purpose for which the funds were raised.

vii) 	 The Company has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by any Banks, Financial institution or Other lenders.

viii) 	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

For B S R & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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To the Members of 

Sharda Cropchem Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
Sharda Cropchem Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 
March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including material 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate 
financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited 
by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, of its consolidated 
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year 
then ended.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the  Standards  
on  Auditing  (SAs)  specified  under  Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of 
the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other 
Matter” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

See Note 2.10, 21 and 34 to the consolidated financial 
statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue is derived primarily from sale of 
products. The principal products of the Group comprises 
of agro-chemicals and belts. Revenue from sale of goods 
is recognized on transfer of control of the products to the 
customer. The Group uses a variety of shipment terms 
across its operating markets and this has an impact on the 
timing of revenue recognition. The performance obligations 
in the contracts may be fulfilled at the time of dispatch, 
delivery, formal customer acceptance or upon surrender of 
bill of lading in the favor of customer, depending on contract 
terms. There is a risk that revenue could be recognized at a 
time which is different from transfer of control especially for 
sales transactions occurring on and around the reporting 
period. In view of this and since revenue is a key performance 
indicator of the Group, we have identified timing of the 
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following 
audit procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence:

-	� Assessed the appropriateness of Group’s accounting 
policies relating to revenue recognition as per the applicable 
Ind AS.

-	� Obtained an understanding of the Group’s revenue 
recognition process and evaluated the design and 
implementation of key financial controls in relation to the 
timing of revenue recognition. We also tested the operating 
effectiveness of such controls for a sample of transactions 
with special reference to controls over revenue recognised 
on and around the year end.

-	� For a sample of sale transactions selected using statistical 
sampling, performed detailed testing and in particular 
examined whether these are recognised in the period in 
which control is transferred. This included examination of 
the terms and conditions of the customer orders including 
the shipping terms and transporter documents and 
performing lead time assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
-	� Selected revenue transactions on a sample basis recorded 

during specified period around the year end and checked 
whether revenue has been recognised in the correct 
reporting period by examining the underlying documents.

-	� Tested journal entries for revenue recognised during the 
year, selected based on specified risk- based criteria, to 
identify unusual transactions.

-	� Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures and 
their compliance with Ind AS.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets and intangibles assets under development

See Note 2.12, 4 and 4A to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Impairment testing of other intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development
As disclosed in Note 2.12, 4 and 4A, the Group’s intangible 
assets comprises product registrations and licenses. The 
carrying amount of the intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development represents 22% of the Group’s 
total assets. The Group applies for product registrations in 
different countries to sell its products. As disclosed in Note 
2.12, 4 and 4A to the consolidated financial statements, 
the Group capitalizes costs incurred to apply for product 
registrations.
The impairment assessment is performed, based on value 
in use of product registrations for the specific regions. 
The measurement of value of intangible assets involves 
significant judgments and estimates in the Group’s annual 
impairment assessment, the significance and magnitude 
of the costs capitalised and likelihood of obtaining product 
registration. We identified assessment of impairment of 
intangible assets and intangible assets under development 
as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following 
audit procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence:
-	� Obtained an understanding of the Group’s process for 

determining likelihood of product registration, future 
benefits expected from product registrations in the specific 
regions using discounted future cash flows.

-	� Evaluated the design and implementation and tested the 
operating effectiveness of key internal controls in relation 
to the impairment of intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development.

-	� Assessed the assumptions around the key drivers of the 
cash flow forecasts including discount rate, expected 
growth rates and terminal growth rates used.

-	� Compared the cash flow to management forecasts and 
other relevant market and economic information, as well 
as testing the underlying workings.

-	� Assessed Group’s sensitivity analysis over the key 
assumptions to determine any possible change in these 
assumptions which would result in an impairment.

-	� Involved our valuation expert to assess the assumptions 
and methodology used by the Group to determine the 
recoverable amount.

-	� Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures and 
their compliance with Ind AS.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of 
Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the 
Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 

the work we have performed and based on the work done/
audit reports of other auditors, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for the preparation and presentation of 
these consolidated  financial statements in term of the 
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and 
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally 



Sharda Cropchem Limited 207

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25206

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective 
Management and Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each 
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Management and 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Management and Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for 
assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management and 
Board of Directors.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial 
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial statements of such entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of the financial statements of such entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements 
of which we are the independent auditors. For the 
other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, 
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out 
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
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opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other 
Matter” in this audit report.

	� We communicate with those charged with governance 
of the Holding Company regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

	� We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

	� From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

a.	� We did not audit the financial statements of twenty 
nine subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects 
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) 
of Rs.1,12,559.20 lakhs as at 31 March 2025, total 
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of 
Rs.1,81,879.49 lakhs and net cash flows (before 
consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs.814.21 
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in 
the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the Management 
and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, 
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors.

	� One of the subsidiary (including 10 step down 
subsidiaries) is located outside India whose financial 
statements and other financial information have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in that country and which have 
been audited by other auditor under generally accepted 
auditing standards applicable in that country. The 
Holding Company’s management has converted the 
financial statements of such subsidiaries located 
outside India from accounting principles generally 
accepted in that country to accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. We have audited these 
conversion adjustments made by the Holding 
Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it 
relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries 
located outside India is based on the reports of other 
auditor and the conversion adjustments prepared by 
the management of the Holding Company and audited 
by us.

	� Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the 
above matter with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2	 A.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of reports of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements 
of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other 
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matter” paragraph, 
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

		  a.	� We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

		  b.	� In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports 
of the other auditors except for the matter 
stated in the paragraph 2A(f) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

		  c.	� The consolidated balance sheet, the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), 
the consolidated statement of changes in 
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equity and the consolidated statement of 
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

		  d.	� In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

		  e.	� On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 1 April 2025 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the report of the statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary , incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the 
Group companies incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act.

		  f.	� the remark relating to the maintenance of 
accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 
2A(b) above on reporting under Section 
143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2B(f) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

		  g.	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India 
and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

	 B.	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the consideration of the reports of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements 
of the subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other Matter” 
paragraph:

		  a.	� The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
as at 31 March 2025 on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group. Refer Note 32 
to the consolidated financial statements.

		  b.	� The Group did not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the year 
ended 31 March 2025.

		  c.	� There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or 
its subsidiary company incorporated in India 
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

		  d	 (i)	� The respective management of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us and 
the other auditors of such subsidiary 
that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Note 44 to the 
consolidated financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (ii)	� The respective management of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us and 
the other auditors of such subsidiary 
that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Note 44 to 
the consolidated financial statements, 
no funds have been received by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in 
India shall directly or indirectly, lend 
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or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Parties 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (iii)	� Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances 
performed by us and that performed by 
the auditor of the subsidiary company 
incorporated in India whose financial 
statements have been audited under 
the Act nothing has come to our or 
other auditor notice that has caused us 
or the other auditor to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(i) and (ii) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

		  e.	� The final dividend paid by the Holding 
Company during the year in respect of the 
same declared for the previous year and 
interim dividend declared and paid by the 
Holding Company during the year and until 
the date of audit report is in compliance and 
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the 
extent it applies to payment of dividend.

			�   Further, as stated in Note 13 to the 
consolidated financial statements, the Board 
of Directors of the Holding Company have 
proposed final dividend for the year which 
is subject to the approval of the members 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
The dividend declared is in accordance with 
Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies 
to declaration of dividend.

		  f.	� Based on our examination which included 
test checks and that performed by the 
respective auditor of the subsidiary company 
incorporated in India whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act, 
except for the instances mentioned below, 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company have used an accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account which 
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded 
in the software. Further, during the course of 

our audit, except for the instances mentioned 
below, we and respective auditor of such 
subsidiary company did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with. Additionally, except for the instances 
mentioned below, the audit trail has been 
preserved by the Company and above 
referred subsidiaries as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention.

Instances of 
accounting software 
for maintaining its 
books of account 
which did not had a 
feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same 
was not operated 
throughout the 
year for all relevant 
transactions recorded 
in the software

In respect of Holding 
Company:
-	� Audit trail was 

not enabled at the 
database level for 
accounting software 
to log any direct 
data changes.

-	� Further, the Holding 
Company has also 
used an accounting 
software for 
maintaining its 
books of account 
related to payroll 
process which does 
not have the feature 
of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility. 
Consequently, 
we are unable to 
comment on audit 
trail feature of the 
said software.

	 B.	� With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

		�  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
during the current year by the Holding Company to 
its directors is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
during the current year by the Holding Company 
, to its directors , is not in excess of the limit laid 
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are 
required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN: 25103595BMJEVU6851

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SHARDA CROPCHEM LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorporated in India 
and included in the consolidated financial statements, have unfavourable remark given by its respective auditors in their 
reports under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. 
No.

Name of the entities CIN Holding Company/ 
Subsidiary

Clause number of the 
CARO report which is 

unfavourable or qualified or 
adverse

1 Sharda Cropchem Limited L51909MH2004PLC145007 Holding Company Clause vii (b)
2 Axis Cropscience Private 

Limited
U01100MH2009PTC189472 Subsidiary Company Clause vii (b)

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN: 25103595BMJEVU6851
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SHARDA CROPCHEM LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
Report on the internal financial controls with reference 
to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Sharda Cropchem Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company and such company incorporated in India under the 
Act which is its subsidiary company, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of report of 
the other auditor on internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of subsidiary company, as was 
audited by the other auditor, the Holding Company and 
such company incorporated in India which is its subsidiary 
company, have, in all material respects, adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements criteria established 
by such companies considering the essential components 
of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for 
Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the respective company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditor of the relevant 
subsidiary company in terms of their report referred to in the 
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to 
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements include those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
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use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements insofar as it relates to subsidiary company, 
which is a company incorporated in India, is based on 
the corresponding report of the auditor of such company 
incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 14 May 2025 ICAI UDIN: 25103595BMJEVU6851
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2025

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Note 

No.
As at  

31 March, 2025
As at  

31 March, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A  296.10  380.14 
Right of use assets  3B  718.01  1,436.03 
Goodwill 5  -    0.92 
Other Intangible assets 4  74,024.25  68,995.46 
Intangible assets under development 4A  29,138.24  28,286.31 
Financial assets

Other financial assets 7  537.01  532.28 
Other non-current assets 12  1,638.45  2,173.13 
Current tax assets (net) 8A  6,337.63  7,206.42 
Deferred tax assets (net) 8D  1,155.93  1,031.33 
Total non-current assets  1,13,845.62  1,10,042.02 
Current assets
Inventories 9  97,193.08  99,164.22 
Financial assets

Investments 6  29,432.74  15,889.87 
Trade receivables 10  1,95,544.18  1,49,799.95 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 A  12,721.29  8,734.28 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 B  9,313.58  57.53 
Other financial assets 7  4,751.67  12,806.83 

Other current assets 12  9,683.00  7,337.54 
Total current assets  3,58,639.54  2,93,790.22 
Total Assets  4,72,485.16  4,03,832.24 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13  9,022.05  9,022.05 
Other equity 14  2,41,034.84  2,14,689.45 
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  2,50,056.89  2,23,711.50 
Non-controlling interests  41.32  37.61 
Total equity  2,50,098.21  2,23,749.11 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 15  -    775.97 
Other financial liabilities 18  6,301.38  5,838.00 

Provisions 19  130.84  135.71 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8E  17,380.51  15,278.51 
Total non-current liabilities  23,812.73  22,028.19 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 16  -    337.51 
Lease liabilities 15  775.97  716.50 
Trade payables 17
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  509.29  694.91 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 1,30,511.03  91,420.23 

Other financial liabilities 18  50,128.39  50,246.82 
Other current liabilities 20  10,469.84  6,895.89 
Provisions 19  5,756.24  7,597.23 
Current tax liabilities (net) 8B  423.46  145.85 
Total current liabilities  1,98,574.22  1,58,054.94 
Total Equity And Liabilities  4,72,485.16  4,03,832.24 
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN  00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale  Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary

 Membership No.: A26487 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes 

No.
For the year ended 

31 March, 2025
For the year ended  

31 March, 2024
INCOME
Revenue from operations 21  4,31,985.30  3,16,302.45 
Other income 22  5,953.45  5,976.22 
Total income  4,37,938.75  3,22,278.67 
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23  1,77,633.29  1,48,402.26 
Purchase of stock in trade 23A  1,31,121.50  79,871.38 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 24  (5,949.43)  5,964.97 
Employee benefits expenses 25  5,202.15  4,243.42 
Finance costs 26  210.58  361.89 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27  27,466.39  26,713.18 
Other expenses 28  64,420.37  49,534.41 
Total expenses  4,00,104.86  3,15,091.51 
Profit before tax  37,833.89  7,187.16 
Tax expense
Current tax 8C  5,350.11  2,898.52 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 8C  71.17  389.69 
Deferred tax charge 8C  1,970.85  708.33 
Total tax expense  7,392.13  3,996.54 
Profit for the year  30,441.76 3,190.62
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit or (loss)
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans  9.98  (14.33)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to the statement 
of profit or loss

 (2.51)  3.79 

Items that will be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of financial statement of foreign 
operations

 1,428.35 65.53

Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)  1,435.82 54.99
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  31,877.58 3,245.61
Profit for the year attributable to:  30,441.76 3,190.62
Owners of the parent  30,437.83 3,188.31
Non-controlling interests  3.93 2.31
Other Comprehensive Income attributatble to :  1,435.82  54.99 
Owners of the parent  1,436.04  54.88 
Non-controlling interests  (0.22)  0.11 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:  31,877.58 3,245.61
Owners of the parent  31,873.87 3,243.19
Non-controlling interests  3.71 2.42
Earnings per share (` per share)
Basic and diluted (Face value per share of ` 10 each) 29  33.74  3.53 
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax  37,833.89  7,187.16 
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expense  27,466.39  26,713.18 
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) (net)  (592.94)  1,943.24 
Loss on closure of subsidiaries  1.96  -   
Discard / Write-off of intangible assets and intangible assets under development  6,808.27  3,486.36 
Profit on redemption of Bonds  (12.59)  -   
Profit on sale of mutual funds  (660.46)  (15.53)
Fair valuation loss / (gain) on current investments  (805.37)  (384.04)
Bad debts (net)  430.62  105.51 
Allowances/ Reversal of doubtful debts (net)  (10.06)  (760.65)
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back  (1,131.23)  (2,341.51)
Liabilities of capital creditors no longer required written back  (268.61)  (475.59)
Finance costs  210.58  361.89 
Interest income  (2,758.05)  (1,357.51)
Operating profit before working capital changes  66,512.40  34,462.51 
Movements in working capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables  (45,628.07)  32,293.97 
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories  1,970.92  14,269.78 
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets  (1,815.30)  123.24 
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets  9.16  (0.97)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables  40,153.62  (42,406.42)
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions  (1,845.86)  1,304.49 
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities and other liabilities  4,101.43  (879.56)
Cash generated from operations  63,458.30  39,167.04 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  (3,096.09)  (5,037.14)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)  60,362.21  34,129.90 
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (16.80)  (47.82)
Purchase of intangible assets (including intangible assets under development and 
capital advances)

 (39,289.49)  (27,161.24)

Proceeds from sale of  plant, property and equipment  -    0.70 
Purchase of current Investments  (7,848.40)  (12,800.00)
Proceeds from sale of current investments  9,134.77  500.00 
Purchase of current investments (Bonds)  (18,350.81)  -   
Proceeds from Redemption of Bonds  5,000.00  -   
Interest received on Bonds  611.21  -   
Bank deposits placed  (7,171.66)  (860.88)
Redemption of bank deposits / other bank balances  6,379.05  7.72 
Interest from fixed deposits  546.09  1,012.76 
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B)  (51,006.04)  (39,348.76)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of principal towards lease liability  (716.50)  (661.57)
Proceeds from borrowings  -    41.04 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Repayment of borrowings  (337.51)  -   
Interest paid on lease liability  (93.50)  (148.41)
Finance costs paid  (117.07)  (221.70)
Dividend paid on equity shares  (5,528.57)  (2,700.32)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (C)  (6,793.15)  (3,690.96)
Exchange difference arising on conversion debited/ (credited) to foreign 
currency translation reserve (D)

 1,429.53  60.30 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C + D )  3,992.54  (8,849.52)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  8,734.28  17,636.49 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalent  (5.53)  (52.69)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  12,721.29  8,734.28 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  1.67  11.04 
Balances with Banks  12,719.62  8,723.24 
Total cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement (Note 11A)  12,721.29  8,734.28 

Note:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) 
Statement of Cash Flows, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (NOTE 13)

(` Lakhs)
As at 01 April, 2023  9,022.05 
Changes in equity share capital  -   
As at 31 March, 2024  9,022.05 
Changes in equity share capital  -   
As at 31 March, 2025  9,022.05 

Note: There is no change in equity share capital due to prior period errors. (March 2024: Nil)

B. 	 OTHER EQUITY

(` Lakhs)
Attributable to owners of the Company Non-

controlling 
interests

Total
Reserves & Surplus Other comprehensive 

income
Total other 

equity
Securities 
premium 
(Note 14)

Retained 
earnings 
(Note 14) 

Capital 
reserve (Note 

14)

General 
reserve (Note 

14)

Exchange 
differences 

on 
translation 
of foreign 
operations

Re-
measurement 

of the net 
defined 

benefit plan

As at 01 April, 2023  2,168.55  2,02,904.18  1,581.11  664.94  6,828.41  32.94  2,14,180.13  35.19  2,14,215.32 
Profit for the year  3,188.31  -  3,188.31  2.31  3,190.62 
Other comprehensive 
income  65.53  (10.54)  54.99  0.11  55.10 
Total Comprehensive 
Income  -  3,188.31  -  -  65.53  (10.54)  3,243.30  2.42  3,245.72 
Payments of dividends       (2,733.98)  (2,733.98)  (2,733.98)
As at 31 March, 2024  2,168.55  2,03,358.51  1,581.11  664.94  6,893.94  22.40  2,14,689.45  37.61  2,14,727.06 

(` Lakhs)
Attributable to owners of the Company Non-

controlling 
interests

Total
Reserves & Surplus Other comprehensive 

income
Total other 

equity
Securities 
premium      
(Note 14)

Retained 
earnings           
(Note 14) 

Capital 
reserve     

(Note 14)

General 
reserve     

(Note 14)

Exchange 
differences 

on 
translation 
of foreign 
operations

Re-
measurement 

of the net 
defined 

benefit plan

As at 01 April, 2024 2,168.55 2,03,358.51 1,581.11 664.94 6,893.94  22.40 2,14,689.45 37.61 2,14,727.06
Profit for the year 30,437.83 30,437.83 3.93 30,441.76
Other comprehensive 
income 1,428.35  7.47  1,435.82  (0.22)  1,435.60 
Total Comprehensive 
Income  -   30,437.83  -    -   1,428.35  7.47 31,873.65 3.71 31,877.36
Payments of dividends  (5,528.24)  (5,528.24)  (5,528.24)
As at 31 March, 2025 2,168.55 2,28,268.10 1,581.11 664.94 8,322.29  29.87 2,41,034.86 41.32 2,41,076.18

The notes referred to above and other notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN  00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale  Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary

 Membership No.: A26487 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

	� The consolidated financial statements comprise 
financial statements of Sharda Cropchem Limited (the 
Holding Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the 
Group) for the year ended 31 March, 2025. The Holding 
Company is a public limited company incorporated 
in India under the provisions of the Companies Act 
applicable in India. Its shares are listed on National 
Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. 

	� The Group is principally engaged in export of agro-
chemicals (technical grade and formulations) and 
non-agro products such as conveyor belts, rubber 
belts/sheets, dyes & dye intermediates and general 
chemicals to various countries across the world. 

	� The registered office of the Holding Company is located 
at 2nd Floor, Prime Business Park, Dashrathlal Joshi 
Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai – 400 056. 

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1	 Statement of Compliance

	� These consolidated financial statements (hereinafter 
referred to as “financial statements”) are prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, 
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act’’), amendments thereto and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

	� The consolidated financial statements were authorised 
for issue in accordance with a resolution passed at the 
meeting of the Board of Directors held on 14 May, 2025.

2.2	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	� The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities 

	 (i)	� Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair 
value.

	 (ii)	� Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments).

	� Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique.

	� The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

	� A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	� The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

	� All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:

	� Level 1 —	Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

	� Level 2 —	Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

	� Level 3 —	Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

2.3	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	� The consolidated financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of 
the Holding Company and the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Holding Company 
operates. All the figures have been rounded off to the 
nearest ` in Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 	 Basis of consolidation

	� The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Holding Company, its 
subsidiaries as of 31 March 2025. Control is achieved 
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an 
investee if and only if the Group has:

	 -	� Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that 
give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee)

	 -	� Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee, and

	 -	� The ability to use its power over the investee to 
affect its returns

	� Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting 
rights result in control. To support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting 
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or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether 
it has power over an investee, including:

	 -	� The contractual arrangement with the other vote 
holders of the investee

	 -	� Rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements

	 -	� The Group’s voting rights and potential voting 
rights

	 -	� The size of the group’s holding of voting rights 
relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings 
of the other voting rights holders

	� The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the four elements of 
control listed above. Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains control over the 
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of 
the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year 
are included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date the Group gains control until the date the 
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

	� Consolidated financial statements are prepared using 
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of 
the group uses accounting policies other than those 
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for 
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, 
appropriate adjustments are made to that group 
member’s financial statements in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity 
with the group’s accounting policies.

	 Consolidation procedure:

	 (a)	� Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with 
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income 
and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the 
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised 
in the consolidated financial statements at the 
acquisition date.

	 (b)	� Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the 
parent’s investment in each subsidiary 

	 (c)	� and the parent’s portion of equity of each 
subsidiary.

	 (d)	� Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, 
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 
to transactions between entities of the group 
(profits or losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as 
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). 
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment 
that requires recognition in the consolidated 
financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes 
applies to temporary differences that arise from 
the elimination of profits and losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions.

	� Profit or loss and each component of other 
comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the 
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the 
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When 
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial 
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. 
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full 
on consolidation.

	� A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, 
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.

	 If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

	 -	� Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and 
liabilities of the subsidiary

	 -	� Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests

	 -	� Derecognises the cumulative translation 
differences recorded in equity

	 -	� Recognises the fair value of the consideration 
received

	 -	� Recognises the fair value of any investment 
retained

	 -	 Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

	 -	� Reclassifies the parent’s share of components 
previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or 
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be 
required if the Group had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)
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	 Non-controlling Interest (NCI)

	� Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of 
acquisition. Changes in the group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control are accounted for 
as equity transaction.

	� The list of companies, controlled directly or indirectly by the Holding Company which are included in the consolidated 
financial statements are as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name Country of 
incorporation

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

1 Axis Crop Science Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

2 Nihon Agro Service Kabushiki Kaisha Japan 100.00% 100.00%

3 Sharda Agrochem Dooel Skopje* Macedonia 100.00% 100.00%

4 Sharda Balkan Agrochemicals Limited* Greece 100.00% 100.00%

5 Sharda Costa Rica SA (upto 05 September, 2024) Costa Rica 99.00% 99.00%

6 Sharda Cropchem Espana, S.L. Spain 100.00% 100.00%

7 Sharda Cropchem Israel Limited* Israel 100.00% 100.00%

8 Sharda Cropchem Tunisia SARL* Tunisia 99.00% 99.00%

9 Sharda De Guatemala, S.A* Guatemala 98.00% 98.00%

10 Sharda Del Ecuador CIA. LTDA* Ecuador 99.50% 99.50%

11 Sharda Do Brasil Comercio DE Produtos Quimicos E 
Agroquimicos LTDA*

Brazil 99.00% 99.00%

12 Sharda Dominicana S.R.L.* Dominican 
Republic

99.00% 99.00%

13 Sharda EL Salvador S. A. DE CV* El Salvador 99.00% 99.00%

14 Sharda Hungary Kft Hungary 100.00% 100.00%

15 Sharda International FZCO (Formerly known as Sharda 
International DMCC)

U.A.E. 100.00% 100.00%

16 Sharda Italia SRL Italy 99.00% 99.00%

17 Sharda Peru SAC* Peru 99.95% 99.95%

18 Sharda Poland SP. ZO.O Poland 100.00% 100.00%

19 Sharda Spain, S.L.* (upto 14 February, 2025) Spain 100.00% 100.00%

20 Sharda Swiss SARL* Switzerland 100.00% 100.00%

21 Sharda Taiwan Limited* Taiwan 100.00% 100.00%

22 Sharda Ukraine LLC* Ukraine 100.00% 100.00%

23 Sharda USA LLC* USA 100.00% 100.00%

24 Shardacan Limited* Canada 100.00% 100.00%

25 Sharda Maroc SARL* Morocco 99.80% 99.80%

26 Shardaserb DO.O* Serbia 100.00% 100.00%

27 Sharzam Limited* Zambia 99.99% 99.99%

28 Euroazijski Pesticidi D.O.O. Croatia 100.00% 100.00%

29 Sharda Benelux BVBA* Belgium 100.00% 100.00%

30 Sharda Bolivia SRL* Bolivia 99.00% 99.00%

31 Sharda Colombia S.A.S. Colombia 99.48% 99.48%

32 Sharda De Mexico S. DE RL DE CV Mexico 99.99% 99.99%

33 Sharda Europe BVBA Belgium 100.00% 100.00%

34 Sharda International Africa (PTY) Limited South Africa 100.00% 100.00%

35 Sharpar S.A.* Paraguay 90.00% 90.00%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)
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Sr. 
No.

Name Country of 
incorporation

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

36 Siddhivinayak International Limited U.A.E. 100.00% 100.00%

37 Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited** Thailand 49.00% 49.00%

38 Sharda Impex Trading L.L.C.*** U.A.E. 49.00% 49.00%

39 Sharda Agrochem Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%

*The financial statements of these companies are drawn for and audited for the calendar year ended 31 December, 2024 
in compliance with respective local laws. All material adjustments for the effect of significant transactions or events 
occurred up to 31 March, 2025, if any, have been given effect to in preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
by the management.

The financial statements of all other entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as 
that of the parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March, 2025. 

**In terms of the MOU dated 10 November, 2017 entered with other shareholders of Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited, 
the parent Company has gained 100% control over Sharda Private (Thailand) Limited as the other shareholders shall not 
be entitled to participate in the profits/losses of the said company and do not have any decision making powers as well. 
Thus, the said company has been treated as a subsidiary company and has been consolidated in the Financial Statements 
applying Indian Accounting Standard – 110 i.e. Consolidated Financial Statements.

***In terms of the MOU dated 17 March, 2021 entered with other shareholders of Sharda Impex LLC, the parent Company 
has gained 100% control over Sharda Impex LLC as the other shareholders shall not be entitled to participate in the 
profits/losses of the said company and do not have any decision making powers as well. Thus, the said company has 
been treated as a subsidiary company and has been consolidated in the Financial Statements applying Indian Accounting 
Standard – 110 i.e. Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.5 	 Goodwill on consolidation

	� Goodwill represents the difference between the Holding 
company’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and 
the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making 
the investment in the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the 
Holding company’s share of net worth is determined 
on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to 
the acquisition after making necessary adjustments 
for material events between the date of such financial 
statements and the date of respective acquisition. 
Goodwill arising out of consolidation of financial 
statements of subsidiaries are tested for impairment at 
each reporting date.

2.6 	 Current and non-current classification

	� Based on the time involved between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Group has identified 12 months 
as its operating cycle for determining current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities in the 
Balance Sheet. 

2.7	 Trade Receivables

	� Trade receivables are amounts due from customers 
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary 
course of business and reflect Group’s unconditional 
right to consideration (that is payment is due only on 
the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised 

initially at the transaction price as they do not contain 
significant financing components. The Group holds 
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the 
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less loss allowance. On account of 
adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit 
loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

2.8	 Foreign currency translation

	 Transactions and balances

	� Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying 
the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 
remaining unsettled at the end of the year are translated 
at the closing rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet 
date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms 
of historical cost denominated in foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 
transaction. Exchange differences arising as a result of 
the above are recognised as income or expenses in the 
statement of profit and loss. Exchange difference arising 
on the settlement of monetary items at rates different 
from those at which they were initially recorded during 
the year, or reported in previous consolidated financial 
statements, are recognised as income or expenses in 
the year in which they arise.
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	 Group companies

	� The results and financial position of foreign operations 
that have a functional currency different from 
the presentation currency are translated into the 
presentation currency as follows:

	 -	� assets and liabilities are translated at the closing 
rate at the date of that balance sheet.

	 -	� income and expenses are translated at average 
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable 
approximation of the cumulative effect of the 
rates prevailing on the 

	 -	� transaction dates, in which case income and 
expenses are translated at the dates of the 
transactions), and

	 -	� All resulting exchange differences are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. 

2.9	 Derivative financial instruments

	 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

	� The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such 
as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign 
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are 
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Fair 
value changes are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss and are included in Foreign exchange (gain) / 
loss.

2.10	Revenue Recognition 

	� Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of 
promised goods to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Group expects 
to receive in exchange for those goods. To recognise 
revenues, the Group applies the following five step 
approach:

	 -	� identify the contract with a customer,

	 -	� identify the performance obligations in the 
contract,

	 -	� determine the transaction price,

	 -	� allocate the transaction price to the performance 
obligations in the contract, and

	 -	� recognise revenues when a performance 
obligation is satisfied.

	 Sale of goods 

	� The Group recognised revenue from sale of goods 
measured upon satisfaction of performance obligation 

which is at a point in time when control is transferred to 
the customer which is usually on shipment / dispatch / 
delivery. Depending on the terms of the contract, which 
differs from contract to contract, the goods are sold 
on a reasonable credit term. As per the terms of the 
contract, consideration that is variable, according to Ind 
AS 115, is estimated at contract inception and updated 
thereafter at each reporting date or until crystallisation 
of the amount.

	� Revenue is measured based on the transaction 
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for trade 
discounts, cash discounts, volume discounts, rebates, 
scheme allowances, incentives and returns, if any, as 
specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue 
excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of 
the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and 
returns are estimated (using the most likely method) 
based on accumulated experience with customers. Due 
to the short nature of credit period given to customers, 
there is no financing component in the contract.

	 Interest income

	� Interest income from financial assets is recognised 
when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial assets to that 
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Dividends

	� Dividend income from investments is recognised 
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has 
been established (provided that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably).

	 Insurance claims

	� Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of 
claims admitted and to the extent that there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the claims.

	 Export Incentives

	� An export incentive (i.e. Duty Drawback, Merchandise 
Export Incentive Scheme and other schemes as per the 
Export Import Policy) is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per 
the terms of the scheme is established in respect of 
export made, and there is no uncertainty to its receipt. 
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2.11	Taxation

	 Current tax

	� Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities in accordance with the 
Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The Group 
has adopted the new Income-tax Regime with effect 
from 01 April, 2022.

	� Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

	 Deferred tax

	� Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised 
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax 
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at 
the time of the transaction.

	� Deferred tax is not recognised for- temporary 
differences on the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction that: 

	 1.	 Is not a business combination.

	 2.	� At the time of the transaction (i) affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or (loss) and (ii) 
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary difference.

	� Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that either future taxable profits or 
reversal of deferred tax liabilities will be available, 
against which the deductible temporary differences, 
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 
tax losses can be utilised. 

	� The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be 
reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

	� Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period 

and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax 
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

	� Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate 
to the same taxation authority.

2.12 	�Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) and 
Depreciation 

	 Recognition and measurement

	� The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. On adoption of Ind AS, the 
Group retained the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment as recognised in the Consolidated 
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind 
ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP and used that 
as its deemed cost as permitted by Ind AS 101 ‘First-
time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.

	� PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost 
of PPE comprises its purchase price, including non-
refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts 
and rebates. The cost of PPE includes taxes, duties, 
freight, interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets and other incidental expenses 
which are required to bring the asset in the condition 
for its intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, if any. 

	� Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred.

	� The residual values, useful life and depreciation method 
are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that 
the amount, method and period of depreciation are 
consistent with previous estimates and the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

	� An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an 
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item of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the 
Consolidated financial statements. 

	 Depreciation and amortisation

	� Depreciation is provided after impairment, if any, using 
the straight-line method as per the useful lives of the 
assets estimated by the management, or at rates 
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013. The Group has used the following estimated 
useful life to provide depreciation on its property, plant 
and equipment.

Asset class Estimated useful life
Computers 3 years
Furniture and Fixtures   10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor cars 8 years
Leasehold improvements 6 years
Electrical installations 6 years

	� An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.13	Intangible assets and amortisation

	� Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any.

	� Intangible assets are amortised over the useful 
economic life. Amortisation is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of respective intangible 
assets. 

Asset Class Years
Computer software 4 Years
Product Registration and 
Licences

5 Years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from 
use or disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition are 
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in the statement of profit 
and loss within other expenses.

	 Subsequent expenditure-

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates and the cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably. 

	� Research and Development costs, Product 
Registration and Licences

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development 
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as 
an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

-	� The technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that the asset will be available 
for use or sale

-	� Its intention to complete and its ability and 
intention to use or sell the asset

-	� It is probable that future economic benefits will 
flow to the Group and the Group has control over 
the asset

Cost of Product Registration generally comprise of 
costs incurred towards creating product dossiers, fees 
paid to registration consultants, application fees to the 
Government authorities, data compensation costs, 
data call-in costs and fees for task-force membership.

In situations where consideration for data compensation 
is under negotiation and is pending finalisation of 
contractual agreements, cost is determined on a best 
estimate basis by the management and revised to 
actual amounts on conclusion of agreements. 

Following initial recognition of the development 
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins 
when development is complete and the asset is 
available for use. It is amortised over the period of 
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless 
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of 
another asset.

2.14	Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates 
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal, and its 
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
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pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs 
of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into 
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share 
prices for publicly traded companies or other available 
fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed 
budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the 
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and 
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five 
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to projected future cash flows 
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections 
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/
forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections 
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate 
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be 
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed 
the long-term average growth rate for the products, 
industries, or country or countries in which the entity 
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or 
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group 
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. 

A loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually 
as at the balance sheet date at the CGU level, as 
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may be impaired.

2.15	Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether 
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration.

	 Group as a lessee:

At commencement or on modification of a contract that 
contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component 
on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or 
the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the 
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise 
a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset 
will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying 
asset, which is determined on the same basis as those 
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use 
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if 
any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the 
lease liability.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not 
meet the definition of investment property in ‘property 
and equipment’ and lease liabilities in the statement of 
financial position.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements 
of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases 
for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease 
payments associated with these leases are recognised 
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. Such operating lease payments are recognised 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group’s leases mainly comprise office buildings. 
The Group leases buildings for office purpose.

2.16	Inventories

	� Inventories include raw materials, traded goods and 
finished goods. Inventory is valued at lower of cost or 
net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net 
realisable value is made on an item-to-item basis.

	� Cost comprises the purchase price, costs of conversion 
and other related costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis 
as per individual location which is done on specific 
identification of batches. 
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	� Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale.

	� The Group reviews the condition of its inventories and 
makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving 
inventory items which are identified as no longer 
suitable for sale or use. Obsolete and slow-moving 
items are valued at cost or estimated net realisable 
value, whichever is lower. Any write‑down of inventories 
is recognised as an expense during the year. 

2.17	Provisions

	� Provisions are recognised when the Group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. 

	� The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	� These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	� Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to 
claims litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc. are 
recognised when it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

2.18	Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	� A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group 
or a present obligation that is not recognised because 
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be 
measured reliably.  

	� The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial 
statements.

	� A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will 
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, 
contingent assets are disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

	� Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.19	Employee benefit expenses

	� Employee benefits consist of contribution to provident 
fund, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

	 Post-employment benefit plans

	 Defined Contribution plans

	� Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 
scheme for eligible employees in the form of provident 
fund are charged as an expense as they fall due. Such 
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes 
as the Group does not carry any further obligations, 
apart from the contributions made.

	 Defined benefit plans

	� The Group operates defined benefit plans - gratuity 
fund. 

	� The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect 
of its defined benefit plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method.

	� The present value of the said obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, 
using market yields of government bonds that have 
tenure approximating the tenures of the related liability. 

	� The interest income / (expense) are calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit 
liability or asset. The net interest income / (expense) on 
the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognised in 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss. 

	� Remeasurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They 
are included in retained earnings in the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet.

	� Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or 
loss as past service cost.

	 Short-term employee benefit

	� All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Short term employee benefits 
are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted 
amount in the statement of profit and loss of the year in 
which the related service is rendered.
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	� Provision for compensation absence is determined on 
the basis of leave credit balance of individual employee 
as at year end and last drawn salary and is charged to 
statement of profit and loss for the year.

2.20	Financial instruments

	� A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 Financial assets

	 Initial recognition and initial measurement

	� Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, 
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and 
fair value through profit or loss. The classification of 
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the 
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics 
and the Group’s business model for managing them. 
The Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair 
value plus transaction costs, in the case of a financial 
asset not at fair value through profit or loss. 

	 Classification and subsequent measurement

	� For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified in four categories:

	 -	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

	 -	� Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

	 -	� Debt instruments, derivatives and equity 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

	 -	 Equity instruments 

	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

	� A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if 
both the following conditions are met:

	 a)	� The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

	 b)	� Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding.

	� After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

	� A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both 
of the following criteria are met:

	 a)	� The objective of the business model is achieved 
both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and

	 b)	� The asset’s contractual cash flows represent 
solely payments of principle & interest (SPPI).

	� Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category 
are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in 
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
Group recognises interest income, impairment losses 
& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the 
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit 
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR 
method.

	 Debt instrument at FVTPL

	� FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any 
debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL.

	� In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt 
instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election 
is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred 
to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not 
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

	� Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Equity investments

	� Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried 
at cost. All other equity investments in scope of Ind 
AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading and contingent consideration 
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For 
all other equity instruments, the Group may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

	� If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as 
at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
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excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is 
no recycling of amounts from OCI to the statement of 
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, 
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity.

	� Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Derecognition

	� A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the 
Group’s balance sheet) when:

	 -	� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
have expired, or

	 -	� The Group has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement and either

		  (a)	� the Group has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

		  (b)	� the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset but has transferred control of the 
asset.

	� When the Group has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent 
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise 
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also 
recognises an associated liability. 

	� The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Group has retained.

	� Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group 
could be required to repay.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	� In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies 
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

	 a)	� Financial assets that are debt instruments, and 
are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank 
balance

	 b)	� Financial assets that are debt instruments and are 
measured as at FVTOCI

	 c)	� Trade receivables or any contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset that result 
from transactions that are within the scope of 
Ind AS 115 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue 
receivables’ in these financial statements)

	� The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition 
of impairment loss allowance on:

	 -	 Trade receivables and

	 -	 Other receivables

	� The application of simplified approach does not require 
the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition.

	� For recognition of impairment loss on other financial 
assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the 
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to 
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in 
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the 
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance 
based on 12-month ECL.

	� Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting 
from all possible default events over the expected life of 
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion 
of the lifetime ECL which results from default events 
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date. 

	� ECL is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects 
to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity 
is required to consider:

	 -	� All contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) over the expected life of the financial 
instrument. However, in rare cases when the 
expected life of the financial instrument cannot 
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to 
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use the remaining contractual term of the financial 
instrument.

	 -	� Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms.

	 -	� Financial assets measured as at amortised 
cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL 
is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral 
part of the measurement of those assets in the 
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off 
criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment 
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

	 Financial liabilities

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	� Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, 
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate.

	� All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value 
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

	� The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

	 Subsequent measurement

	� The measurement of financial liabilities depends on 
their classification, as described below:

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	� Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the 
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category 
also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind 
AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading unless they are designated 
as effective hedging instruments.

	� Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Loans and borrowings

	� After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.

	� Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 Derecognition

	� A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	� Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and 
the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.21	Cash and cash equivalents

	� The Group considers all highly liquid financial 
instruments, which are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value and having original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be 
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of balances with banks which are unrestricted for 
withdrawal and usage.

	� For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the 
Group’s cash management.

2.22	Earnings per share

	� Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Group’s earnings per 
share are the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders.

	� For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss after tax for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
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average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares, except where the results would be anti-
dilutive.

2.23	Segment reporting

	� Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind 
AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker evaluates the Group’s performance and 
allocates the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments. Inter 
segment sales and transfers are reflected at market 
prices. 

	� Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment 
assets and segment liabilities have been identified 
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the 
operating activities of the segment. Inter segment 
revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions 
which are primarily determined based on market / 
fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and 
liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are 
not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have 
been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / 
assets / liabilities”.

2A.	� Critical accounting judgements and key sources of 
estimation uncertainty 

	� The preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities 
and disclosures as at date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues 
and expenses for the years presented. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates 
under different assumptions and conditions.

	� The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	 (i)	 Critical Judgements 

		�  In the process of applying the Group`s accounting 
policies, management has made the following 
judgements, which have the most significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements: 

		  Contingences and commitments

		�  In the normal course of business, contingent 
liabilities may arise from litigations and other 
claims against the Group. Where the potential 
liabilities have a low probability of crystallising 
or are very difficult to quantify reliably, these are 
considered as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities 
are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for 
in the consolidated financial statements. Although 
there can be no assurance regarding the final 
outcome of the legal proceedings, these are not 
expected to have a materially adverse impact on 
our financial position or profitability.

	 (ii)	 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

		�  The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below. 

		  Taxes

		�  There are many transactions and calculations 
undertaken during the ordinary course of business 
for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these 
matters is different from the amounts initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the current 
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which 
the tax determination is made. The assessment 
of probability involves estimation of a number of 
factors including future taxable income.

		  Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

		�  A liability in respect of defined benefit plans is 
recognised in the balance sheet and is measured 
as the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value 
of the plan’s assets. The present value of the 
defined benefit obligation is based on expected 
future payments at the reporting date, calculated 
annually by independent actuaries. Consideration 
is given to expected future salary levels, experience 
of employee departures and periods of service. 

		  Impairment of financial assets

		�  The Group assesses impairment based on 
expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade 
receivables. The Group uses a provision matrix 
to determine impairment loss allowance on 
the portfolio of trade and other receivables. 
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The provision matrix is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of 
the trade and other receivable and is adjusted for 
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, 
the historical observed default rates are updated 
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed. 

		  Impairment of non- financial assets

		�  The Group assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. It is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessment of the time value of money and the 
risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value 
less cost of disposal, recent market transactions 
are taken into account. If no such transactions 
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model 
is used.

		�  Provision against obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories

		�  The Group reviews the condition of its inventories 
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no 
longer suitable for sale or use. Group estimates 
the net realisable value for such inventories 
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and 
current market conditions. The Group carries 
out an inventory review at each balance sheet 
date and makes provision against obsolete and 
slow-moving items. The Group reassesses the 
estimation on each balance sheet date. 

		  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

		�  The Group reviews the useful life of property, 
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting 
period. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expense in future periods.

		  Liability for sales return

		�  In making judgment for liability for sales return, 
the management considered the detailed criteria 

for the recognition of revenue from the sale of 
goods set out in Ind AS 115 and in particular, 
whether the Group had transferred to the buyer 
the significant risk and rewards of ownership of 
the goods. Following the detailed quantification 
of the Group`s liability towards sales return, the 
management is satisfied that significant risk 
and rewards have been transferred and that 
recognition of the revenue in the current year is 
appropriate, in conjunction with the recognition of 
an appropriate liability for sales return. 

		�  Accruals for estimated product returns, which 
are based on historical experience of actual sales 
returns and adjustment on account of current 
market scenario is considered by Group to be 
reliable estimate of future sales returns.

	 (iii)	 Recent accounting pronouncement 

		  •	 Standards issued but not yet effective

			�   The Company has applied all Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and 
amendments effective for the financial year 
ended 31 March, 2025, as notified by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The 
following amendments, effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 01 
April, 2024, were assessed and determined 
to have no material impact on the Company’s 
financial statements due to the nature of its 
operations:

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 116 (Leases) related 
to sale and leaseback transactions.

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 107 (Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures) related to supplier 
finance arrangements.

			�   Amendments to Ind AS 1 (Presentation of 
Financial Statements) related to classification 
of liabilities as current or non-current.

			�   As of the date of authorisation of these 
financial statements, no new standards or 
amendments have been issued by the MCA 
that are not yet effective for the financial year 
ended 31 March, 2025. The Company will 
continue to monitor developments in Ind AS 
and assess their impact on future financial 
statements.

			�   There are no specific MCA notifications or 
ICAI announcements that indicate new Ind 
AS standards or amendments issued with 
an effective date beyond 01 April, 2025, that 
would apply to FY 2025-26 or later.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)

3A. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(` Lakhs)
Office 

equipments
Furniture 

and fixtures
Motor cars Computers Cylinders Leasehold 

Improvements
Electrical 

Installation
Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2023  248.49  630.55  75.49  45.79  5.72  497.15  199.27  1,702.46 

Additions  3.55  0.31  35.25  8.71  -  -  -  47.82 

Disposals  (1.38)  0.05  -  (8.78)  (5.72)  -  -  (15.83)

Translation exchange 
difference  2.01  1.76  -  0.64  -  -  -  4.41 

At 31 March, 2024  252.67  632.67  110.74  46.36  -  497.15  199.27 1,738.86

Accumulated 
depreciation

At 01 April, 2023  236.83  321.09  5.78  16.81  5.72  442.47  176.02  1,204.72 

Depreciation charge 
during the year  8.92  66.36  11.23  15.98  -  44.20  18.52  165.21 

Disposals  (1.75)  -  -  (7.66)  (5.72)  -  -  (15.13)

Translation exchange 
difference  1.60  1.71  -  0.61  -  -  -  3.92 

At 31 March, 2024  245.60  389.16  17.01  25.74  -  486.67  194.54 1,358.72

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2023  11.66  309.46  69.71  28.98  -  54.68  23.25 497.74

At 31 March, 2024  7.07  243.51  93.73  20.62  -  10.48  4.73 380.14

(` Lakhs)
Office 

equipments
Furniture 

and fixtures
Motor cars Computers Cylinders Leasehold 

Improvements
Electrical 

Installation
Total

Cost

At 01 April, 2024  252.67  632.67  110.74  46.36  -  497.15  199.27  1,738.86 

Additions  2.86  12.24  -  11.05  2.87  -  -  29.02 

Disposals  (3.89)  -  -  (12.93)  -  -  -  (16.82)

Translation exchange 
difference  (1.89)  1.07  -  (3.64)  -  -  (0.02)  (4.48)

At 31 March, 2025  249.75  645.98  110.74  40.84  2.87  497.15  199.25  1,746.58 

Accumulated 
depreciation

At 01 April, 2024  245.60  389.16  17.01  25.74  -  486.67  194.54  1,358.72 

Depreciation charge 
during the year  1.89  66.82  15.42  12.88  0.19  10.48  4.71  112.39 

Disposals  (3.89)  -    -    (12.93)  -    -  -  (16.82)

Translation exchange 
difference  (1.49)  0.68  -  (3.00)  -  -  -  (3.81)

At 31 March, 2025  242.11  456.66  32.43  22.69  0.19  497.15  199.25  1,450.48 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2024  7.07  243.51  93.73  20.62  -  10.48  4.73  380.14 

At 31 March, 2025  7.64  189.32  78.31  18.15  2.68  -  -  296.10 
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3B. RIGHT OF USE ASSET

(` Lakhs)
Leasehold premises

Cost
At 01 April, 2023  2,139.87 
Additions   2,154.05 
Disposals  -   
At 31 March, 2024  4,293.92 
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April, 2023  2,139.87 
Depreciation charge during the year  718.02 
At 31 March, 2024  2,857.89 
Net carrying value 
At 31 March, 2023  -   
At 31 March, 2024  1,436.03 

(` Lakhs)

Leasehold premises

Cost

At 01 April, 2024  4,293.92 

Additions   -   

At 31 March, 2025  4,293.92 

Accumulated depreciation

At 01 April, 2024  2,857.89 

Depreciation charge during the year  718.02 

At 31 March, 2025  3,575.91 

Net carrying value 

At 31 March, 2024  1,436.03 

At 31 March, 2025  718.01 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(` Lakhs)
Computer 
Software

Product 
Registration and 

Licences

Total

Cost
At 01 April, 2023  115.67  1,63,478.82  1,63,594.49 
Additions*  26.54  30,600.20  30,626.74 
Disposals#  -  (4,865.22)  (4,865.22)
Translation exchange difference  0.06  -  0.06 
At 31 March, 2024  142.27  1,89,213.80  1,89,356.07 
Accumulated amortisation
At 01 April, 2023  96.67  97,198.07  97,294.74 
Amortisation during the year  13.66  25,816.29  25,829.95 
Disposals#  -  (2,764.08)  (2,764.08)
At 31 March, 2024  110.33  1,20,250.28  1,20,360.61 
Net carrying value 
At 31 March, 2023  19.00  66,280.75  66,299.75 
At 31 March, 2024  31.94  68,963.52  68,995.46 
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(` Lakhs)
Computer 
Software

Product 
Registration and 

Licences

Total

Cost
At 01 April, 2024  142.27  1,89,213.80  1,89,356.07 
Additions*  -  34,393.80  34,393.80 
Disposals#  -  (3,309.70)  (3,309.70)
Translation exchange difference  (26.60)  -  (26.61)
At 31 March, 2025  115.67  2,20,297.90  2,20,413.56 
Accumulated amortisation
At 01 April, 2024  110.33  1,20,250.28  1,20,360.61 
Amortisation during the year  2.76  26,633.20  26,635.96 
Disposals#  0.60  (607.25)  (606.65)
Translation exchange difference  (0.61)  -  (0.61)
At 31 March, 2025  113.08  1,46,276.23  1,46,389.31 
Net carrying value 
At 31 March, 2024  31.94  68,963.52  68,995.46 
At 31 March, 2025  2.59  74,021.67  74,024.25 

*The data compensation elements of product registration was initially capitalised based on management assessment of 
the amounts payable. The gross block of product registration and licenses have been reduced consequent to negotiations / 
arbitration between contracting parties by ` 2,623.32 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,821.99 Lakhs)

#The Company has written off certain assets during the current year having net written down value of ̀  79.13 Lakhs (31 March, 
2024: ` 279.15 Lakhs)  based on internal assessment.

4A. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(` Lakhs)
Intangible assets 

under development
Cost
At 01 April, 2023  20,386.94 
Additions  42,127.82 
Disposals  (3,628.25)
Capitalised  (30,600.20)
At 31 March, 2024  28,286.31 

(` Lakhs)
Intangible assets 

under development
Cost
At 01 April, 2024  28,286.31 
Additions  42,062.80 
Disposals  (6,817.07)
Capitalised  (34,393.80)
At 31 March, 2025  29,138.24 

Intangible assets under development comprise of costs incurred towards creating product dossiers, fees paid to registration 
consultants, application fees to the ministries, data compensation costs, data call-in costs and fees for task-force membership.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)



Sharda Cropchem Limited 237

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25236

4B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(i)	 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
Projects Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years

Total

Product Registration  9,408.51  6,625.83  5,323.90  6,928.07  28,286.31 
 9,408.51  6,625.83  5,323.90  6,928.07  28,286.31 

(ii)	 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)
Projects Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years

Total

Product Registration  12,327.26  8,042.22  4,581.24  4,109.98  29,060.69 
Computer Software  50.95  26.60  -    -    77.55 

 12,378.20  8,068.81  4,581.24  4,109.98  29,138.24 

a)	 For Intangible assets under development, there are no such projects where activity has been temporarily suspended

b)	� For Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original 
plan :

	� The major business of the Company (80% approximately) is sale of Agrochemical products in more than 70 countries 
around the world. These products are not freely tradable or saleable. These products need to be approved by the 
competent authorities and ministries independently in every country where the product is intended to be marketed. 
The process of approval is known as ‘Registration’ of the product and its form as an intangible asset of the Company. 
The process of registration involves identification of the product, basic and applied research, field trials, data generation, 
evaluation and approval by the authorities at each step. The nature of these processes makes it highly unpredictable in 
terms of cost as well as timeline. The timeline can vary for 6 months to 8 years approx. The varying demand from the 
authorities during the process of registration also adds to the uncertainty of cost and timeline. As of 31 March, 2025, there 
are 1,014 (31 March, 2024: 1,095) product registrations (numbers) in pipeline across geographies.

5. GOODWILL 

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Carrying value at the beginning of the year  0.92  0.84 

Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss)  (0.92)  0.08 

Carrying value at the end of the year  -    0.92 

*For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the groups of CGU’s, which 
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. The chief operating decision maker reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the 
operating segment level, which is represented through groups of CGU’s.

6. CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
 Investment carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 Investments in mutual funds (Quoted) 
-Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund  - Growth Regular Plan 
4,49,580 (31 March, 2024: 8,94,860) units of ` 10 each

 1,632.27  3,015.32 
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(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Kotak Money Market Fund -Growth (Regular Plan) 
50,838 (31 March, 2024: 65,567) units of ` 1,000 each

 2,239.90  2,682.24 

Nippon India Money Market Fund (Growth Plan) 
29,227 (31 March, 2024: 29,227) units of ` 1000 each

 1,189.80  1,104.55 

-Union Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growth 
Nil (31 March, 2024:  24,72,526) units of ` 10 each

 -    341.01 

-Union Medium Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth  
Nil (31 March, 2024: 19,99,900) units of ` 10 each

 -    233.74 

-Union Hybrid Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 
9,99,940 (31 March, 2024: 9,99,940) units of ` 10 each

 167.59  158.89 

-Union Multi Asset Allocation Fund - Regular - Growth 
9,99,950 (31 March, 2024: Nil) units of ` 10 each

 99.90  -   

- Bandhan Ultra Short term Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 
2,41,79,737 (31 March, 2024: 1,63,78,391) units of ` 10 each

 3,612.65  2,278.32 

- ICICI Prudential - Equity Arbitrage - Growth 
69,81,535 (31 March, 2024: 96,61,346) units of ` 10 each

 2,356.80  3,038.01 

- DSP Arbitrage Fund  - Regular Growth 
2,13,02,727 (31 March, 2024: Nil) units of ` 10 each

 3,134.70  -   

- SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund GR 
48,60,465 (31 March, 2024: 98,02,932) units of ` 10 each

 1,616.40  3,037.79 

 16,050.00  15,889.87 
Investment In Bonds carried at fair value (Quoted)
- HDB Financial Services Limited SR 7.7% NCD 11AG25 
 200 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 1,997.91  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 6.24% Bonds 21/09/30 
 250 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,479.43  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 7.74% Bonds Perpetual 
 100 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 929.53  -   

- State Bank Of India SR 7.73% Bonds Perpetual 
 240 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,452.60  -   

- Cholamandalam Investment & Finanace Co. Ltd. 8.30% DB 12DC25 
 250 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 10,00,000 each

 2,505.78  -   

- Shriram Finance Limited SR PDD 9.25% NCD 19DC25 
 3000 (31 March, 2024: Nil) Units of ` 1,00,000 each

 3,017.49  -   

(B)  13,382.74  -   
Total  29,432.74  15,889.87 

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

 Aggregate amount of quoted investments   29,432.74  15,889.87 

 Investment carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)  29,432.74  15,889.87 
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7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit  528.73  532.28 
Balance in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of more than twelve 
months*

 8.28  -   

Total  537.01  532.28 

*Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 0.11 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` Nil).

*There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 8.28 Lakhs  
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) against credit facilities availed by the Company.

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
In fixed deposit accounts

with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 
months*

 4,307.30  12,779.02 

Unsecured, considered good
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contracts (refer note 38)  0.20  20.86 
Interest accrued on Bonds  429.13  6.95 
Other current assets  15.06  -   

Total  4,751.68  12,806.83 

*Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 103.48 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 688.63 Lakhs).

*There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 3,721.68 Lakhs 
(31 March, 2024: ` 12,021.44 Lakhs) against credit facilities availed by the Company.

8A. INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Advance tax [Net of provision for income tax of ̀  25,538.01 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: 
` 46,230.93 Lakhs)]

 6,337.63  7,206.42 

Total  6,337.63  7,206.42 

8B. INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Other provisions

Provision for income tax [Net of advance tax ` Nil (31 March, 2024: ` Nil)]  423.47  145.85 

 Total  423.47  145.85 
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8C. TAX EXPENSE

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024 are:

Income tax expenses in the statement of profit and loss comprises of :-

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge  5,350.11  2,898.52 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of earlier years  71.17  389.69 
Deferred tax :
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  1,970.86  708.33 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  7,392.13  3,996.54 

Income tax (expense)/benefit recognised in OCI

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in OCI during the year:

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Net (gain)/loss on remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans  (2.51)  3.79 

Total  (2.51)  3.79 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate (ETR)

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Profit from operations before income taxes  37,833.88 7,187.16
Tax @ 25.168% (31 March, 2024: 25.168%) (Indian statutory income tax rate)  9,522.03 1,808.87
Tax effect on income not taxable/taxable at different rates for tax purposes in 
certain jurisdictions :

Effect of deduction with respect to dividend income  1,362.40  681.20 
Others mainly tax effect of Profit at lower/ nil tax rates in certain jurisdictions  895.68  (2,504.60)

 2,258.09  (1,823.40)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure  183.68  204.65 
Others  2.16  0.93 

 185.84  205.58 
Effect of deductible temporary differences now recognised as deferred tax 
assets/ liabilities

 (128.83)  (230.99)

Adjustment of tax of earlier years  71.17  389.69 
Income tax expense 7,392.13 3,996.55

8D. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference related to profit on stock reserves  1,075.31  995.05 
Other  80.62  36.28 
Gross deferred tax assets  1,155.93  1,031.33 
Net deferred tax assets 1,155.93 1,031.33
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8E. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Deferred tax assets

Provision for gratuity  10.27  38.96 

Provision for investment in subsidiary  124.47  124.47 

Lease liability  195.29  375.62 

Provision for doubtful debts  549.04  570.13 

Provision for inventories  101.16  471.04 

Provision for Sales Return and Purchase Return (Net)  333.72  532.30 

Provision for Deferred Sales  203.63  255.74 

Others  73.34  24.65 

Gross deferred tax assets  1,590.92  2,392.91 

Deferred tax liabilities

Tangible and intangible assets  18,458.09  17,180.06 

Lease assets  180.71  361.42 

Unrealised gain/ loss on derivative contract caried at fair value through statement 
of profit and loss

 332.65  129.94 

Interest on Fair value

Gross deferred tax liabilities  18,971.45  17,671.42 

Net deferred tax liabilities  (17,380.51)  (15,278.51)

Note :

In respect of Deferred taxes, all items are attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax benefits 
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which, those deductible temporary differences can be realised.

The net movement in the deferred tax for the year ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Net deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the year  (15,242.24)  (14,342.98)

(Charge) relating to temporary difference  (2,079.98)  (939.32)

Temporary difference on other comprehensive income  (2.32)  3.79 

Translation difference  (8.91)  -   

Net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the year  (17,333.45)  (15,278.51)

9. INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE)

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Raw materials including packing materials [Stock in transit ` 4,361.45  Lakhs (31 
March, 2024: ` 2,243.95 Lakhs)]

 19,943.36  27,777.53 

Finished Goods [Stock in transit ` 18,203.23 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: `  9,914.15 
Lakhs)]

 68,602.25  58,766.55 
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(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Traded goods [Stock in transit ` 49.97 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 2,787.63 Lakhs)]  8,647.47  12,620.14 

Total  97,193.08  99,164.22 

Note:

i)	� Amount of write down of inventories to net realisable value and other provisions / losses recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss as an expense is ` 12,096.54 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 12,220.54 Lakhs)

ii)	� Fund and non-fund based credit facilities availed by the Company from bank is secured by first paripassu charge on 
inventories (including stock-in-trade, and stock-in-transit) and trade receivables.

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Considered Good, Unsecured  1,95,544.18  1,49,799.95 
Significant increase in credit risk  2,611.74  3,139.55 

Total  1,98,155.92  1,52,939.50 
Less: - Allowances for credit losses  (2,611.74)  (3,139.55)

Total  1,95,544.18  1,49,799.95 

For the Company’s credit risk management process, refer note 38.

Fund and non-fund based credit facilities availed by the Company from bank is secured by first paripassu charge on inventories 
(including stock-in-trade, and stock-in-transit) and trade receivables.

11A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Balances with banks    

in current account  12,719.62  8,723.24 
Cash on  hand  1.67  11.04 

Total  12,721.29  8,734.28 

11B. BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
 In Fixed deposit account

with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 
months*

 9,256.38  -   

In earmarked accounts
Unpaid dividend accounts  57.20  57.53 

Total  9,313.58  57.53 

* Fixed Deposit includes accrued Interest of ` 308.14 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` Nil).

*There is a lien marked on deposits with bank in favour of Union Bank of India for an amount aggregating ` 9,028.14 Lakhs  
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) against credit facilities availed by the Company.
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12. OTHER ASSETS

Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Advances other than capital advances
Goods and service tax receivable  826.21  826.21 
Statutory dues receivable from government authorities  539.23  1,086.02 
Export incentive receivable  273.01  260.90 

Total  1,638.45  2,173.13 

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to vendors for supply of goods and services  199.95  133.05 
Right of recoveries against expected sales return  4,255.01  5,336.59 
Goods and service tax receivable  3,189.99  1,141.63 
Statutory dues receivable from government authorities  1,570.31  500.74 
Prepaid expenses  358.31  219.74 
Advance tax  78.88  -   
COGS Reversal Impact as per IND AS  10.01  -   
Security Deposit  0.89  -   
Export incentive and other receivable  19.66  5.79 

Total  9,683.00  7,337.54 

13. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Authorised share capital
10,50,00,000 (31 March, 2024: 10,50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  10,500.00  10,500.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
9,02,20,495 (31 March, 2024: 9,02,20,495) equity shares of ` 10/- each  9,022.05  9,022.05 

(a)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Equity shares

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
No. of Shares  ` Lakhs No. of Shares  ` Lakhs 

At the beginning of the year  9,02,20,495  9,022.05  9,02,20,495  9,022.05 
Outstanding at the end of the year  9,02,20,495  9,022.05  9,02,20,495  9,022.05 

(b)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards to 
dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from 
time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the 
paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other 
sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
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(c) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

No. of Shares  % holding in 
the class 

No. of Shares  % holding in 
the class 

Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna  1,40,52,686 15.58%  1,40,52,686 15.58%

Mrs. Sharda R. Bubna  1,40,91,147 15.62%  1,40,91,147 15.62%

Mr Ashish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%

Mr Manish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%

HDFC Mutual Fund  65,52,672 7.26%  73,84,480 8.18%

Total  6,50,56,505 72.12%  6,58,88,313 73.04%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of 
shares.

(d)	 Shareholding of Promoters:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024 % Change 
during 

the year
Promoter's Name No. of 

Shares
 % of total 

shares 
No. of 

Shares
 % of total 

shares 

Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna  1,40,52,686 15.58%  1,40,52,686 15.58%  -   

Mrs. Sharda R. Bubna  1,40,91,147 15.62%  1,40,91,147 15.62%  -   

Mr Ashish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%  -   

Mr Manish R. Bubna  1,51,80,000 16.83%  1,51,80,000 16.83%  -   

Mrs. Seema A Bubna  45,00,000 4.99%  45,00,000 4.99%  -   

Mrs. Anisha M Bubna  45,00,000 4.99%  45,00,000 4.99%  -   

(e) 	 In the period of five years, immediately preceding March, 2025:

	� The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without payment being received in cash or bonus shares 
or bought back any equity shares.

(f) 	 Distribution made and proposed

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Cash dividend on equity shares declared:

Interim dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 3.00 
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) per share

 2,706.61  -   

Proposed dividend on Equity shares:

Final cash dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 6.00 (31 March, 
2024: ` 3.00) per share

 5,413.23  2,760.61 

Cash dividends on equity shares distributed and paid :

Interim dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2025: ` 3.00 
(31 March, 2024: ` Nil) per share

 2,706.61  -   

Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March, 2024: ` 6.00 
(31 March, 2023: ` 3.00) per share

 2,706.61  2,706.61 
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14. OTHER EQUITY

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,581.11  1,581.11 

Balance at the end of the year  1,581.11  1,581.11 

Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,168.55  2,168.55 

Balance at the end of the year  2,168.55  2,168.55 

General reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year  664.94  664.94 

Balance at the end of the year  664.94  664.94 

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  6,893.94  6,828.41 

Add: Foreign currency translation reserve for the year  1,428.35  65.53 

Balance at the end of the year  8,322.29  6,893.94 

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,03,380.91  2,02,937.12 

Add: Profit for the year  30,437.82  3,188.31 

Add: Other comprehensive income  7.47  (10.54)

Less: Payment of dividends  5,528.24  2,733.98 

Balance at the end of the year  2,28,297.96  2,03,380.91 

Total  2,41,034.84  2,14,689.45 

Capital Reserve - 

The Group recognises profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to capital 
reserve.

Securities Premium - 

Where the Group issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the 
premium received on those shares shall be transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus 
shares to its members out of the securities premium and the Company can use this for buy-back of shares.

General Reserve - 

General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Group by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and 
loss. The Group can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of fully paid-up bonus shares.

Foreign currency translation reserve-

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit and loss when the net 
investment is disposed off.

Retained earnings-

The amount represent profits that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders.
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15. LEASE LIABILITY

Following is carrying value of Lease Liability and the movements thereof :

(` Lakhs)

Description As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Opening Balance  1,492.47  -   

Addition  -    2,154.05 

Interest Cost accrued during the year  93.50  148.41 

Lease liability payment  (810.00)  (810.00)

Deletion  -    -   

Exchange Rate Variance on Lease Liability  -    -   

Closing Balance  775.97  1,492.46 

Current lease liability  775.97  716.50 

Non - Current lease liability  -    775.97 

Total lease liability  775.97  1,492.47 

16. BORROWINGS (CARRIED AT COST)

Current

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Unsecured loans  -    337.51 

Total  -    337.51 

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings  -    337.51 

Note: Quarterly statements of current assets are filed with Banks, are in agreement with books and no discrepancies found.

17. TRADE PAYABLES

Current

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* 
(refer note 40)

 509.29  694.91 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises*

 1,30,511.02  91,420.23 

Total  1,31,020.31  92,115.14 

*The Group has received intimation from suppliers regarding their status under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” based on which disclosure as required under the Act has been made.
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Trade payable ageing schedule as per amendment in revised Schedule III for 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)
Not Yet Due Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
Total

MSME  236.60  272.69  -    -    -    509.29 
Others  73,686.62  52,381.33  4,082.68  -    0.76  1,30,152.81 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total of Trade Payables  1,30,662.10 
Accruals  358.21 
Total  1,31,020.31 

Trade payable ageing schedule as per amendment in revised Schedule III for 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
Not Yet Due Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
Total

Trade payables
MSME  114.55  580.36  -    -    -    694.91 
Other  47,699.87  42,804.13  552.95  3.61  -    91,060.56 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total of Trade Payables  91,749.69 
Accruals  365.45 
Total  92,115.14 

18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CARRIED AT COST)

Non-current 

(` Lakhs)
As at 

31 March, 2025
As at 

31 March, 2024
Creditors for capital purchases  6,301.38  5,838.00 

 6,301.38  5,838.00 

Current 

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Unclaimed dividend*  57.20  57.53 

Creditors for capital purchases#  48,565.05  49,193.24 

Forward contract  44.96  -   

Directors commission  937.53  493.76 

Salaries and bonus  505.91  481.59 

Others  17.70  20.70 

Total  50,128.35  50,246.82 

*An amount of ` 0.51 and 0.37 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1.13 and 0.46 Lakhs) has been transferred on 15 April, 2024 and 10 
December, 2024 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013.
#Includes principal amount ` 212.04 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,122.83 Lakhs) and interest due thereon ` Nil (31 March, 2024: 
` Nil) remaining unpaid to micro enterprises and small enterprises.
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19. PROVISIONS

Non-current 

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Provision for Gratuity (refer note 30)  130.84  135.71 

Total  130.84  135.71 

Current

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Provision for Gratuity (refer note 30)  55.07  47.81 

Provision for compensated absences  66.63  65.95 

Expected return from customers  5,634.54  7,483.47 

Total  5,756.24  7,597.23 

20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(` Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Advance from customers (refer note 34)  646.42  914.39 

Reward scheme liability  1,386.76  1,813.84 

Deposit taken  10.40  9.00 

Book overdraft  401.37  371.55 

Statutory liabilities (including provident fund, tax deducted at source and others)  7,999.97  3,787.11 

Others  24.93  -   

Total  10,469.85  6,895.89 

21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customer (refer note 34)  4,31,537.21  3,16,036.86 

Other operating revenue

Export incentives  313.72  227.54 

Miscellaneous receipts  134.37  38.05 

Total  4,31,985.30  3,16,302.45 

22. OTHER INCOME

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Interest income on

Bank deposits carried at amortised cost  968.27  903.54 
Income tax refund received  1,159.08  -   

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)



Sharda Cropchem Limited 249

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25248

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Bonds  611.21  -   
Delay collection from customers  18.71  453.20 
Others  0.78  0.77 

Reversal of provision on doubtful debts  83.82  1,254.28 
Profit on redemption of Bonds  12.59  -   
Rental Income  1.20  -   
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back  1,131.23  2,341.51 
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back on creditors for capital 
purchases

 268.61  475.59 

Profit on sale of mutual funds  660.46  15.53 
Gain on financial instruments at fair value  805.37  384.04 
Miscellaneous income  232.11  147.76 

Total  5,953.45  5,976.22 

23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year  27,777.53  37,120.27 
Add: Purchases  1,69,799.12  1,39,059.52 

 1,97,576.65  1,76,179.79 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year  (19,943.36)  (27,777.53)

Total  1,77,633.29  1,48,402.26 

23A. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Agrochemicals  1,18,779.12  40,658.67 
Non Agrochemicals  12,342.38  39,212.71 

Total  1,31,121.50  79,871.38 

24. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK IN TRADE

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Inventories at the end of the year

Stock in trade 8,647.47 12,620.14
Finished goods 68,602.25 58,766.55
Add / (Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate 
transferred to currency translation reserve

 (78.23)  (296.12)

Total 77,171.49 71,090.57
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in trade 12,620.13 11,058.58
Finished goods 58,766.55 65,255.02
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(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Add / (Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate 
transferred to currency translation reserve

 (164.62) 741.93

Total 71,222.06 77,055.53
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade  (5,949.43)  5,964.96 

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus  5,015.79  4,166.83 

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 30)  3.50  4.49 

Gratuity expenses (refer note 30)  169.10  59.30 

Staff welfare expenses  13.76  12.80 

Total  5,202.15  4,243.42 

26. FINANCE COSTS

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Interest Expenses on 

Borrowing from bank  -    9.25 

Lease liabilities  93.50  148.41 

Delayed payment of statutory dues  0.12  3.70 

Others  116.95  200.53 

Total  210.58  361.89 

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

(` Lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March, 2025

Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3A)  112.41  165.21 

Depreciation on right-of-use asset (refer note 3B)  718.02  718.02 

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)  26,635.96  25,829.95 

Total  27,466.39  26,713.18 

28. OTHER EXPENSES

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Freight and forwarding expenses  9,834.88  7,455.54 
Rent  322.27  292.18 
Rates and taxes  802.21  935.07 
Insurance charges  1,370.46  1,900.44 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)



Sharda Cropchem Limited 251

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25250

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Repairs and maintenance

Buildings  1.40  1.65 
Others  50.74  52.81 

Advertising and sales promotion  2,441.87  1,342.35 
Sales commission  2,254.13  1,203.75 
Travelling and conveyance  995.28  1,009.40 
Communication expenses  145.60  117.21 
Office expenses  1,106.75  1,153.14 
Legal and professional fees  33,011.35  26,676.50 
Directors sitting fees  18.00  22.05 
Corporate Social Responsibility expense (refer note 41)  729.80  810.72 
Donation  8.60  2.41 
Payment to auditor (refer note 'a' below)  90.05  101.21 
Bad debts (net)  430.62  105.51 
Allowance for doubtful debts  73.76  493.63 
Loss on closure of subsidiaries  1.96  -   
Bank charges  1,938.66  2,057.32 
Discard / write-off of intangible assets and intangible assets under development  6,808.27  3,486.36 
Miscellaneous expenses  193.71  276.54 
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net)  1,790.02  38.62 

Total  64,420.37  49,534.41 

Details of payment to auditors:

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
As auditor:

Audit fees (31 March, 2024: includes ` 11.00 Lakhs relating to previous year)  78.08  85.35 
Reimbursement of expenses & admin charges  5.83  8.20 

In other capacities: 
Other services :- certification  6.14  7.66 

Total  90.05  101.21 

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(` Lakhs)
Year ended 

31 March, 2025
Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (` Lakhs)  30,437.83 3,188.31
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  9,02,20,495  9,02,20,495 
Earnings per Share
Face value per equity share (`)  10.00  10.00 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (`)  33.74  3.53 
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

a)	 Defined contribution plans

	� The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying 
employees towards Provident Fund,  and ESI which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other 
than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss as they accrue. 

	� The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 25 under “Contribution to 
provident and other funds”:

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024

Contribution to employees provident fund 2.81 3.03

Contribution to ESI 0.69 1.46

 3.50 4.49

b)	 Defined benefit plans

	 The Company operates one post-employment defined benefit plan  that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an 
employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year 
of completed service at the time of retirement. In case of employees completing longer service periods, the Company’s 
scheme is more favourable as compared to the obligation under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.	

(` Lakhs)
 As at 

31 March, 2025
 As at 

31 March, 2024

Changes in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the beginning of the year  465.22  396.57 

Current service cost  43.11  36.50 

Interest cost  29.94  26.24 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses  6.65  20.36 

Benefits paid  (13.53)  (14.45)

Benefit obligations at the end of the year			    531.39  465.22 

Change in plan assets	

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  281.68  83.91 

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  35.07  10.56 

Contributions  154.78  200.00 

Benefits paid			    (13.53)  (12.79)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  458.00  281.68 

Net benefit obligation at the end of the year	  73.39  183.54 

	 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses

(` Lakhs)
 Year ended 

31 March, 2025
 Year ended 

31 March, 2024

Current service cost  157.62  37.60 

Net interest cost  11.48  21.70 

Net gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss  169.10  59.30 
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	 Amounts recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income

(` Lakhs)
 Year ended 

31 March, 2025
 Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset)	
Actuarial (gains) / losses  8.16  (20.36)
(Return)/ loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in the net interest  (16.64)  6.03 

 (8.47)  (14.33)

	 Plan assets comprise of the following

 Year ended 
31 March, 2025

 Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Policy of Insurance 100% 100%

	 Actuarial assumptions as at the balance sheet date:

 Year Ended 
31 March, 2025

 Year Ended 
31 March, 2024

Discount rate 6.75% 7.20%
Expected rate of salary increase (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

Indian Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08)  
Ultimate 

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement 2% to 15% 2% to 15%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable 
to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

	 Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024
Year 1  110.53  97.97 
Year 2  30.63  29.40 
Year 3  49.40  26.37 
Year 4  62.77  45.18 
Year 5  27.54  55.76 
Year 6 to 10  185.57  153.88 

	 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions 
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.	

(` Lakhs)
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate varied by 0.5%  511.47  552.86  429.88  463.41 
Future salary growth rate varied by 0.5%  538.71  523.33  452.99  438.29 
Withdrawal rate varied by 10%  535.64  526.47  450.52  441.03 
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31. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not 
provided for (Net of capital advances, if any)

 18,105.40  22,924.16 

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(` Lakhs)
As at

31 March, 2025
As at

31 March, 2024
Income tax matters (refer note (i) below)  10,131.45  14,560.00 

Total  10,131.45  14,560.00 
Notes:

i)	 With respect to the income tax liability mentioned above, the demands have arisen due to the disallowance of a claim 
consistently made by the Group across all years. This claim has already been settled in the Group’s favor by the Hon’ble 
ITAT, Mumbai, for earlier years. Accordingly, management believes that these contingent liabilities are unlikely to have an 
adverse impact on the Company, given the favorable rulings by higher authorities in the Group’s own case.

ii) 	 In respect of service tax matter, CESTAT has passed order in favour of the Group in the month of July 2023, against said 
order the department has preferred an appeal before the High Court, Mumbai. The Group does not expect the outcome of 
the matter stated above to have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial condition, result of operations or cash 
flows.

iii) 	 In February 2019, the Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be 
considered to measure obligations under Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Group is opined that there are 
interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any 
probable obligations for past periods. The Group has complied with the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952 from the date 
of the Supreme Court order.

33. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments 
and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the ”management 
approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group’s performance and 
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. 
Accordingly, information has been presented both along business segments and geographic segments. 
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not 
directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment. All other 
expenses or income which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.
Business segment of Group primarily identified and reported taking into account, the different risks and returns, the organisation 
structure and the internal reporting systems are as follows:

Agrochemicals	 	 :	 Insecticides, Herbicides, Fungicides & Biocides

Non Agrochemicals		 :	 Conveyor Belts, V Belts and Timing Belts, Dyes and Dye Intermediates and General Chemical 

Information about business segments	

(` Lakhs)

Agrochemicals Non Agrochemicals  Total 

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

Revenue

External sales 3,77,296.93 2,63,942.96 54,688.37 52,359.49  4,31,985.30 3,16,302.45

Other income 1,133.11 4,466.23  573.98  178.19  1,707.09 4,644.42
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(` Lakhs)

Agrochemicals Non Agrochemicals  Total 

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

31 March, 
2025

31 March, 
2024

Revenue from operations  3,78,430.03  2,68,409.19  55,262.35  52,537.68  4,33,692.38  3,20,946.87 

Results

Segment results 23,002.75  (3,281.91) 12,643.05 11,930.13  35,645.81 8,648.22

Other income (Unallocated)  4,246.03  1,331.78 

Unallocated expenses  (1,847.40)  (2,449.78)

Operating profit 38,044.44 7,530.22

Finance costs  (210.58)  (343.06)

Profit before tax  37,833.88  7,187.16 

Income taxes  (7,392.13)  (3,996.54)

Profit after tax 30,441.76 3,190.62

Other segment information

Segment assets 3,89,436.82 3,43,532.96  16,610.12  11,657.86  4,06,046.94  3,55,190.82 

Unallocated assets  66,438.23  48,641.42 

Total assets 3,89,436.82 3,43,532.96 16,610.12 11,657.86 4,72,485.16 4,03,832.24

Segment liabilities  1,94,114.90  1,58,661.74  9,143.24  3,967.77  2,03,258.14  1,62,629.51 

Unallocated liabilities  19,128.81  17,453.62 

Total liabilities 1,94,114.90 1,58,661.74 9,143.24 3,967.77 2,22,386.95 1,80,083.13

Capital expenditure:

Tangible assets (Unallocated)  29.02  47.82 

Intangible assets (Including IAUD*) 
(Allocated)

 42,062.80  42,127.82  42,062.80  42,127.82 

Intangible assets (Unallocated)  -    26.54 

Depreciation (Unallocated)  830.41  883.23 

Amortisation (Allocated)  25,827.07  25,827.07  2.88  2.88  25,829.95  25,829.95 

Capital employed  1,95,321.91  1,84,871.22  7,466.88  7,690.09  2,02,788.80  1,92,561.31 

Capital employed (Unallocated)  47,309.42  31,187.80 

*IAUD-Intangible Asset Under Development 

Notes

(i)	� The business of the Group is divided into two business segments. These segments are the basis for management control 
and hence form the basis for reporting. The business of each segment comprises of:

	 a)	 Agrochemicals – This is the main area of the Group’s operation and includes the trading of agrochemical products. 

   	 b) 	 Non Agrochemicals  –Trading of products such as conveyor belts and rubber belts/sheets.

(ii) 	 Segment Revenue in the above segments includes sales of products net of taxes.

(iii) 	 Inter Segment Revenue is taken as comparable third party average selling price for the year.

(iv) 	 Segment Revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:

 	 a) 	 Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India.

  	 b) 	 Revenue outside India is further bifurcated into Europe, North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA), Latin 
America (LATAM) and Rest of the World (ROW).

(v) 	 Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and 
amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.
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(vi) 	 The Group does not have any customer (including related parties), with whom revenue from transactions is more than 
10% of Group’s total revenue during the year.

(vii) 	 Based on the “management approach” defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
evaluates the Group’s performance and allocate resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by 
business segments. Accordingly information has been presented along these segments.

Geographical information

The geographical information analyses the Group revenues and non-current assets by the Company’s country of domicile 
(i.e. India) and other geographic locations. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue are based on the 
geographic location of customers and segment assets are based on the geographical locations of the assets. It is bifurcated 
between within India and Outside India. 

(` Lakhs)
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024

 Revenue by 
Geographical 

Market 

 Carrying 
amount of Non 

Current Assets* 

 Revenue by 
Geographical 

Market 

 Carrying 
amount of Non 

Current Assets* 
INDIA  1,286.99  8,126.02  326.85  9,933.58 
EUROPE  2,25,378.64  51,268.97  1,58,569.55  42,425.60 
LATAM  23,845.79  1,715.17  18,616.73  2,000.49 
NAFTA  1,59,428.06  47,492.86  1,12,734.74  50,157.71 
ROW  22,045.81  4,086.68  26,054.58  4,493.31 

Total  4,31,985.29  1,12,689.69  3,16,302.45  1,09,010.69 
*Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax asset. 

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024

34. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER (IND AS 115)

The Group is primarily in the business of export of agrochemicals (technical grade and formulations) and non-agro products 
such as conveyor belts, rubber belts/sheets, dyes and dye intermediates to various countries across the world. The revenue is 
recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon dispatch / delivery. The Group has a credit 
evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established, the Group does not give significant 
credit period resulting in no significant financing component. The Group, however, has a policy for replacement of the damaged 
goods.

(A)	 Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability (Advance from customers)

(` Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 

31 March, 2025 
Year ended 

31 March, 2024 
Opening contract liability  914.39  635.37 
Add: Addition to contract liability during the year  5,153.52  4,646.50 
Less: Recognised as revenue during the year  (4,958.66)  (4,239.24)
Less: Other adjustments  (462.83)  (128.24)
Closing contract liability  646.42  914.39 

(B)	 Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and loss:	

(` Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 

31 March, 2025 
Year ended 

31 March, 2024 
Revenue from contract with customer as per contract price  4,54,291.96  3,49,845.66 
Less: Discounts and incentives  (10,761.95)  (10,793.15)
Less:- Sales returns /credits / reversals  (11,849.21)  (22,801.48)
Less:- Any other adjustments  (143.59)  (214.17)
Total  4,31,537.21  3,16,036.86 
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(C)	 Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers

(` Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 

31 March, 2025 
Year ended 

31 March, 2024 
Agrochemicals
India  971.57  851.90 
Europe  2,17,662.30  1,49,903.55 
Latin America  19,067.28  15,532.63 
North America  1,22,629.88  82,159.35 
Rest of the world  16,518.24  15,229.92 

Total (A)  3,76,849.28  2,63,677.35 
Non Agrochemicals
Europe  7,713.86  8,512.41 
Latin America  4,745.18  3,033.54 
North America  36,738.41  30,526.56 
Rest of the world  5,490.49  10,287.00 

Total (B)  54,687.93  52,359.51 
Total (A) +(B)  4,31,537.21  3,16,036.86 

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A)	 Names of related parties and their relationship 

(a)	 Key Managerial Personnel and their Relatives
Mr Ramprakash V. Bubna Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Sharda R. Bubna Whole-time Director
Mr Ashish R. Bubna Whole-time Director
Mr Manish R. Bubna Whole-time Director
Mrs. Seema A. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director
Mrs. Anisha M. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director
Ms Kevika A. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director
Mr Purav M. Bubna Relative of Whole-time Director
Mr M.S. Sundara Rajan (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director
Mr Shitin Desai (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director
Mr Shobhan M. Thakore (till 08 August, 2024) Independent Director
Ms Sonal Desai Independent Director                                   
Mr HS Upendra Kamath (with effect from 10 May, 
2024)

Independent Director        

Mr Shalin Divatia (with effect from 10 May, 2024) Independent Director        
Mr Vinod Kumar Kathuria (with effect from 10 May, 
2024)

Independent Director        

Mr Shailesh A. Mehendale Chief Financial Officer 
Mr Jetkin N. Gudhka Company Secretary
Mr Keval Furiya Company Secretary, Axis Cropscience Private Limited (wholly 

owned subsidiary)

(b)	 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or their Relatives
Jankidevi Bilasrai Bubna Trust
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(B)	 Transactions during the year

(a)	 Key Managerial Personnel Compensation:

(` Lakhs)
 Year ended 

31 March, 2025
 Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Short- term employee benefits  1,334.48  1,304.04 
Post-employment benefits  3.88  2.67 

(b)	 With Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
(` Lakhs)

 Year ended 
31 March, 2025

 Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Rent paid  810.00  810.00 
Remuneration  840.72  701.81 
Director’s Sitting Fees paid  18.00  22.05 
Directors’ Commission paid  493.76  602.23 
Dividend paid  4,050.24  2,025.11 

(` Lakhs)
 Year ended 

31 March, 2025
 Year ended 

31 March, 2024
Post-employment benefits:  3.88  2.67 

(c)	 With enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or their Relatives

(` Lakhs)

 Year ended 
31 March, 2025

 Year ended 
31 March, 2024

Donations paid to:

Jankidevi Bilasrai Bubna Trust  27.00  28.00 

(C)	 Outstanding balance as at balance sheet date

(` Lakhs)

 As at 
31 March, 2025

 As at 
31 March, 2024

Director’s Commission Payable  937.53  493.76 

Salary Payable  4.57  8.92 

Post-employment benefits  3.88  68.01 

	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

	 The sales to and purchases of goods and services from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail 
in arm’s length transactions and are in confirmation with provisions of Companies Act and SEBI Regulations. Outstanding 
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees 
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is undertaken each financial year 
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

36. HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments	

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign exchange forward 
contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods consistent with foreign currency exposure of 
the underlying transactions.

The Group enters into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention to reduce the foreign exchange risk of expected sales 
and purchases, these contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Nature of instrument  Foreign 
currency

As at 
 31 March, 2025

As at 
 31 March, 2024

Amount           
(FCY Mn.)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Amount           
(FCY Mn.)

Amount
(` Lakhs)

Forward contract- Sell US$ to `  0.25  218.16  2.00  1,669.49 

EUR to US$  5.50  5,178.96  1.00  929.25 

EUR to `  2.75  2,550.22  -    -   

AUD  -    -    0.25  1.79 

37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
in the fair level hierarchy.

As at 31 March, 2025

(` Lakhs)
Date of 

Valuation
Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Financial assets
Non current
Other financial assets 31 March, 2025  -    -    537.01  -    -    537.01  537.01 
Current
Investment in mutual 
funds and bonds

31 March, 2025  29,432.74  -    -    29,432.74  -    -    29,432.74 

Derivative financial 
assets

31 March, 2025  0.20  -    -    -    0.20  -    0.20 

Trade Receivables 31 March, 2025  -    -    1,95,544.18  -    -    1,95,544.18 1,95,544.18 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

31 March, 2025  -    -    12,721.29  -    -    12,721.29  12,721.29 

Bank balances other 
than cash and cash 
equivalents

31 March, 2025  -    -    9,313.58  -    -    9,313.58  9,313.58 

Other financial assets 31 March, 2025  -    -    4,751.48  -    -    4,751.48  4,751.48 
Total Financial Assets 29,432.93  -   2,22,867.53 29,432.74  0.20 2,22,867.53 2,52,300.46 
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Non current
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

31 March, 2025  -    -    6,301.38  -    -    6,301.38  6,301.38 

Current
Trade creditors 31 March, 2025  -    -    1,31,020.31  -    -    1,31,020.31  1,31,020.31 
Lease liabilities 31 March, 2025  -    -    775.97  -    -    775.97  775.97 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

31 March, 2025  -    -    50,128.39  -    -    50,128.39  50,128.39 

Total Financial liabilities  -    -   1,88,226.05  -    -   1,88,226.05 1,88,226.05 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)



Sharda Cropchem Limited 259

Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25258

As at 31 March, 2024

(` Lakhs)
Date of 

Valuation
Carrying Amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair 
Value

Financial assets 
Financial assets
Non Current
Other financial assets 31 March, 2024  -    -   532.28  -    -    532.28  532.28 
Current
Investment in mutual 
funds

31 March, 2024  15,889.87  -    -    15,889.87  -    -    15,889.87 

Derivative financial 
assets

31 March, 2024  20.86  -    -    -    20.86  -    20.86 

Trade Receivables 31 March, 2024  -    -    1,49,799.95  -    -    1,49,799.95  1,49,799.95 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

31 March, 2024  -    -    8,734.28  -    -    8,734.28  8,734.28 

Bank balances other 
than cash and cash 
equivalents

31 March, 2024  -    -    57.53  -    -    57.53  57.53 

Other financial assets 31 March, 2024  -    -    12,785.97  -    -    12,785.97  12,785.97 
Total Financial Assets 15,910.73  -   1,71,910.01 15,889.87  20.86 1,71,910.01 1,87,820.74 
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Lease liabilities 31 March, 2024  -    -    775.97  -    -    775.97  775.97 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

31 March, 2024  -    -    5,838.00  -    -    5,838.00  5,838.00 

Current
Borrowings 31 March, 2024  337.51  -    -    337.51  337.51 
Trade creditors 31 March, 2024  -    -    92,115.14  -    -    92,115.14  92,115.14 
Lease liabilities 31 March, 2024  -    -    716.50  -    -    716.50  716.50 
Other financial liabilities 
other than lease 
liabilities

31 March, 2024  -    -    50,246.82  -    -    50,246.82  50,246.82 

Total Financial liabilities  -    -   1,50,029.94  -    -   1,50,029.94 1,50,029.94 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, buyers credit and other current 
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, 
traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are 
traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as 
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.
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Valuation Technique used to determine Fair Value:-	
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values for financial instruments at fair value 
in the balance sheet.	

Type Valuation Technique Significant 
unobservable 

inputs

Inter-relationship 
between significant 

unobservable 
inputs and fair 

value measurement

Investment in Mutual 
Funds (Level 2)

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on 
the net asset value (‘NAV’) as on the reporting date provided 
by respective Asset Management Companies.. NAV represents 
the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual 
fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from 
the investors.

Not applicable Not applicable

Foreign Currency 
Forward Contracts 
(Level 2)

The fair value is determined using quoted forward exchange 
rates at the reporting date.

Not applicable Not applicable

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s focus is to 
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
The primary market risk to the Group is foreign exchange risk. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate 
foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic 
of each customer.

Market risk

The Group operates internationally and a major portion of its business is transacted in US Dollars and Euros and purchases 
from overseas suppliers mainly in US Dollars. The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange 
forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The exchange rate between 
the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. 
Consequently, the results of the Group’s operations are adversely affected as the Rupee appreciates / depreciates against 
these currencies.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign 
subsidiaries. 

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations 
arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts 
(Refer note 36).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows:

 Foreign 
currency 

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
 Amount           

(FCY Mn.) 
 Amount                

(` Lakhs) 
 Amount           

(FCY Mn.) 
 Amount                

(` Lakhs) 
Unhedged currency exposure on:-
a)	 Receivables US$  49.77  42,525.17  52.27  33,205.23 

EUR  59.62  55,269.09  59.90  53,761.96 
GBP  1.43  1,577.68  2.69  1,662.22 
AUD  0.77  409.66  0.41  2.64 
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 Foreign 
currency 

As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
 Amount           

(FCY Mn.) 
 Amount                

(` Lakhs) 
 Amount           

(FCY Mn.) 
 Amount                

(` Lakhs) 
PLN  12.82  2,821.71  12.74  2,664.39 
AUD  0.77  409.66  0.41  2.64 
ZAR  -    (11.56)  -    (14.25)
HUF  -    (11.28)  -    (7.15)
CZK  0.12  59.60  0.17  (27.80)
MXN  -    (64.07)  -    109.02 
CAD  11.73  6,969.20  7.01  4,321.10 
COP  -    (10.17)  -    23.01 

b)	 Payables US$  151.37  1,28,721.12  132.09  1,08,074.23 
EUR  40.74  37,369.42  27.96  25,150.25 
MXN  0.57  0.12  -    -   
HUF  673.35  1,549.03  554.98  1,266.74 
CZK  0.28  10.52  (0.08)  (2.78)
PLN  1.89  411.02  1.36  285.12 
CHF  0.03  30.08  0.08  72.93 
GBP  0.45  500.59  0.47  454.36 
PHP  0.14  2.16  0.15  2.29 
CAD  0.30  177.06  0.68  409.01 
ZAR  0.33  15.35  0.86  38.08 
AUD  -    -    -    0.66 
HRK  -    -    -    -   
JPY  10.19  57.93  7.72  42.53 
AED  -    -    0.13  0.35 

c)	 Bank Balance US$  3.98  3,397.27  4.73  1,131.68 
EUR  3.61  3,326.31  3.16  2,757.26 
CAD  0.04  20.95  0.16  98.70 
PLN  0.11  23.59  0.10  20.68 
GBP  0.27  300.13  0.57  9.70 
AUD  0.18  97.97  0.16  1.06 
PYG  19.84  2.20  -    -   

d)	 Advance received from customers EUR  0.01  0.00  0.02  0.18 
US$  0.26  0.00  0.40  3.97 
GBP  0.01  11.04  -    -   

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ and EUR exchange rates, with all other 
variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and 
liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

(` Lakhs)
 Change in US$ 

Rate 
 Effect on profit 

and loss 
 Effect on equity 

31 March, 2025 1%  (861.96)  (693.55)
(1%)  861.96  693.55 

31 March, 2024 1%  (748.69)  (332.37)
(1%)  748.69  332.37 
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(` Lakhs)
 Change in EUR 

Rate 
 Effect on profit 

and loss 
 Effect on equity 

31 March, 2025 1%  179.00 144.03
(1%)  (179.00)  (144.03)

31 March, 2024 1%  286.12  127.02 
(1%)  (286.12)  (127.02)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure 
to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ` 195,544.18 Lakhs and ` 149,799.95 
Lakhs as of 31 March, 2025 and 31 March, 2024, respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from 
revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Group through credit approvals, establishing 
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the 
normal course of business.

Trade Receivables 

The Group has established credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before 
Group’s standard payment terms (credit period ranges from 30 to 180 days) and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The 
Group reviews external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and 
in some cases bank references.

The following table represents ageing of trade receivables 31 March, 2025:

(` Lakhs)
Particulars Not yet due Less than 

6 months 
6 months-  

1 year 
 1-2 years  2-3 years   More than 

3 years  
 Total  

i)       �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

 1,70,981.56  24,380.31  9.20  173.11  -    -   1,95,544.18 

ii)      �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    1,347.81  344.18  -    919.75  2,611.74 

iii)     �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
credit impaired 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv)     �Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

v)     � �Disputed Trade receivables -  
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

vi)     �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

The following table represents ageing of trade receivables 31 March, 2024:

(` Lakhs)

Particulars Not yet due Less than 
6 months 

6 months-  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years  

 Total  

i)       �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

 1,30,686.40  20,085.22  (278.32)  (693.35)  -    -   1,49,799.95 

ii)     � �Undisputed Trade Receivable 
-  which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    580.39  1,284.64  169.55  16.27  1,088.70  3,139.55 

iii)     �Undisputed Trade receivables - 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv)     �Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
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(` Lakhs)

Particulars Not yet due Less than 
6 months 

6 months-  
1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years  

 Total  

v)     � �Disputed Trade receivables - 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

vi)    � �Disputed Trade Receivables -  
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Movement in allowances for credit losses

(` Lakhs)

Particulars Opening Addition Reversal Closing

31 March, 2025  3,139.55  1,873.16  2,400.97  2,611.74 

31 March, 2024  4,276.51  1,778.31  2,915.27  3,139.55 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings 
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund 
units. Loans represent loan given to related parties & employees for which the Company does not foresee any impairment 
loss.	

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach of managing liquidity is to ensure, 
as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Group’s reputation. The Group monitors the level 
of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables & other 
financial liabilities

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flows that are generated from operations. 
The Group believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is 
perceived.

As of 31 March, 2025, the Group had a working capital of ̀  160,065.34 Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of ̀  13,207.38 
Lakhs and current investments of ` 29,432.74 Lakhs. As of 31 March, 2024, the Group had a working capital of ` 133,233.38  
Lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of ` 8,734.28 Lakhs and current investments of ` 15,889.87 Lakhs.	

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March, 2025:

(` Lakhs)

Carrying 
value 

Upto 1 year 1-2 years More than  
2 years

Total

Lease liabilities  775.97  775.97  -    -    775.97 

Trade payables  1,31,020.31  1,31,020.31  -    -    1,31,020.31 

Other financial liabilities  56,429.77  50,128.39  6,301.38  -    56,429.77 

Total financial liabilities  1,88,226.05  1,81,924.67  6,301.38  -    1,88,226.05 
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March, 2024:

(` Lakhs)

Carrying 
value 

Upto 1 year 1-2 years More than 
2 years

Total

Borrowings  337.51  337.51  -    -    337.51 

Lease liabilities  1,492.47  716.50  775.97  -    1,492.47 

Trade payables  92,115.14  92,115.14  -    -    92,115.14 

Other financial liabilities  56,084.82  50,246.82  5,838.00  -    56,084.82 

Total financial liabilities  1,50,029.94  1,43,415.97  6,613.97  -    1,50,029.94 

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support 
the growth of the Group. The Group determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and 
other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net asset and total equity of the Group. 

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 	

The Group monitors capital using debt-equity ratio.

(` Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Total debt (bank and other borrowings)  -    337.51 

Lease Liabilities (non current and current)  775.97  1,492.47 

 775.97  1,829.98 

Equity  2,50,098.21  2,23,749.11 

Debt to equity (net)  0.00  0.01 

40. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006:	

(` Lakhs)

Year ended  
31 March, 2025

Year ended  
31 March, 2024

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding 
for more than the stipulated period are given below:

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year 
included in trade payables

 715.54  1,811.96 

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting 
year

 5.79  5.78 

Total  721.33  1,817.74 

i)	� the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (27 of 2006) , along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year

 -    -   

ii)	� the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid beyond the appointed day during the year ) but 
without adding interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006

 -    -   
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(` Lakhs)

Year ended  
31 March, 2025

Year ended  
31 March, 2024

iii)	� Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the  end of accounting 
year

 5.79  5.79 

iv)     �the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

 -    -   

Total  5.79  5.79 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

# Includes principal amount ` 212.04 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 1,122.83 Lakhs) and interest due thereon ` Nil (31 March, 2024: 
` Nil) remaining unpaid to Micro and Small enterprises for capital purchases.

41. DETAILS OF CSR EXPENDITURE (AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013):

(` Lakhs)
Year ended  

31 March, 2025
Year ended  

31 March, 2024
1)	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Group  717.64  798.21 
2)	 Shortfall from previous year  -    -   

Total  717.64  798.21 
3)	 Amount spent
	 i)	 Construction/ acquisition of any assets  -    -   
	 ii)	 On purpose other than (i) above (refer note 28)  729.80  810.72 

Total  729.80  810.72 
4)	 Amount unspent/ (over spent)  (12.16)  (12.51)

Note: 

1)	 CSR activities were mainly undertaken towards promoting education, healthcare assistance, eradicating hunger and 
malnutrition, promoting sports and animal welfare.

2) 	 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company is ` 717.64 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: ` 798.21 Lakhs) as per the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3) 	 The Company has spent ` 729.80 Lakhs during the current year. Excess amount spent of ` 12.16 Lakhs (31 March, 2024: 
` 810.72 Lakhs)

4)	 For contribution made to related party refer note 37.

42. AS PER AMENDMENT IN THE SCHEDULE III OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013, FOLLOWING ARE THE ADDITIONAL 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

Ratios Numerator Denominator Year ended 
31 March, 

2025

Year ended 
31 March, 

2024

 % Variance  Reason for Variance 

a)	� Current 
Ratio  

Current 
assets

Current liabilities  1.81  1.86 (3%)

b)	� Debt Equity 
Ratio 

Debt 
consists of 
borrowings 
and lease 
liabilities

Total equity 0.00  0.01 (100%) The debt equity ratio has 
declined as there was 
repayment of Borrowings  
during the year 
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Ratios Numerator Denominator Year ended 
31 March, 

2025

Year ended 
31 March, 

2024

 % Variance  Reason for Variance 

c)	� Debt Service 
coverage 
Ratio 

Profit before 
interest and 

tax

Debt consists of 
borrowings and 
lease liabilities

 49.03  4.13 1087% The Profit before interest 
and tax has increased 
by 404% and Borrowings 
and lease liabilities has 
decreased by 58%

d)	  �Net Profit Profit after 
tax

Revenue from 
operations 

 7.05  1.01 598% The Profit after tax has 
increased by 854%, 
hence major increase in 
revenue and profitability 
due to favourable market 
conditions in the Agro 
Chemical industry.

e)      �Return on 
Equity Ratio

Profit after 
tax

Average total equity 
= (Opening total 
equity + Closing 
total equity)/2

 12.85  1.43 799% The Profit after tax has 
increased by 854%, hence 
the Return on Equity has 
also increased. 

f)     �  �Return 
on capital 
employed

Profit before 
interest and 

tax

Average capital 
employed* 

= (Opening capital 
employed + Closing 
capital employed)/2

 14.65  3.12 369% The Profit before interest 
and tax has increased 
by 404%, increase in 
revenue and profitability 
due to favourable market 
conditions in the Agro 
Chemical industry

g)    � � �Return on 
Investment

Income 
generated 

from 
invested 

funds 
in market

Average invested 
funds in market 

= (Opening 
funds invested in 
market + Closing 
funds invested in 

market)/2

 8.49  6.34 34% Increased due to higher 
interest rates on Fixed 
Deposit Interest Rates 
and better returns on 
other Investments.

h)    �  �Net capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue 
from 

operations 

Average working 
capital = (Opening 
current assets + 
Closing current 

assets)/2

 2.92  2.39 22%

i)     �  �Trade 
Receivable 
Turnover 
ratio

Revenue 
from 

operations 

Average trade 
receivables = 

(Opening trade 
receivable + Closing 
trade receivable)/2

 2.50  1.90 32% Increase in Revenue 
due to improved market 
conditions. 

j)     �  �Trade 
Payables 
Turnover 
Ratio 

Total 
purchases

Average trade 
payable = (Opening 

trade payable 
+ Closing trade 

payable)/2

 2.70  4.75 -43% The average Trade 
Payables has increased 
by 15%, hence the Trade 
Payables Turnover Ratio 
has decreased

k)    �  �Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio

Cost of 
goods sold

Average inventory = 
(Opening inventory + 
Closing inventory)/2

 3.08  2.20 40% Better inventory cycle 
movement due to 
improvement in revenue

Note:

Basis of computation changed during the current year.

*Capital employed = Total assets - Current liabilities

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)
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44. DISCLOSURE FOR ULTIMATE BENEFICIARIES

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”) with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or 
on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with 
the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by 
or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

45. OTHER MATTERS

i)	 The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the Company, 
for holding any Benami property.

ii)	 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

iii)	 The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond 
the statutory period.

iv) 	 The Group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of The Companies Act 
read with the Companies ( Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

v) 	 The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the Books of Accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( such as Search or Survey 
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

vi) 	 As on 31 March, 2025 there is no unutilised amounts of any issue of securities and long term borrowings from banks and 
financial institutions. The borrowed funds have been utilised for the specific purpose for which the funds were raised.

vii)	 The Group has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by any Banks, Financial institution or Other lenders.

viii) 	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 (CONTD.)

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Sharda Cropchem Limited
Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala Ramprakash V. Bubna Manish R. Bubna
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 103595 DIN 00136568 DIN 00137394

Shailesh A. Mehendale Jetkin Gudhka
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: A26487
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025 Date  : 14 May, 2025
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